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bURMA - SIAM

A. CIVILIANS IN BURMA

a) Prosecution Document numbered 5276, the affidavit of T. E.
AUCETERLOLIE, is now produced for identification snd the merked excerpts
offered in evidence. The document refers to the torture of & Durmese et
Victoria Point Camp. The man was confined for two weeks in what was known
2s the Dog Cage, a wooden structure 3 ft,by 5 ft. end then beaten, suspended
by the hands frem a rafter and beaten in front of some of the officers of
the Camp. The man's enkles were then tied up behind his body with a rooe
around his neck and a fire lit beneath his feet. ILater he wasg cut down and
driven away with an armed guard and some digging tools. The truck returned
witheut the rurmese.

b) Prosecution document numbered 5260, the sworn statemént of Wo0. I
A.E.E.CULLEN is now tendered for identificetion and the excerpts merked there-
in, offered in evidence. This statement :elates to the murder of a -urmese in
Septembver, 1943. Japenese guards beat the man with & six foot bzmboo pole and
forced a passing burmese civilian to thrash his countryman with this instrumen?
When the victim was raw and bleeding the guards decided to shoot him. This
wes done and two P.0.W. belonging to the witness' detachment, were ordered
to bury the body.

c) Prosecution document numbered 5120, the solemn decleration of
Mg. SAN MGWE is preduced for identificetion end the marked excerpts offered
in evidence. This document stetes that in June 1945, Kempeitai personnel
arrested the witnessis uwnicle ond removed money and household goods from
their home. The witness was told by a fellow prisoner that his uncle was
tartured; his uncle has never returned home since the arrest.

d) Prosecution -document numbered 5138, being the afficevit of dibs - Eols
E.L.St. J.COVUBE, exhibiting three statements of OEN MYAING, MA SAN TEEEN and
AE YI respectively, is produced fer icentificetion snd the mgrked excerpts
now tendered in evicence. This statement relates to the massacre by Japanese
ef women and children civilian inhebitants ef the village of EbBIANG. They
were oushed into a number of houses and fired on by mechine guns, end the
houses set on fire. Two girls although wounded, escaped. One of them OEN

MYAING states:
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"We were pushed inside and after about two hours we were fired
on by machine guns. The firing continued wntil 21l the crying
and moaning had ceased. I was wouncded in my right hip, under
my left arm and on my right hand. If anyone cried out the
firing started up again. VWhen everything had been quiwt for
some time, smoke begen filling the room and one side of ths

house was on fire. I tore up some floor boards and escaped.’

Prosecution document numbered 5337, being the statement of Capt.
T.C.5. BURDEKIN is now offered for identification and the marked excerpts
produced in evicdence. This document in paragraph II thereof relates the
information obtained in an official investigation of the events known as
the ESAING liassacre, confirming the evidence of the document last
produced, iio. 5138.

e) Prosecution Document numbered 5137, being the affidsvit of
Lt. Col. E.L.St. J. Couch exhibiting charge sheet and Abstract of Evidence
in relation to the KALAGON Massacre, is now produced for identificetion
and the merked excerpts offered in evidence. Prosecutien document numbered
5336, being the report of Lt. Col. A.M. Sturrock, President No. 4 War
Crimes Court, Rengoon, in reference, inter alia, to the KALAGON Massacre.
is now offered for identificeation and the marked excerpts produced in
evidence.

These documents describe the proceedings before the Court eand
sunmarize the evidence givsan. ITre villagers of KALAGUN were interrogated
by the Kempeitai, beatan end tortured. The massacre veas carried out Dby
taking the villagers in croups of about twenty-five to the neardy wells
vhere they were bayonetted and thrown down the wells.

Witness for the Jefence: Col. TSUKUDA stated that there was no
trial end thet since they were satisfied that the villagers had been
acting in a manner hostile to the Occupying Power, the Japanese were
Justified in the circumstances, in carrying out a mass execution.

The first Accused, the Commanding Officer of the Unit carrying out

the massacre, steted that he thought the women and children were acting

against the Japanese Army. When asked how he justified the killing of

infent children, he said there was no other alternative. LEe further said:
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"Within the Orders I received, the killing of the children was also
included. If I spcied the children, they would be orphans and as
siick they could not heve a living. In order to save time and carry
out my duties, I could not help killing them."

The evidence of the keadman of the village who esceped was that of the
195 women, 175 men and 260 children collected by the Japsnese, only a very

few esceped death.

Prosecution document numbered 5337 elreedy in evidence, in paragreph

I thereof meskes reference to this massacre.

f) Presecution document nukbersd 5336, of Lt. Col. A.M.STURROCK,
already in evidence, 2lso conteins summeries of the proceedings of five
other trials of Japanese for alleged war crimes. In four of these cases

convictions were registered.

g) Prosecution Document numbered 5344, the signed statement of MAUNG

BU GYI, is now offered for identification end the marked excerpts tendered in

evidence. This document describes the beating of a woman with a rifle by
Japenese, at KYONLANA Village. She was stripped nsked as vas her nsphew and

beth were tied to a railwey carrisge in the sun. Iliext day the witness sew
bloodstains by the river benk and on enquiry, wes told by an Indian, alse
arrested with the woman, thet ske and the boy hed been cecapitated. The
bodies were thrown into the river by the Indian.

h) Prosecution document numbered 5345, the signed etetement of MAUNG

TUKN SEWE, is now produced for identificeticon eand the excerpts marked therein,
offered in evicence. This document states that the witness, a Police Constadl:
acconpanied a Kempeitai Cfficer tc a villege where en 0ld men and another
netive were arrested on suspicion of being concerned in the death of a
Japenese soldier. These men were tortured with water and then their feet
were burned. Several houses were burned down. They were then taken to Inbin
where they were cecapitated. Their bodies when they had fellen into the
trench were bayonetted by Jepanese soldiers.

At Mysnaung two other men were decavitated.

i) Prosecution decument numbvered 5347, the signed statement of MAUNG
KIL Mg. is now produced fer identification and the marked excerpts effered in
evidence. This document stetes thet the witness acted s an Interpreter for a
Japenese officer in May, 1945, et Ongun, when seven burmens were being
questioned. 1hey were teken to Ongun cemetery snd there beheaded. The

witness states:
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"Although I hed my hends over my ears, L could hear the blows of

the sword and the Japrs saying, 'Ok, that one isn't dead yet,

bayonet him'. I heard cries of 'Oh God' coming from the trench.”

On the next day, two white men, evoerently Airmen, who had witnessecl
the execution of the ZFurméans, were themselves murdered in the seme way.

The witness states:

"I have heerd from coolies working for the Japanese, of other

executions. Sometimes there were executions of batches of six

people, sometimes of betches of up to 30 people."

j) Prosecution document numbered 5342; the signed statement of Mg.
PAN is produced for identificetion and the marked excerpts thereof offered
in evidences This document relates the torture of Lurmese nationals by the
Kempeitei et Shanywe, the witness having been forcibly removed‘there, after
torture, in order to identify suspected men. The witness saw his father,
brother and other men shot by the Japanese. The headmen's house wes set 6n
fire.

k) Prosecution document numbered 5340, the signed statement of SAW EO
GYI GYAV is offered for identificetion, and the marked excerots therein
tendered in evidence. This document stetes that seven persons were executed
in Tharawaddy by the Kempeitéi. The erecution was observed by the witness
from a2 window overlooking the compound within which the people were shot.

1) Prosecution document numbered 5339, the sworn statement of R.A.
NICOL is now tendered for identification and the sxcerpts marked, ere
offered in evidence. This statement cescribes how the witness was taken to
loksokwin forest in early 1945 es an interpreter. Ee sew four Allied Alrmen
guarced by a verty of Jepenege soldiers. After interrogation, the men were
taken into the forest end helf en hour later, the Jepanese returned without
the men, but carrying their clothes, four paits of shoes, & pick-axe end a
shovel.

m) Prosecution decument numbered 5348A, being the sworn statement of
Vg. TEAL Mg, is now produced for identification and the marked excerpis
therein offered in evidencef The document states that in August, 1944, at
Sinikan the witness saw a burmese tied to a tree, ordered to say his prayers

and murdered by a Japanese, who hacked him all over the body with a sword.
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This was the punishment for refusing to disclose any knowledge of British
troops.

n) Frosecution document numbered 5348B, being the sworn statement of
Mg, THAN MALUNG, is now offered for identification and the marked excerpts
are produced in evidence. :rosecution document numbered 5354, being the
unsworn sta%ement of Sgt. Maj, YOSHIKAWA, Sadaichiro, is now offered for
identification axd the marked excerpts therein produced in evidence. These
documents relate to the murder of six Kachins near BUMRAI, in June 1944,
because they were suspected of helping Allied troops in the neighbourhood.
The six men were bayonetted to death by the Japanese after being interro-
gated. The latter document of Sgt.llaj.YOSHIKAJA is an admission of this
incident.

0) ¥rosecution document numbered 5359, the sworn statement of ROLLIND
JOSTcH, is now tendered for identification ami the merked excerpts thereof
offered in evidence. This document states that the witness saw Kempeitai
personnel set fire to the fcot of an Indian, the foot having had kerosene
0il poured over it. The witness further states that he saw a woman tied to
a post and beaten, her longyi removed and beaten again. She was dragged
along the road by a rope from her neck until unconscious.

A Japanese poured a pitcher full of boiling water into an Indian's
mouth. The man was pushed into a water-filled trench and submerged several
times until unconscious. He was then removed and put into wooden fetters.

p) Frosecution document numbered 5356, the solemn declaration of

H/PRY JOSLEH, is produced for identification, and the excerpt marked therein

sffered in evidence.

This document states that in April, 1945, the Kempeitai detachment
at Xyaikto stayed in the witness's hcuse until June. Dluring this time, the
witness cbserved the following tortures carried out on their prisoners:-

"(1) Beat the prisoners with big solid bamboo sticks (approx.

length 4'/5' - diameter 3") Beat the prisoners until they

confessed (i.e. forced confession).

(2) During beating and interrogation, prisoners were made to squat

with hands and feet tied with ropes.

(3) The hands of the prisoners were tied with ropes. Prisonersvere

then strung up to the roof of the house by their hands so that
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their feet did not touch the ground. DPrisoners were left likg
this for some time. .

) During interrogation, the prisoner's hands and legs were
splashed with large quaantity of boiling water.

(5) The prisoner vas blindfolded, then a large quantity of water
slowly poured into his mouth and nostrils, so that the
prisoner suffocated.

q) Prosecution document numbered 5361, the sworn statement of STMA

BAHADUR, is now tendered for identification and the excerpts marked therein,

offered in evidence. The document states that in January, 1945, the witness

and nearly 1,000 Indians were arrested. They were detained in a church for

a day without food and drink and then taken to Hsipaw where six hundred

and twenty-one men were packed into a room about 25 feet square. There was

no room to lie down and the men were forced to sit with their knees tucked

under them, shoulder to shoulder.

into

"I was detained in this room for thirty eight days, never teing
allowed to go out. Our food consisted of a small ball of rice and a
pinch of salt daily, with a very small quantity of water. e were not
allowed to leave the room to perform our natural functions, this being
done in the room through a small hole thot had been made in the floor.

After a few days, the conditions in this room became practically
unbearsble, the filth and stench becoming undesciibable.

During my stay in this ®HELL HOLE", anproximetely two hundred men
died from various diseases,; and it wos a common practice to leave the
dead in the room for a few hours, alfter vhich they would be taken out
by the Jzpanese and thrown into a trench or bomb-crater, where they
were left exposed to the air®,

The witness and five other Gurkhas were then taken to longkai and
the jungle,

"and we were forced to kncel down, after our hetds had been tied be-
hind owr backs. One of the Japanese, which one I do not know, pulled
my coat clear of my neck, and I saw that the other five were being

dealt with in thec same manner. At this time, standing near us was one
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officer and three soldiers, whilst at a distance, I could see about

twenty five others. The officer took out his sword, and I saw him

hand it to one of the soldiers. and point to me. The Japanese soldiers
approached me from behind, and suddenly I felt a sharp pain in my

neck, also I feli the blood running over my face., After that I

lost consciousness, and I can not say what happened.

The following morning, just as the sun was rising I came to my
senses, and found that T was sozked in blood. I looked around, and
found that my five comrades were all dead with their heads partly
severed from their bodies."

A Doctor's certificate attached to the document confirms the nature of
the wound amd describes the man's consequent disability.

' srosecution document numbered 5364, the sworn statement of BEL
BAHADTR RAI, is now produced for identification and the markted excerpts
therein offercd in svidence. This document ciates that in Tune 19hj, the
witness who wes acting as an Interpreter for the Kempeitai in Hopin, saw a
Corporal and two soldiers of the British /rmy who had been captured.

The Corporal was wounded in his throat so that he was unable to eat or
drink. He was given no medical aid and died in two days.

The remaining soldiers and another who had just been captured were
tied together and taken to a nearby bomb crater where they were shot by a
Japanese Sgt. llajor,

s) Z¥rosecution document numbered 5365, the sworn statement of R.B.
~ILSON, is now offered for identification and the excerpts marked, tendered
in evidence.

This document relates the mal treatment of prisoners of war and
internees at Rangoon Central Gaol. Men Were beaten savagely and others
were frequent deaths from malnutrition and lack of medical facilities.

At Tavoy Intsrnment Camp men and women were beaten, tortured, put in
solitary confinement and starved, and the internees were forced to eat
dogs, rats and snakes to keep alive.

t) Prosecution document numbered 5367, the sworn statement of TAN HAIN
ENG+ being produced for identification and the marked excerpts offered in
evidence, describes the execution of five Chinese near +ROIE.

The witness vent to the place of executicn as an Interdreter and saw
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a number of Japanese officers there present. There was a table covered
with & white cloth, on which were flowers, one or two bottles of sake and
some glasses.

The five prisoneré were made to sit with their legs in the graves
which were already dug. They were then shot by Japanese soldiers.

u) Prosecution Document numbered 5358, the sworn statement of
JWHJILLIAMS, produced for identification, and the excerpts marked
therein ere now offered in evidence. This document deseribes the beating
of Prisoners of "ar at lMgymyo and the inhumanity of a Japanese '%.0. who
kicked a man to death who, suffering from a stomach complaint, was un-
ablé to control his motion.

v) Frosecution Document numbered 5369, the sworn statement of
Mrse MM VILLIANS, is now offered for identification and the marked
excerpts produced in evidence. The document confirms the conditions in
MAYINO as set out in the preceding statement numbered 5368.

In Tavoy women were ordered to stand in the sun for seven, eight and
ten hours. In April, 1945, a lady internee returned to the house in whieh
she lived at 0330 hours with her clothes in shreds and said that a

Japanese had attempted to rape her. Another woman informed the witness

that on several occasions the same Japanese had raped her.
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TX 39006 1mjor yohn Kevin LIOYD of /rmy Headquarters make oath
cnd says

L= I am an officer of the psustralion (pilitary Forces,

2o snnexed hereto and merked m* is a true copy of an affidavit
swvorn by Thomas Bruce LUCHTERLONIE on 18 ,pril l9h6 lv'hich I have in
Ty custody in the course of my duties.

i The original affidavit cannot be made available immediately
as it is required for trials of minor war criminals,

gsworn before ne at MILBOURNE
this 27th day of my 1946 ) (sicned) J, LLOYD,
IRjor.

(signed) R.D. CRANPTON,
Capte.
in-officer of the
fustralian pilitary Forces.
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et

hls eighteenth day of fpril, One thousand nine hundred and forty-six,

B s Bruce .UCHTERLONIE, of 7 Frances St., Epping, in the State of New
l south oles, mokes oath and says as fellows;-

1. As NX #$((L» Cple T.B. AUCHTERLONIE, of 2/3 MiC I was teken
prisoner at gingapore on 15 Feb, 42. As one of a party of three Eg%usand
_(A Force) I was transferred from Changi on 15 My to VICTORIA POINT|where
§ 5 ;000 sustralions landed, 4s one of 700 T was sent to the aerodrome
Victoria point.

e The officer in charge of the Australians was Major GREENaf 2/4
MG Bie The Commander of the jerodrome PW Cemp was Lieute EJGCHI (OGUCHI)
nickncamed ngnilern,

3 The cormonder of the victorie point area was Capt. YASUDA. - Iieut,
SHIRLSI was cormander of the 300 PWs at vVictoria pPoint (Proper). A :
deseription of Capt. Yasuda is as follows - Height cbout § ft. 5 ins,,

age 43 years (approximetely), compact build. exceptionally dark complexion
for a Jap and wore a moustache,

L. 4 description of pieut TJGUCHI is as follows - height 5 ft. 9 ins,
ege 29 (cpproxs), slim build, exceptionally god-loocking for a Jap, He was;
always sitiling and was known as ngmilerw, He was an ex-bank clerk in

TOKY O

Be A description of pieut, SHIRASI is as follows - height 5 fts 9 1ns
aée 35 (approx.),well built, rather protruding teeth.
1 I was erployed with seven other Australians at Jap HN as driver
i to Lieut EJGUCHI. gSome time in July I san a Burnese imprisoned in a "Dog
! Cage v at the radio station, victoria pt. A "Dog Cagen was a board
g structure no more than 3 ft, by 5 ft., used as a solitary confinement cell
|

by the Japs.
SRS
Te 4 Jap told me that the prisoner was an ex-pBurmese policeman and

thot he had been arrested for the purpese of gaining information cbout
the British occupation,

- Ba I saw the Burmese in the "pog Cage® on a number of occasions
during the next fortnigzht. He was progressively nore haggard during that
period and the Japs told me that he had been repeatedly beaten.

S. At the end of the fortnight I drove rieut. EJGUCHI to the radio
station, while sitting_in the car I saw a number of wicker lounge chairs
belng placed in p051tlon._ These were occupied by Capt. YASUDA, Lieut,
“EJGOCHI, Sghelmjor TAiK/HASI, another sgte. Mejor G end a Sgt. whom I
could personally identify but whose names I do not know, A4ilso present was
the Japanese interpreter, He was 5 ft., 7 ins, high; age about 27 years;
slight build, lantern jawed and sunken eyed. e was a cruel looking
person,

it cinliaia e
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10, The prisoner was then brought out of the cage and his hands
tied behind his back. The interpreter proceeded to interrogte him in
Mnlay. T understood little Muley end could not gether the context of the
conversation,

1%, ifter each refusal ® anser the pisoner was beaten by one or more
of those present., gSticks of approximate diameter 1% ins. and length 1
metre were used in the punishment. This continued for approximetely haif
an hour, after which relays of four Japanese soldiers were called dewn
fron g to do the becting. The Burmese would evidently give no informatio}

12, He was thon placed on a 4l gallon drum, all clathing removed;
the rope tied to his hands was passed over a rafter under the (), store
verandeh and tied at such a length that when the drum was kicked from
under him no part of his body could touch the ground., After the drum
had been kicked away the Burriese was spun around on the rope and beaten
with sticks by four Japanese soldiers. This was stopped at intervals for
interrogation but the purmese still refused to answer,

13, After about fifteen nminutes, his andkles were tied up behind his
body with & rope around the neck, and a fire 1lit underneati: him, He
stood this for ten ninutes and appcared to lose consciousmss,

15, The Japenese then cut him down, placed hin in e truck with two
armed guards and two soldiers with digging tools, The truck was driven
_avay and returned some twenty minutes later without the Eurmesgz] The
Japanese interpreter was one of the most vicious of the tormentors., This
interpreter was nicknamed ®sHurry Hurry",.

15, There were no other justralian eye witnesses to the torture, I
was ordered to turn the car around prior to the cormencement of the tor-
ture but I observed from about 15 feet through the rear vision nirror.

16, Lieut. IJGUCHI belonged to the XEIPEI TAI.
27 s Lieut. SHIRASI, during the time we were at victoria pt. Carmp,

appeared to be more humane than his fellows,

SWORIY by the abovenaned depenent, )
Thomas Bruce LUCHTERLONIE, at SYDINEY)
this eighteenth day of April, One ) (signed) T.B, AUCHTERLONIE.
thousand nine hundred and forty-six )

Before e,
(signed) L. SHIFFIEID J.P.
M — 4 Justice of the peace.
Ixhibit mw,

This is the document markgg‘thibit "R* referred to in the
_affidavit of vx39006 1mj. J.K, Lloyd)sworn before me this 27th day of
1By 1946 as beins produced end shéfn to him at the time of his swearing
his said affidavit,
(signed) R,D. CRANPTON, Capt.
An officer of the pustralian Military Forces,

| MO e L T
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I, VX 39006, Major John Kevin Lloyd of irmy Headquarters

make oath and say:

j T am an officer of the Australian Military Forces.
2. Annexad hereto and¢ marked "K" is a true copy of

an affidavit sworn bty NX6E8582 W02 Ashley Harry
Hops CULLEN on 18%h Jan. 1946 which I have in my
custody in the course of my cduties.

3 The original affidavit cannot be made available
immediately as it is required for trials of minor

war criminals.

Sworn before me at MELROURNE

/sf ‘3. Llowyd

Tasc o

this 27 day of Néy, 1946,

/s/ D. Peach NX76207 Capt

AW officer of the
Australian Military Fcrces.
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AUSTRALTAN WAR CRIMES COMMISSION

Evidence taken before Mr, Justice Philp at Sydney this
eighteenth day of January 1946.

NX.68582 7,0,11 Achley Harry Hope CULLEN, being duly sworn
gives the following evidence :-

My full name and unit is NX68582 W01l Ashley Harry
Hope CULLEN, of 2.3 Reserve M.T. Company, 8 Division. My
home address is : 68 Queen Street, Asnhfield, N.S.W.

I was captured in Java and was confined in Bicycle
Camp from 1.4,42 to 8.10.42 and working camps on the Burma
side of the Burma-Thai Railway from November 1942, to
December 1943. From January to March 1944 I was at Tamarkan
and at Saigon from April to June 1944. From September 1944
to the capitulation I was bYack in Changi Camp,

During the period August to October 1943 I was in

charge of a detached party of 20 POW (10 Australian, 10
Dutch) engaged in relaying cattle from Retpu (30 Kilo
Camp, Burma-Thai Railway) to 45 Xilo Camp and we were
housed with 4 Korean guards, all of whom were privates,

| Pn or about 26 September 1943, the Senior Guard named Pte

{ /YESTER informed me that I was to ensure that all purchases

¢ qu cheroots by POW were to be made through him at a cost

| {jJof 1 rupee 20 cents per bundle. As these cheroots were

ijfobtainzble from the nearby POW Camp canteen for 50 eents

Viiper bundle, I refused to comply with his demand stating
‘my reasons. After making threats of punishment if I per-
sisted in non-compliance with his order, he sent me back
to bed and two hours later (0100 hrs) he took me some
distance from our quarters and without warning knocked me
to the ground and jumrped on me, after which he proceeded
to kick me about the ribs and head and finally to throttle
me. Two other guards arrived in time to prevent what
would have been my death, whereupon he administered several
more kicks and told me he would "finish me". He then ran
to the camp for his rifle and after a hurried discussion
one of the other guards took me into the jungle where he
informed me that Pte YESTER fully intended to shoot me
and that he and the other guards could nct prevent it
hapoening other than by hiding me. This guard Pte NUMARA,
hid me in a disused hut, and some hours later I was re-
turned to camp. Pte NUIRARA mustered the other PW and in-
formed them that YESTER had fully intended to kill me, and
warned them to avoid him whenever possible. Pte YESTER
refused to allow me to go to the nearby POW Hospital Camp
for treatment until several days had elapsed, and threat-
ened me with severe punishment if I reported the matter.
I later reported the matter to Lieut-Col C.M. BLACK,
213 Res M.T., Coy, and I was acmitted to hospital in
spite of opposition from YESTER, who withheld my bedding
etc. After approx three weeks in hospital undergoing
treatment for contusions and "black outs", YESTER suc-
cessfully demanded my return to camp and three days
later he thrashed an Australian private named CASEY for
not buying cane sugar from a source which yielded YESTER
material gain. On my intervention to stop this thrashing,
YESTER loaded his rifle and was about to shoot Pte CASEY
when he was disarmed by other guards who fortunately ar-
rived on the scene.

/Corroborative
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Corroborative evidence may be obtained from Sgt E.
Allen, 2/6 Fld Coy PAE, Dvr ™, uller9 2/3 Fes M.T. COXY
AR, Pte €. Patching, ﬁIF, and Spr E. Caldwell, 2/6 Fld
Coy E.A.5. ATF,

As 2 result of the beatings about the head I suifered
from lapses of memory and hallucir qtiops for a period of
eighteen months and Vn?;l"’ treatments fcr same at Changi
Hospital from September 1944 to uarbmry 1945,

Whilst in cha f a
above) I was forced early in Sep er i
member of the party to guard 2 Burmese ci
been brought to the camp by a Xorean FULLQ9 whose name I
do not knew, who was in charge of 18 Kilc (amc, Burma-Thai
Railway cattle party. AIF members of this party informed
re that the Burmese hacd heen forcei to acromoany them from
a spot between PETPU and 18 Kilo Camp. where they had met
him walking zlong the rcad. The Burmese was tied to a
wooden seat by our 0‘3IthS an¢ I was infcrmed that if he
escaped, myseif and the other FO¥W responsible wovld be
tied in his plzace The Guards then b o\eedgi to get
drunk and at fraoven* intervals dur
they in turn unmercifully thracshed the 5u:m se about the
body with a six foot bamboo pcie. After several hours
of this intermittent treatirent they forced a Burmese
civilian who was passing by, to thrash his countryman,
and they insisted that he thrash him about the head and
chest in order to inflict wounds by means of the bamboo
pole which nad nov become split for about two feet of its
length. When the Burmese wielding the pole tended to |
ease off in the beating, the guwerd struck him several
times to enforce more drastic wislding of the bambon.

When the Burmese was thrashed to a point of insensibility

and was raw and blesding severely from head wounds the

guards decided to shcot him and orcdered me to provide two

POW's to assist the Burmsse to a spnot some 400 yards from

the scene of the tnrachineg and to kU“J the body after the

shooting. Two guvards nzmec Pte XINC and another private

named YESTER each fired a bullet into fthe Burmese after |
which they ordered the two POY, Pte YULSING and Pte

VERBALS of the PRoyal Netherlands Forces to bury the

body. Ptes VERRAAS and YULSING witnessed the shooting

and reported the details to me on their retirn to camp. |

The Burmese had in his possession a fair sum of
money which to the best of my belief was later taken by
the Korean gvards.

Corrobo-ative evidence may be obtained from Sgt C.
Walsh and Sgt. E. Allen of 2/6 Td Coy, FAE AIF, Dvr W,
BULLER, 2/3 Res M.T. Coy LIF Shr Ea Jc€wei1 2/6 Fd Coy
RAE LIF, and Ptcs YULSING and VERBAAS, of R.N.F., Javae

The Korean guards mentioned were under the command
of a Japanese officer, Lieut NEITO, of Retpu POW Hospital

Camp.
I certify that the foregoing evidence is true and correct.
fsf &. B. Cullen WOIT

Taken and sworn before me at Sydney
this eighteenth day of January 1946

E. Philp
Commissioner
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SYNOPS IS

HaINAN ISLAND.

a) Prosecution Document numbered 5335, the affidavit of

Dre 7, AITKIN, is now offered for identification, the marked excerpts
being produced in evidence, This iffidavit states thet in November,
1942, 263 officers and men P/ arrived in Hainan. The atcommodation
for the draft which consisted of sick, weak and aged men, was appall-
ing., Huts were infested with vermin, ganitary arrangements were
primitive and since the cump was situated near a drainage swamp,
mosquitoes were ubiquitous, TFood was generally inadequate and some-
tines grossly insufficient,

Between November, 1942 and August, 1945, there were 2,430
udmissions to hospitul. There werc 60 deaths due to disease,

Sick men were forcec to go on working parties, where the
work wus heavys. Men were frequently beaten,

4 couwpleint to the Cump Comwndant reg.rding the reduction
of food resulted in the witness and wnother officer beiny beaten.
Requests to the Jupunese M.0e to supply diugs und for improved diet
were iznoreds peaths were sometimes shewnon death certificates as
due to starvation, The M.0's reply was thut if the witness continued
to shew death as duc to sturvation,he would shew the prisoners what
death from sturvetion really meant.

b) pProsecution Gocumecnt numbered 5264, the iffidavit of
lajor I, B, MuCRAL, is produced for identificution, and the marked
excerpts therein now offered in evidence, The document states that
in November g 1542, the witness arrived in jminan with a draft of mene.
He coniirms the conditions deseribed in the preceding document Nos5335,
The men were engaged on building works for the use of the Jupanese
ariy, and were beaten and kicked while so doinge

Many men went to work barefoot, owing to lack of footwear.

In Haisho there were many coolics working. They were
starved wnd emaciated in appearsnce, The witness saw the dead bodies .
of coolics draggzed out of the hospital, " hen he passed by; sometimes
as many as ten to twelve,

For brecaches of c¢iscipline, coolies were brought to the p/W
Cump wherce they were flog.ed and given the ater torture.

In July, 1943, about 120 Chinese wcre buyonetted to death
outside the Camp,
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¢) Prosecution Document nwmbered 5250, the Afficavit of
ie Fo TINSOR, is now introcuced for identification, the marked excerpts
thereof being offered in evidcnce, The Gocument states thut about 120
chinese were beyonettcd to deeth in 1943, because narcotics huad been
illegally brought into & coeclie camp and these men chosen at random were
executed as a warning for the future.

d) prosecuticn Gccument numbered 5251, the iffidavit of MAJOR RlGe
TURNER, is produced for Tdcntification, the marked excerpts thoisof
bein,, introduced in evidence. This asffidavit cznibits 29 official
photcsruphs teken by an Allied officer of prisoners of wer reccvered at
Hainen 18land in jugust, 1945 These exhibits are now tendered in
evidence,
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STATEITNT CF I Sil IIGIC (KOSANINE OFe, KYAIKTO)

Name; G SLN NGUE (ephew of U Sil7 KHO of K.VTIN village
murdered by IEMPEITAI, KY.IKTO)

igey 39 years,

Father; U P/N AYE,

caste; Burmcn, Buddhist,

Address; KOSLNINE Nre, KYAIKTO (15298)

——

I'G S4AN NGiL, having been duly affirmed, states -/

o—

I solemnly and sincerely declare that I will tell the truth,
the whole truth, nothing but the truth,

1B jor KHAWASIYT of I’Yhncmo ICEI’P’"I‘I&-I,  canie to KAWTIN vrnllabe (145099) .
vhere my uncle U SN KHO and myself were residing. The KEMPEITAI
searched our house and took away the followingproperty together with
my uncle as their prisoner;-

(1) 2 Bicycles,
! (2) RB.300/- Pritish coins,
(3) Rs. 70,000 Jap currency.
g (4) 411 furnitures and clothin(_;s:_j

The KEIPEIT..I did not tell me the reasons for ny unclets
i arrest.s Since that day I did not hear anything about ry uncle. Only
when the Jap surrender took place T heard that ny uncle had been tor-
tured to deuth by the KEIPEITAI of KYAIXTO (date NOT known), But a
prisoner who escaped from the custody of the a/m KEIPETAI H.N. (vhich
was situated in a garden between TV IKPI (115596) and PHEHKILEIK (15497)
told me that my uncle was put in the same pit with him and tortured
R Igggngllcss.’l.y.4 The escaped prisoner!s ndme is MG TUN YI of TAROKTAN Ore s
i KY.IKTOe I can definitely c’ccte thet [op imy uncle ifell a victim to the

; KEMPEITLT tortures becouse he! has not returned to his home since he was
! crrested J

(e e o
(signed) x x x x
(8427 NGTE)

Reccrded by re on 15 Nove 45 at FYAIRTO (17 5298)

(8igned) DiL KOe Lt
Det 602 F,S.S.
63 1nd. Inf. Bde,

This statenent has been read over to the witness in a language which
he understands and has been acknowledced by hin to be correct,

(Si[;lCd) BA KOy Ets
Det'602 F.SOS'
63 Tnd, Inf. 2de,
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IN THE IMTTER QF VAR CRIIES COM/ITTED
BY THE JAPANESE TN BURMA.

R e M e .

—
I, Lieutenant-Colonel EDVAHD LiEFLLVN ST, JOMN COUCH, Royal Arny Service
Ccorps, with present address av Hy silied land Forces gcuth East Aisia,
Singupore, nalke cath and say as fcliows;-

1, I am a gelicitor of the Supreme Court of Judiceture in Fniaund
and I now hold th2 appointment of Assistant Judge Advocate General, VWer .
Crimes Jezal gection, Allied Iend Forces South past Asia.

2e I have been in correspondence with 11Q BURMA Command concerning
the alleged massacre by the Jepzrese in June 1945 of a number of women
and children civilian inhabitants of the village of ERAING in Burma,

3. Investigticns are far from complete and up to date I have
received only tunree statemsnts from eye-witnesses; copies of the
said statements boing now produced and choun to ne and marked "EBAING A",
"EBAING B", and "ERAING C" respectively and hereuuio anncxed, R

4. I have personally examined the said copies with the said
original statcments and that the last mentioned were received at this
HG from H3 BURIMA COMUAND,

Se——.

i
SYORN by the said paward Llewvellyn )
Ste John CCUCH at singopore this ) (signed) E,Ll. St.J. COUCH,
17th day of April 1946, ) It .001,
Before ne,
(cigned) ? (i/e war Crimes Legal Section,)

An officer detailed by the
Conmender-in-Chief ATFSFA
to interrogate wiinesses,
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L

By
"EBAING A",
e i

T7IS is the copy statement marked "EBAING A" referred to
in the affidavit of 1t. Col, Fdward Llewellyn st. John COUCH hereunto
annexed ené made before me this 17th day of April 1946,

(signed) ?
co lonel.,

OHN IVATNG (25 years) d/o UNGE and ]MA CHAN THA of EBAING village, having
been duly affirmed states;

I recognise this men (W,0, TOYAO YASUIMASA) and pointed him out
on the identification parade, On about the 24th June 1945, early in the
morning this man with another Japanesc soldier came to the house where I
was living. The other soldiers could speak purmese and told us that we
had to go to the phongyi- Lyaung to collect permits for cultivation,
This was done only to allay our suspicions. I had slept fhe night in
U Nga luley's house and many others had come there for the night as they
were frightened of the Japs who had arrived the previous evening, These
two scldiers took all the womenfolk and children to Ah Nyain's house
whore we found about 30 women and children, There were a number of Japs
near ah Nyaing'e house., We were pushed inside and after about two hours
ve were fired on by machine guns, The firing continued until all the
erying and mcaning had ceased, I was wounded in my right hip,under my
left arm and on'my right hand., 7If any one cried out the firing started
up againe 7hen everything had been gquiet for some time smoke began
filling the room and one side of the house was on fire, I tore up some
floor boards and escaped., After runnihg about 30 yards I was fired on by
the Japs but not hit. I met & san rTheen 'in the evening and stayed
together in the' junge.. The.next morning two i@rens, whose names T do not
remember, found us and carried me' to Minkathit village where I remained
three months,recovering from my wounés; I then returned to ny sister's
house near EBAING. ;

e e i

-~

This statement has been read over TRATEG vELS '
to the 'witness in a:-langusage she

understands and has been acknow- 1eft Thumb print of
ledged corrects i rd g - OHN IYAING,
: 1dent1

nccorded by me on 23rd Novemberlsuf at an /ficaion parade at’
IMOULMEIN 1'AIL. '
(Slgned) Ge I} LEWIS.
v 1 O50a9eY o
3 Pln., BIC. Att: 17 Dive
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This is the copy statement nﬁrked "EBAING B" referred
to in the aAffidavit of 1%, Col. Fdvard ILlewellyn st. John COUCH
hereunto annexed and made before me this 17th day of april 1946,

(sigred) ?
Colonel,
MA SAN THEEN (aged 20 years) d/o CHIN I.LA and CHAN LAY of EBAING
village, having been duly affirmed states;

i I recognise this man (Corpe. TOYAZAKTI HIROSHI) and pointed

him out on the identification parade, On about the 24th June 1945,
early in the morning before dawn, he came to our house with two others,
with me in the house were five people, my mother, two sisters and
brother., 1 mother and two sisters and nyself were tied togethecr by
our wrists and taken by these three soldiers to AYE MG's house, This
man whom I recognised took away one of my sisters from AYE IG!'s house

{ and I have not seen her sincej she was probably killed with the others
d d4n AH NYAING's house, AYE IMG!'s house was crowded with women and

i children, After some time the Japs started firing at the house with
machine guns, While the people were with me shouted and cried the
firing continued. I was hit on my right elbow but was saved from
death as I was under other bodies. Then the house started to burn I
Jjurped out through the window and ran off into the jungle where towards
eveningI met OHN MYAING who was badly hurt. The next morning we were
found by two Keren men who took us to MINKATHIT village.

e
..

This statement has been reazd over

to the witness in a language - . x X
she understands and has been 1eft Thumb print of
acknowledged corrcet. MA SAN THEEN.

Recorded by me on 23rd Nove 1945 at an identification parade
held at MOULIEIN JAIL.

(sigeed) G.I, LEWIS,
Capt.
3 Pln. B.I.C. Attd. 17 Div.



rvidentiary pocument # 5138,
o - ‘ !

; { ‘mamecr.

THIS is the copy statement marked wIBAING C" referred to
in the affidavit of Ite Cole Edwerd ILlewellyn st, John COUCH hereunto
annexed and maede before me this 17th day of ipril 1946,

(sirmed) ?
COLONZL.,

SESDURESEIES

‘i AH YT d/0 Ah Nyein and Nan pi of Ebuing, having been duly affirmed statesye
é I reco nise this man (ZUITRA SHIRO) and pointed him out on the

| identification parade. On the 24th June 1945, before dawn he came to ny
; house, pe came with another soldier. Ainother [irl, AH YONE was with me
{ in the house., This Japanese soldier tied my left wrist with cord and

! led me out of the house; the other soldier did the same to AH YONE, Ve
were taken throush the compound towards AYE IG's house,  AH YONE and her
i escort was separated from us in the jungle. .s I followed this man I

! freed my wrist and ren off into the junle. He fired after me but did

not hit me. I ran about a mile from the village and stayed in the jungle
for two days without food, I then went to a Karen's house in the jungle
and next day he took me to my sisterts house in KYONSAUK.

g e,
This statement has been read over
to the witness in a language she X
understends and has been acknow- Left Thumb print of
led;ed correct, . AH ¥I;

necorded by me on 23rd Yov. 1945 at an identification parade held at
IDULI EIT JAIL. v :

(sizned) G,I. ITVIS.
' Capte.
=¥ 3 Pln. B.I.C. Att: 17 Divn
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FORII OF STATEITIT,

[ stutement of captain J,C,B., BURDECIN (307036), en officer
of the goyal Berkshirc Regiment, detailed te investi ote war crimes
by the coimander-in-chief, sllied Tand Forces, gcuth East Asia.

I have Leen investi ating war crimes in the MOULMEIN crec, the
pajority of those cormitted in that area were cormkted in the last five
nenths of the war., The BURIT pefence [riy went into revelt i ipril, and
British parachutist units. working with theil; 1ade a 'sericus threat tc the
Jepenese rear. The Jaranese rade every effort to smash these forces befcre

the Fourteenth ‘rriy could rmke a secborne attack alon, the ccast. The

crircs cormitted before . pril were rostly of an anti-es;ionage nature, or
resulting from the recapture of Ds'’ who hed eseceped from the BURLL.~SIAM
Railway, or fron the capture cf Allied airmen whe were broucht down in

+ that area,

The cases listed below are at present under investijation;

& The Case cf the 27 mMissing Burians.

The Tempei Tai arrested about 150 peoj:le in the MOULIZEDLN area
who were suspected of politieal offences, 27 of these were reuoved from
; the MOULMEIN Jail on 24 July L5 uncer stron; esccrt. Since this date,
t.ncne of the men have returned to their hones, nor have their families
received any word of ther, The IOULMELT Xerppei Tai state that they were
relcased on the 24th, and deny they were rermoved under cscort, btut there
arc many witnesses to the fact that they were bounéd und under escort when
reoved,

A Kempei Tai officer nade a stoatenent to an Intellijence officer
of 17 Ind piv in Nov 45, stating that they had shct the men and burned the
corpses; but he refused to si_n the stater:ent and ncw denies all knowled,_e

——————

of the incicent,

The 27 were all leaders of the local [FIFL, RED. and Youth Iea ue

_+orsanisations.

I ITa The ERLTNG lTssacre.,

In Jun 45 a punitive expedition of Japanese infantry, accompanied
by Kempei Tei, went to ER.ING village in search of ;llied paraclutists,
and their accorplices, The Japanese crrived in the evening; and crrcsted
tlie vhole village, They scparatcd the wemen and children fron the ren,
Surly the next orning they tied the villagers into _roups of 10 to 12,
First, they rermcved the nen to the villege pyoda, :nd opened fire on them
witih 2 machine-guns, killing all., The woren and children were Gealt with
in the sane way, gone babies in wrims were bayonetted to death, In all,
97 people werc killed, the only survivers being 2 . irls vho escaped

‘althou;h wounded., One girl had 7 bullet wounds, The Jajyanese then
jburned down the villege,
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IIXe The FALAGON lassacre.

convicted. Jj punitive epq;edi-:ion of infantry and Rempei Tai was sent
to destrcy KiL.GON villege, with the result that sone 630 Persons were
killed and thrown down the, village wells, The charge azainst the
villagers was that they were helping Allied paratroeps in that wrea,
The villgge wus supplying thaich and food to parcchutists, |

This case has alrcady been tried. and the Jupunese concerned

IV. Six rurésers at THATON,

In the course of anti~-parachutist activities in the TIIATON
{ arec, six nen were arrested, These nen were confined in the THATON
i enpei ol loek-up for a week, and then taken ewt and shot, Their

bedies were rescued by their parcnts ithe nijht after they were slict.

Ve Seven Juvders at SH.NZU Villace.

i small force of Jupanese Kerpei Tai went to SUNZU village in
the last week of July 45. They had orders fron the 0,C, Kempei Tai,
MOULMEIN, to arrest and kill 19 men, of these, only seven could te
found - these ren were suspected of helpin;parctroops, These seven
were shot in front of several witnesses and their bodies were recovered
later,

Vi, Ferpei Toi .cetivities in MOULIETN Jail,

At present,six people are known to have died as u result of
torture in MOWNEIN Jeile of thess, four died after release, and two
| died in the Jail, I au in possession of sce 40 affidavits relating to
i tortures in the Jail; these tortures ronged from beating to water and
5 electric, tortures.
I e
ﬂ,,f’VII, Atrocities cf the RTATE.RTIX Lerpei Tei,

-

|

; I".."K..REIF was used as a base for ;illicd operations in the

i DalI Forest area, of which EALAGCN end ER.LING formed a part, guspects
| wvere brouht into K. F.RLIK for interrogation, which, in rncst cases,

i included torturc., gSome 20 people died of tortures received there.
| o
™

%

" VIIT. Te TAKLR. Cases

)

i

} 4 party of pempel Tai went to TUILRA and arrested 25 reople
,susl‘ected of anti-Japunese activitics of these 2k, the w. P, kil.]ed
I_S and released 15; thoy left L with the J: apaness gasrison, which

{ killed then., The bodics cf $hese ren have beeu recoversc, and there
}were witnesses tc the killiings,
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3.

» The Four Missin; Royal lurines.
() J

L} royel 1arines 6f the §,0,G., were larded on BILUGYUN I, in
© L;ril 45. The men were cajtured and seen alive in the X.T. lock-up
' iIn MOUIIEIN; since then they have disappecred. They were NOT
repatriated as st at the surrender, It has been proved that they
were in unifcrn, and were carryin; unconcealed arr_is./“

\RANGOQL (sigmed J. BURCHLE (%) Captain
JCBR/" TR mvestisater.,

certified that the above stetenent is accurate and ceorrect.

(si ned) ?
11 JuL 46 colonel
JDC/ IR eCeL.0,, Burza Cormand,
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: f (T}m TSORT OF LIFTUTEMLMT COLONEL ..M., STURROCK, DPRLSIDENT,
MO, 4 iR CKilES COURT, R.NGOON, ON THE ".R CRIILS TRILLS
COMLETTD LT R.NGOON,

Mjor ICEIK:4A Seigi
Captes SIXKLMKXI Scburo
capt. OKURD Yozo
Cd‘_b o YarLGiSa i Izul'.';i
capt . IMIDORIEAY.. Hisashi
Med. 2/7%, USyr Kiychiro
Licut, TASHIMA JYehiro
Licvt. T,UEI Shczo

all of the Frd Bn., 215 Rectei (33 Pives Tadsdie

capte HIGLSIT Noburo
V0. FUJSITRA Ryozo
s/imj. KOB Y.SHI Akira
Sote MLCUT. Teshiyuki
sete NOVDLTO Irinni
Cpl. IMORLIDTO Seiichi

all nembers of Kerpetai,
CH.RGES:

411 accuscd were charged in the first place with cormitting a
war crime in that they were concerned in the unlawful killing of men and
worien and children, civilian inhabitants of K.ILAGON, and in the second
place with com:itting a war criue in that they were concerned in the
unlawful beating, torture, woundingend other raltreatrent of the said
civilian inkabitants of KALAGON, .

k The first naned accused Mujor ICHIK.Y.. Scigi was further charge
with the unlawful abduction of wonen from the said village of RKAL..GON .)

TROSECUTION:

Trosecution case consisted of the evidence cf several villagers
from ¥.J.GON, a Ifaren by naiy SAL7 KA KU who had served as an Interprete:
with the Fenpetai and statenents by several of the accused.

The evidence wus to the effect thut the 3rd battalion along
with a number of Rempetai personnel went on an expedition to Xil.GON:
the villagers were rounded up; sone of then were interrogated, by the
xerpetai and later the villogers were nassacred by the Japanese soldiers
on the orders of accused ICHIK.TA, the operagkn being superinbended by
Iis junior officers.
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rated v.'erg 1n gjﬁn%grg&iaa&ions it was allcged that perscns interro-

DEFIICE:

The defer.ding officer asked the court to dismiss the charges
against certain oi' the accused on the ground taat there was no case to
answver, The Cours held (1) that there was no ease aguinst Sote NLGLTL
and accordingly founé hin ot guilty (2) all the nenbers of the 3rd
battalicn must nate their defence on all charges and (3) that the remain
ing rmembers cf ths reupeta: rmst answer the second charge bu¥ that there
was no case against then with the eReeption of accused NOMOTO on the firsi
char;e in respect of which a verdict of mnot juiltye was ehtered. Leeusel
NOMOTO had to maks his defince on both charges.

All accuied clectad to give evidence.

The defence on tkte first charge by the nembers cf the 3rd
battalion was that the cperation hud been carried out under superior
orders, as a mcasure of raprisals, wund that it was not obviawely illegal,

In additicn it wi.s subuitted that the acecused OKUBO, S.KAMAKI,
USUI and T.LIEI hod not beenm concerned in the operation and should there-
fore be found 'not guilty vy, These accused, althoul present, were, it was
subniitted, enge ed only ol: work which was lejtinate,

on the seccnd chfwrge the defence was a denial that there was any
unnecessary ill-treatment,

The defence of Mijor ICHIK.WA on the 3rd charge was that the
worien were taken of their own free will.,

The defence of tle meubers of the Kempetai on the second charge
vas denial of the allegations with the further defence by Capt. HIGASHI
that as he was not present at g I1.GON and had given no order for the use
of ill-treatent, he shoulé not be held responsible.

The defence of NCMCTO on first charge was a denial.
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\ FODDGS D SINTEITES.

Nane

Major ICHIKL . Seigi

Capt. SIKLMAKI
Saburc

Cept. QFUBQ Yozo

Cepte MIDORIK.LVL
Hisashi

Lieut. T.SIIML
Iehiro

leds 2/1t. USUI
Tiyohiro

Licut. TiFTI shozo

Copte YLNAGISATA
Tzuial

Capte HIGASHI Noburo
7.0, FUJIU.Ri RyOZ0O

st/ j. TOBAYLSHI
dkirs

SCte MOMOTO Tinni

Cple IMMRIIOTO
Seiichi

P.asnd 3 n 2

Guilty of .11 3 charges

with certain dnor
exceptions.

Guilty.

ot Guilty

Guilty

Not Guilty

anc. Charse guilty

L " L

1st Chariec Mct guilty

Mct guilty.

5

sentence

Death by hanglng

10 years irprisonient.

10 years impriscnuent

De at h by shooting.

Decat h by shooting.

10 years impriscnuent

Deat h by shootings

years imprisonnent

5 years irprisonment

7 years irprisonment

Findings and sentences have now becn confirmed,

NOTT OIT ZVIDINCE:

The ppsecution witnesses related how cn the arrival of the
Japanese at the village of ralagon, the villagers had been athered
togetihicr and the men put in the iosque and women and children in the

neibhbcuring Zayet,

interrogation by the Xempetai,
of interrogation was the Interpreter QLW XK. KU.

Thereafter a few of the vill.gers were taken for
The 1most reliable witness on the method

He testified that sone

cf the wvillagers had been beaten, that their hands had been tied behind
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their backs, & rope fixed tc the cord binding. their hands passed over

a bean on the roof and the viectin pulled off the (round. 7hile handing
in this exceedingly puinful position the interro_ation had gone on and

the victin frequently beaten,

The actual nwssacre was carried out by taking the villagers
in groups of abcut 25 to the nearby wells vhere they were bayonetted and
then thrown into the wells,

The defence called as witnesses Ccl. TSURXADA, the cormander
of 213 Re_ts and Capt. IZ..T4AYAM., his operational staff officer. In
evidence both these officers stated that the operation of FIL.GON was

Col. TSUIZAD.. however in answer to the questions by the court
suested tk ICHIK.ATA had certain discretion as to whether or not he
would kill égg?the villagers, The witness stated that what was done
by ICHTZiZ &nd his battolion was in conformity with their orders and
thut/lcalx“th had in no way excceded his orders.

o

/ Col. TSUIZAD. expressed the vicw that lack of time and shortage
/ of manpover were anple Justlflcatlon for dispensing with any trial in
,,,,, ~the case of the inhabitunts of F.L.GON end that as the Japanese were

satisfied the villagers were uctir‘ in & manner hostile to the
occupyind power the circwastances were sufficicntly grave to force the
Jalancsc to carry out the nass execution,

a3 Mmjor ICHI.L'. when asked the follcewing questions;

fNle Do you really think that women and children were actin;, against
3 the Japanese ariy.

Ae YES.

e How do you justify the killing of the infant children.

Le There was no other alternative wey of dealing with the children
Qe Ixplain that a little further,

Ae First, within the orders I rcceived, the killing of the children
was also included, TIf I spared the children they would be
orphans, and as such they could not have a living, In order

to suve tine and carry out ry duties, I could not help killing them.,/
Accused MIDORITAVA cave the follcwing ansvers to questions;

Qe Do ycu not think then since you consider the order you have
received unlawful it was your duty to make comments to your
senior officer ICHIKAlL..

As I do not think it unlawful,

e D¢ you think the killin  of women and children in KALAGON a
Jawful order,

Ae I camnnot say whether it was a lawful order, but due to the
uilitary nceessity and force of circwistances the higher
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cormand had issued the order after considerin: the circumstances.
sc I believe it teo be rizhte.

fe 7You believe that any order issued to you by supericrs is lawful
order,

Le TUp to now we have always considered an order frcm higher cormand
tc be correct.

s To be lawful,

Le TIrrespective of anythin; an order given in the arry should be
exccuted sc that the final object of the war shall be & success.

n. Thercfore you are prepared tc do any order given by & superior
irrespective of whatever you yourself nay think about that order,

A» If it is an order of a superior officer I rmst obey the order
against anything, fire or waters

Cccl. TSUILD. in answer to the question:

f. .is a senior officer of the Japanese ;riy how do you justify the
neasures which were taken in KiI/.GON.

Ae The people of RALAGON villase were hostile towards the Japanese,
therefore they could be killed, It was pitiful to kill the
children but as they could not be teken care of by the Jupanese
arny they had to be killed,

Qe Do you consider that in all cases where people are hostile to you
you are entitled to kill then,

Le I an of the corinion that proper investigation should be made before

such hostile people were killed, but in consideration of lack of

time and manpower they had to do the killing,.

on the question cf use of force durin; interrojations, witness
KiT4AYLM: in answer to the question,

e I presune that there are circumstances in which it is lawful,

He YES

0. In what circunstances was it lawful,

Ae Circumstances are that if the pecple interrogated refuse cr refuse
to confess their puilt of their doings and if it affects victory
of the nation or if it is very important that the information
st be exact,

6. Is that the general principle accepted in the Japanese ariy in its
interrogations.

Ae I do not know whether it is a prineijle of Japanese ariyy to use
force during interrogation. It is just iy opinion,

According to the evidence of the Headman of the village who had
escaped, approxinately 600 villa_ers were collected by the Japanese,
abcut 195 women, 175 ren and 260 children, Only very few of those persons
escaped massacre.
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[2e¢ NL. L.t COURTS ANNEXD:

The accused;-
Capte UYENO lamsaharu
Capt. Y.ILZ/¥T Kanane
Menbers of or attached tc the Kempetai.

CIHARGE:

poth the accused were charged with committinga war erieein that
they were concerned in brutality towards and ill-treatment of certain
priscners of war resulting in the deaths of five of the said priscners.

TROSECUTION:

The prosecution case consisted of a rnurber of affidavits by
ex~-prisoners of war who had been held at one time in New Law Courts
inmexe Jail and staterents rmde by the accused, In this evidence it was
alle;ed that, following an atteipted escape the prisoners of war were
beaten mercilessly by cuards on the orders of Cept. UYENO; it was
further alleged that no medical attention was g iven to any of the sick
or injured priscners cf war, and that the deaths resulted from the
severe beatings and Ccorplete lack of medical attention,

DIEFINCE:
Both the aeccused elected to (ive evidence,

They also called Imjor LKIYAIMA Hideo on their behalf, The
defence pleaded denial of prosecution allejations, .sccused UYENO, in
particular, denied that priscners of wor were becaten after the atterpted
escape and also that he refused to allow nedicul attention tc be given
%o prisoners of war,

The Medical officer claimed that Le had never refused to give
necdicel attention when reguested; that his duties in connection with
the ;innexe were only part of a very large nwaber of duties which he was
expected to perfcrm and that he was seriously handicapped by lack of
rcdical supplies. :

s

[ FINDINGS AND SENTENCIS.

Name, P indidngos Sentene e
Capt. UYXINO lmsaharu Guilty Death by hanging,
capte YAMIZARI Konaiie Mot quilty,

Finding and sentence have been confirned,
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{ NOTL OF ZVIDINCL:

{ The affidavits produced by the prosecution contained considera
| eorrcboriticn of the faet thet the prisoners of wer were SQTjdHULy
| beaten iimedictely after the atternpted escape «nd ot inservals thereafitc

durin, the time they remained in the New law Courts innexe jail.

o
o
-

’” Frow the testimony of accused it appears that under an order
A from very high authority the irmen were to be treated differentiy fron
f. other priscuers ¢f war and we*g in fact to be regarded as criminal

1

1

|

!
|

V.

{ | suapects; he intention secms to have been that they should be charged

\¢Mif war eriminals con account of having carried out indiscriminate bombing
The accused contended that in their view the prisoners of war

should not have been lodged in this joil «nc that they rode representats

to that effect,

-

{3. NI L.7 COURTS C..SE.

P Y

Capt. N.G.ILRL I"enzo
cart. Yld‘u 71 Kanaie
2/L1£.ut. YOrOTa lesao
Cpl. NCDL l'eseni
41l newbers cr attached to the rerpetai,

t

|

'

! The accused;-
|

|

A1l acecused were char_ed with corixitting a war erime in that
they were concerned in the ill-treatment causing physicul suffering to
the prisoners of war interned at New Law Oourts jail,

The first three accused were further charged with ill-treatment
resulting in the death of four priscners of war,

The first naned accused and the third and the fourth named
accused were further charged with ill-trectrient resulting in the death
of another prisoner of war.

ind the second nared cccused was further charged with 111-
treatment resulting in the death of two wdditional priscners of war.

+ ROSECUTION ¢

The prosecution cuse consisted of a nunber of affidavits by
feromer prisoners of war, stoterents by all the accused and the testinony
of two eivilian witncsscs who liad been prisoners in the jail and of a
Jepancse corporal. |

-
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DEFINCE:
The accused NAGALR. and YAMAZ/XI elected to give evidence on
oath,

The accused YOIOTA and }MNOD. on the advice of the defending
officer declined to  ive evidence,

The defence was a denial of the allegaticn topether with a
clainz that in so far as the conditlions were unsatisfactory in the jail
it was not the fault of any of the aczused as they were not responsible
for the nature of the building, nwaber of prisoners to be housed, the
auantity of food available, the quantity of nedieal supplies and of the
fact that there were also cormion eriminals in the jail.

m respect ¢f accused JOD.. a further point was mude regarding
he methced of identification which it was claimed, was improperly carried
cut and could not therefore be accepted by the ccurt.

- ‘

* PINDINGS AND SENTENCLS.

e ie., Pl onidsasniysg; gentenece,
Capts NAGAMIR.. XeDnzo ‘Guilty of lst eharge. 4 years iipriscnment

Mot Guilty of the rerain-
ing charses'

Capte YiIMZANI Kanaue Mot Guilty.

e i [ 8 YOEZOTA Iwmsac egnilty of the lst eharie., 2 ycars imprisonnment
1ot guilty of the
remaining charies.

Crl. NODA lmsami Noet Cuilty.

The finding s and sentences have been confirmed,

1]

. NOTT ON EVIDUNCTs

This case was similar tc the previous cne in that it conecerus
the treatiment of Airrien prisoners cof war, .8 in the .nnexe case if was
claimed that these cirmen were lodied in this jeil on orders from high
cormend because they were regarded as eriminal suspects, The 0,0, of
the jail stated that in his view it was wron: that prisoners of wer
should be put into this jail but that he had no alternative but to
accept them when they were sent,

He said he nacde representation to have then rewoved to a OV
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L. EDVINGOIT CusSE.

The accused:
' Cple dDIPA Macdc
Capt . HIGASII Fcboro
2/1t. MR Y5, Isaku
: 2/iBj. KOBAYASHI ikira
Scte NAFASIITHY. Tckyoshi
Sto SHIOT: Toshihire
St . TOYAMA Ryosaku
Cple R.BA Mitsuru
s/Tte. 0GATL, IMigaku

all nenters of cr attached to the Kempetai,
ARG

411 accused viere charped with cormydtting a war cerime in that
i they were concerned in the ill treatilent of civilian residents of the
villa;eé of YDDUINGON and N/.UNGLON.

“RO COUTION:

/ The prosecution case consisted of evidence of nine witncsses
frcr the village of YEDINGON who alleged that they Lad been arxrested by
;'.tuc Kempetai and incarcerated in Joulmein jail for a period of approxi-
inately 19 days,.

\
\

\ They alleged torture by water torture, electric torture and
Deatings during interrojations,

A1l accused were identified by several of the witnesses as
i having been precent either at the time of the arrest or in the jail during
the interrogaticns,

The accused Cple BABL Mitsuru tendered plea of _[uiltye.

—%

/11 the other accused plcaded not juiltye.
DEFENCE:

The eneral defence was a denial of any ill-treatuent. The
acusd Col. TR. &nd Cept. HIGSHTI denied that they had any knovledie of the
arrest or ill-treafrent of any of the witncsses,

The accused XOBAY..S'I, SHIOT.. and TOYAl%. while edwitting presence
at the time of the arrect, claimed that tlhey hud never been in Ioulein
jail during the period when the witnesses had been impriscned.
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The accuscd 0GalL. maintained that he was only e criver and had
nothing to do with the interrc ations or ill-treatient nor did he act at
any time as a suard,

£13 accused elected teo give eviaence,

In evidence accused NLKLYLI adritted that hie had ordered use of
torture.

R The defence also ecalled us witness St. 1®j. FURKUDL whe stated
that NOLY.J1%., 7.0. IDIGCHORT and hinself had been respomnsible fex the

“ay

ill-treatient of scie of the witnesses fcr the presecuticn.

The defence &lso precduced an admissicn by 77,0, IDLGOIMORI of the
ill-treatient.

(vote: 1.0, IDEZGOMORI as cne of the accused on the original
chor e sheet und the churge was withdrawn as he was
unfit to stend trial cwing to illness,. )

"FODIES D SITINCES.

! N ane, Eciin d 1 8.2, gentences

: Ccle IDET. Nado Guilty 8 years impriscnment.

i Capte INIGLSHI Noburo Guilty 8 years imprisonment.

} 2/1t. WE.YIE. Tseku Guilty 8 years irpriscnnent.

| S/MBj. FOB.Y..SHI .kira Guilty 6 years irmpriscnuent,

i Sute NMAASHTME, Tekycshi Guilty 3 years irpriscnment,

' s.t. TOY.LM Ryosaku guilty 6 years irprisonient.

i Cple EAR. Mitsuru Guilty 1 vonth's irpriscnnent,
| Sote SHIOT.. Toshihiro Jot Guilty

i 8/Tte. 0GLTA Migedku Not Guilty

(rote; The accused S/18j. FOB.Y.LSHI ikira was also cne of
the accused, found (uilty, in the K.ILGON case.)

The finding s and sentences have nct yet been confiried,

NOTZ ON EVIDENCE:

i This case is of iunterest because it was the first one in which
! an accused Lad aduitted in the witness box thaet the Terpetai did on
occasion use forece to extract inforretica,

The accused N JAY.MA confessed to having used the water torture
end gote Mpjor FURKUD. vho was called as witness adidtted use of eleectric
torture.




s oy

rvidentiary pocument # 5336.

1,

Cart. HIG.SIII who was one of the accused in the KuL1.GON case
—ud at that tiue denied that force was ever used by the Xempstal now
adnitted that on cccasion it rmight be used. But he was somewhat vague
as to what he meant by use of force curing interrogations.

In this case tortures used were;

(1) rater torture.

(2) =Dlectric torture.

(3) ©panging a person from & beanm with his hands tied behind his
back, while in this poaition the man would either be beaten
or civen eleciric torture, -

It would appear from this case that the use of force by the
Ferpéetai to cotain information was a comicn OCCUrTence.

S5e DRLNGOOM CENTR.L J.JL C.SL (T.ZUMI and cthers).

The accused;
Cayte TLZUNI Iotozo.
1st 1ts ONISHT ikio
SctelMaje. UEND Xiyoshi
S/Tte. UENQ Koiietsu.
nenbers of the Injperial Japanese AYIy.

CHARGES:

A1l accused were charged with cormitting a war erime in that
they vere concerned as parties to illtreatmnt resultin, in the death of
17 noned priscners of war and physical suffering to other prisoners cf
Hars

DTROSECUTION:

The prosecution case consisted of a very large nunber of
afficdavits by former prisoncrs of war and was to the effect that the
Alrmen prisoners of war wers treated differently from the other POWs
and were incarcerated for & long period in solibtory confinewment where
they received insufficient rations and practically no mdical attention
whatscever and that beatvings by tle puards were a frequent cccurrence,

The accused S§/Tte URNO was identified by his nickname 'licgy!
as a notorious beater,

It was alle ed that in the case of 1t. DRUIMEY he was deprived
of the carc of a coupanion because the medical officer ONISHI stated that
he would die in any case and this prisoner was left to die quite
unattended,
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rrosecution also colled as a witness 17, FULILRTON who had been
a prisoner in the Rengoon Centeol Jail from 1942 to the termination of
the hostilities., Hc has testified that conditions as regards the Lirmen
were worse than as resard ordinary DOI'S.

He identified all the accused,

It was stated in several cf the affidavits that the accused

-

T.7Z0MI was a betier ;rison cormandunt than any of his predecessors.)

DEFINCE:

The accused with thc exception of S/rte UEND, elected to give
evidence but subsequently It. ONISHI c¢n the adviece of the defending
officer declined to (ive evidence,

The defence consisted of & denial of the allegations of ill-
treatment.

The accused T.ZUMI clained that ke had done what he could to
improve conditions. On bchalf of accused ONISHI, it was claimed that
he was very badly frained and had little experience of medical natters
and in addition to his work at the jail he had duties in connection
with transit camp and that he wus cxceedingly short of medical suprpliess

Accused Sote MBje UINO denied the allegation against him of

ill-treatuient althouch he adnitted having on occasions slapped the POws.

—
' FINDINGS 4ND SENTENCES.

N &3 e Findln i Be sentence,
Capt. TiZUMI Motozo Guilty of ill-treatrxnt 7 years
of prisoners of war. inpriscnnent s
Lt. ONISHI rXkio guilty of ill-trcatment Death by
resulting in the death hanging

of Lt. DRUMEY and con-
tributing to the death of 10
other prisoners of war,

Sctelaje UENO Kiyoshi guilty of ill-treatnent. 3 years
imprisonment.

S/Tte. URNO Keoigetsu guilty of ill-treatent. 15 years
imprisonment. |

~

=

The findings and seniences have not yet been confirned,
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NOTE ON EVIDENCE:

This case like the New ILaw Courts innexe and New lLaw Courts jail

i cascs deals jarticularly with the ill-treatment of .irmen who were

prisoners of war. It appeared frcm the evidence that these men were
treated in a different fashion from ordinary priscners of war on instruc-

“ tions fron hich authority because they were regarded as criminal suspects.

The accused TAZUMI maintained that apart from keepin. themn
sepregated from other prisoners they were no werse off than ordinary
prisoners of war. He meintained that they got the sane ration of food
as ordinary non-working prisoners and that nmedical attention was not with-
held from then, e

In this cuse as in all the jail cases it appears that the guards
were for the most part a thoroughly bad type vho made a practice of

S’

The statement by the accuscd §/Ttc UENO nade to the Investigating
officer, in unswer to the questiong

0. Is there any other reuson for your beatin;; these prisoners in
cell block 5 sc frequently,

“Le. In september 194l I was told by a pFerpetai enlisted ron, whose
nare I do not remember, that it would be all richt to beat
these prisoners,

~ shows the attitude of nind of the cuards.

There is such a mass of testimepy in all the jail cases relating
to beatings that it secns’ 1m,oss1ble'tp'conﬁ to any conclusicn ‘other than-
that ‘such troatrent if not actlvcly encourabeu was at least pern1ttea and
rebardeu ‘as qulte norrnl. :

6. RLNGOON CENTR.LL JAIL CLSE (m‘.)

- The accused;
: S_,to Iu.]o m IMK'JII‘C.
a mombcr of the ILperlal Javunose hrrw.

CHARGEy
The accused was char €d w1th'c6mL1ttinba war crine in' thut he

was concerned in 1ll-troatrmnt resultlnv in- the death of K hm@ricun
prisoners of war, : ?

£

beating; and striking the priscners of war on the slightest HIOVOCuthH. ,//

\
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1,
TROSECUTION:

The prosecution case consisted of a nuuber of affidavits by
foruer prisoners of war, which alleged that the prisoners of war had
died throuch lack of medical treatwent and in particular that the
persons nared in the charge sheet who were brought in suffering fron b
severe burns when their aircraft crashed, rececived no nedical treatuent.

/

P

DZFENCI:

The defence consisted cf a denial of the allegations. The
accused elected to give evidence and on oath stated that he had iven
such treatient as he could to the .merican airmen who were very severely
burnt and in a eritical condition when they were brouht in to the jail,
He claimed to have carried out the instruections ;iven to hinm by the
medical officer,

\_Thc defence called as witness @pl. NOT.J'T who had been an
assistant to the accused and who corroberated his story.

The defence further called Mejor SHINMIZU a Japanese nedical
officer who gave evidence as to what mi . ht be expccted in the case of
patients sufferin; from burns of the nuture described to the court,

FINDIINGS .ND SENTENCES:

The court found the accused not juilty,

In announcing, finding the court stated that although they were
satisfied thot at some sta e after they crashed there had been & criminal
neglect in the treatnent of those airmen, yet they were quite satisfied
that there was nothin_. in the evidence to showr that the acecused could be
held responsibe in any way for what had occurred.

NOTE ON IVIDIMNCE:

In view of the fact that the accused in this case was acquitted
it is undesirable to draw any definite conclusion from the evidence, but
it does appear that the Japanese tock little trouble tc ensure that
wounded or injured prisoners of war were properly treated at an early
stage, |

(signed) 4,17, STURROCK
Lieut.Cclonel R, A.
Tresident, Noe 4 ar Crimes court,
Rangoon, 1M,i., LL.B,(Edin.),
riter to the Signet,
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Summary of examination of liaung bHu Gyl Occupaticn Coolie
Address: Kyonlaha Villagec.

Maung Bu Gyi, duly affirmed, states: I am 20 years of agec, of
Burrmese nationality and born at Kyonlsha,Viky permanent home is
at Kyonlaha Village, I am &t present living at Kyonleha Village.

On the day before the Japanese from Henzada Kempel Tai came to
Kyonleha Village to recruit coolies I was at the river front., 1
sew that one Burmesec woman Ma Thein Shin and four or five Indians
had been adrested by a party which had come from HENZADA,

I can speak some Japanese and was made to interpret for the Japs.
They asked the woman if she had stolen a mosquito net, The woman
defined it,

The woman was beaten zll over her body with the butt of a rifle,
She still denied the theft. Her hands were tied behind her back,
and one of the sleeves of her jacket was torn off with a bayonet.
Trhen she was stripped naked,

When the woman hed been beaten with the butt of the rifle her
nephew Mg. Tin Nyunt wes also arrested because he had been found
with a Japanese bock in his pocket,

The nephew, who was sixteen, was beaten, his hands were tied
behind his back and he was stripped, tooce

Both of them begged of me to plead for them and I did so. The
Jap Officer would not listen to me and he ordered both of them to
be tied to a railway cerriagc and made to stey in the sun. I came
back. C(Cn the next morning I went to the river side and found blood
stains., I was told by one of the Indians errested thet the woman
and the boy had been decepiteted. The Indian said he was made to
throw both bodies into the river,

I heard that two headless bodies were recovered from the river:J

s - voney Lol - —’

s/s/ Bu Gyi in Burmese characte
Interpreter.
I certify thet I duly translatcd the ebove sulmitary to the witness
in his own languesge prior to his signature which aprears abovee.
Affirmed before me 4'Astugues Ao Signature, Rank, Czptain,
Description: Investigator 17 War Crimes Investigation Team.

in officer detailed to examine the above by the Commender—in;Chief
£11ieé¢ Lend Forces, South East Asia.

(Luthoritys: ALFSEA Ver Crimes Instruction Ko. 1 para 7).

IT IS CELTIFIED thet the above statemcnt is the true cony of the
Originel Statement made by MHAUNG EU GYI,Coolie, KYONLANA VILLAGE
/s/ T.S,F. BULNETT Lt-Col
0.C. 17 War Crimes Investigatic
Team.
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Summary of Examination of Maung Tun Shwe Police Constable
Address: Henzadaz Poiice Sitation.

Maung Tun Shwe, culy afi
I am 31 vears of age, of Eurm'
My permanent home is at Lv
I am 2t present living gt

In Aprll or ley Jalgne:ﬂ Kempei Tai Cfficer (three lines an
two stats) Earada, WI05E yho jg_agh I recognise anong those shown
to me, and Mg. Mg Mya whose Japanese name I do nol kaow capme to

5
e

i
i
!
b @

Menzada P.S, t;,v ocdered as By o Blo ” « P.C's San Mg,
. 4
Chittee, Aye Mg., Mg, Han tTo aceernpsn LA&m,
9 g J
S TR, — -
Harada and Mg, M2. lLya were in Burmese dre

a SS.,
40 Jap soldiers, but I don't know wno was in charge,

(“)
Lf

We went to Inbin by train znd after two days' stay left Inbin
at 7 p.-m. to go to Nga Bat Kya wiilage. Wec arrived szt the
village at 4 a.m,

The Japanese soldiers surrounded the village and some men led
by Harada and Mg Mg Myes went® into the village and arrested the
headman's father who was about 60 years of age. L Chin was also
arrested,

of his howvse., L

The old men was ticd to a bench +
S nd water was poured on

piece of cloth was placed over hi

the cloth, Then he was tied to a po t and his feet were burned
with 2 burning firewood, IMg. Mg lMya ques uldneu him about the
death of a Japanese soldier, He replied that the soldier was
killed by some people in his houses, He had tried to step the
murder.

The Chin, Nga liyeuk, was ¢uestioned and tortured in the same
way as the old man. EHe said that he did not kill the Jap and that
he had itried to stop the killing, tut he arrived on the scene
too late. The killing was done by his two brothers=-in-law.

Mg. Mg. liys ordered the old man to teke him to the spot where th
Jap was buried. He ho.urnf . with the cep of the dead Jap. The
two prisoners werc tied and gU""UGQo

——— e —

Two women had also been arrested, They were kept in the hut
where Harada znd the officer were, That hut was about five huts
from the headmen’s house.

Sever 1 houses were set on fire by the Japs. The fire at
Nga Mysuk's house spread to eboat 10 houses.

BT
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4t about 6 p m. we left the village for Myin We Toaung. We
stopped at a vilizge on the way, but could not find the headman.
The next mornirg Harada, Lig lg hv" 7 or 8 Japs and myself left
for Sinkyone village to ‘nve:?1g the whereabout ol another
Jap who was missing. An oid man fbid us thet he had guided the
Jap as far as tone hills, The Jgps beiieved him and we turned to
Myin wa Taung. The nexi night we left for Inbin and arrived at
5 aelle

We stayed at one Phegyl kyaung with the Officer, Harade, lig
Vg Mya =nd some Jep soldiers. The rest of the Jap soldilers went
to another phongyi kyeung taking the two prisoners with them,
\\Fhe next morning we joined them at the olther phogyi-kysung.

At gbout 4 p.m. the two prisoners had their hands tied behind
their backs and were taken to a tremch in the paddy fieid opposite
the prongyi kyaurg. The police dug the trench, The 0ld man was
made to sgquat on the edge on the trench and Mg lig Mya cut off his
head, The Chin weas executed in the same Way Wnea the bodies
fell into the trench they were bayoneted by the Jap soldiers,
e

Harada end the Officcr were in the Phongyi kyaung at the time
of the execution,

e

That night we set out foi Myesnaung, When we arrived at
Gyaungbyut taw the JWps tried to enter a phongyi kyaunge They
were looking for guerillas., The doors were locked, They banged
on the door, made a lot of noise, when they gotv inside they
started to search. As they were searching some Jeps who had becen
left cutside brought in a man whom they had found near the
phongyi kyaung. He explained that he had hieerd the noisze and
thought that it was dacoit. He was so~r"h@d and a revoiver was
found on him., The Japs found an emp cartridge case in the revol-
ver and then identified the revolvsr as one which had been issued t«
a He-Ho guard end which had been StOlen from him after he had been
beaten. The men, Ko Kyin Sein, said that he had bought the gun
from a young men for 150 Es.

We proceeded to Htanbone bin where Fo Pein iinyaw wss arrested
becavse Ko Kyin Sein alileged thet he had fed members of the
resistance movement, At the hcadman'’s house two othcr men were
arrested,

Then we went to Myanaung and put up at the bungalow, After
about 2 week's stay two trenches were dug near the bungelow and
Ko Kyin Sein and Ko Pein Hnyaw were decapitated byk I believe,
the Jap officer,

One of the men arrested at the Headman's house was taken away
by Mg. Mg Mya, and the other returned with us when he left for
Henzada.

(8igned) Tun Shwe.
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Interpreter., '

I certify that I duly translated the above summery to the
witness in his own language prior to his signature which eprears
above,

/s/ Hla Nyunt,
Interpreter.,

Affirmed before me d'astugues AR, signature, Kenk, Captain,
Description: Investigator, 17 Wer Crimes Investigation Teem,

An Officer detailed to exemine the above by the Commender-in-chief,
Allied Land Eorces, South East Asia.

Luthority: ALFSEA Wer Crimes Instruction No. 1 pera 7.

It is certified that the above statement is the true copy of
the Original Stvatement made by Mg Tun Shwe, Police Constable,
Eenzada Police Staticn.

/sf 2. S, F. BURNETT Lt -Col.
0.Cs 17 War Crimes Investigation Team.
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Jleung Kin Mg. duly affirmed— S:-

- My permanent home is at Henzadas

— (1
Evidentisry Document No. 5347, /3y 44
FORM OF STATELENT.

Summery of examination of lMesung Kin Mg; occupation Student.
Address: Paukpenbyu St. Henzada,

I am 14 years of ag( f Burnese Egtionglity and born at Henzada, i
am 2t present living at 4
Henzadza,

One day in May, 1945, I took a Japanese Army bus from meer /
the Railway Station Hénzada to Ongun where I was employed as
a Japanese interpreter.

When the bus arrived at Ongun, I 2lighted near the gzrage.
At that moment, a Japenese Officer (1 line 3 stars) by the name
of YAMADA called to me to accompany him to a trench situated
close to the villaege guesrd post. I went with him,

In the trench, either standing or sitting, were seven Burmense.

s were all tied by the samec piece of rope. The Japanes

told me to ask the Burmans why they had been arrésted. The Burme

replied thet they were not guiklty, but did not give me the reason
for their arrest,

The time was then about 6 pm, Sitting quite near were two whi
men, I believe they were tied. et >
e 1 tled.

One was over 6 fect tall and wes wearing e kheki uniform
slacks and a tunic.j{ On his head wes & peculier sort of head gear
It iad 2 flat at the back, netting over the top, a turned up peak
in fronu ear fleps with straps which festened under the chin.

On his shoulder there was something epbroidered in English
cheracter, but I did not understand it. He was wearing black
boots something like Jack-bootss On one of his forearms, he
had a tatoo design, but it was partly covered by his sleeve and
I do not remember what it was. He had brown hair and a beard.
He had protruding teeth and protruding cheek bones, I could not
judge his 2ge, but he scemed to be about the age of the investiga:
tor (30). He was carrying & water bottle which had & blue-black
cover, He hed had 2 ring which the Japanese had confiscated.
The ring was light yellow colow, it might have beem gold:Inh
the front wes a three-teer gold circle and there was & monogram
on it.

PRS-

The other man was zbout the hcight of the average Burmzn
(5' 4"), He had a2 pair of shorts which he carried under his erm
and which the Japanese took from him.j.I saw YLMADA weering the
: He wes dressed 1n exactly the same way as
the first man except thet he had nothing embroidered on his
shoulder. On his shoulder strzp he had a2 bluc stripe. He had
brown hair and a beard and seemed older than the first man,
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& Lbout 15 minutes later the Jepanese officer with an escort of

‘25 soldiers led the 7 Burmens end the two white men to
cemetry., Before they were taken awesy these 7 Burmans of whom I

J kncw 4 or 5 beceuse they were my clessmates in the Jepanebe langua;

school, asked me as to how they were to be killed, They were

frightened because the soldiers had fixed the bayonets.

I asked the Japanese officer whd gave no reply.

1
|
1
I
{
|
! At the cemetry the Jap officer and 3 soldiers looked for trench«
; in the viecinity. They found one close by.
I wes standing about 70 yerds away. I was asked by the

Japenese to return to ONGUN but I wented to see, As I was an
interprcter I was allowed to stay. ST O

1 It is a Burmese custom to pray before being exccuted and I askeé
XhhADA for ‘permission for the men to pray. He a2llowed this,

One Burmen was taken from the group and ordered to kmeel on
the.edge of the trench, YAUADA cut off his head with a sword.
The other Burmens and the two white men could see what was going
Q « Then the other ken were killed one by one. I did not look

shut my eyes, put my hends over my ears and turned a2way s

Although I had my hends over my cars I could hear the blows
of the sword end the Japs saying "Oh, that one isn't dead yet,
bayonct “hin", I heard cries of "Oh éod“ coring from the trench.

Next day came the execution of the two white men. They were

siggpged of their clothes and were _completely neked. They rade

signs that they wanted to smoke ﬂnd were eac given»a cigarette.,

Then they were executed in the same way as the 7 Burmans, The
tall men was executed fixstJ ‘Eerth wos thrown onm thé bodies
and then the Japanese left tgking the dead men's clothing wi;h them

The next morning I wanted to go out, but I was not 2llowed 2nd
I was warned by the Lt, Col. SAITO's driver that I was not to tell
anybody about the execution, I was not allowed out for ten days

and Lt, Col SATTO himself warned me that he mould kill me if I
tmﬂ. ARSI < . ) T

' The murdered men I knew were lig Than, age 24 cf Henzada,
0 Mg Than, azge 35 of Teloketaw. Yauk Tet, age 20 of Henzada,

Ohn lig., age 17 of Henzada., and a nephew of Dew Weing Gyi
of Henzada.

r“-#g_£éve heard from coolies working for the Japgnese of other
‘ executions. Sometimes there were €xecutions of batches of six
| people, sometimes of batches of ‘wp to 30 people. }
| £ sl

——//—‘




. I never saw hinm standing up, I think his back was broken as he

}
1
!

I think he was taken to Rangoon, /
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‘ s of %ﬁé t¥nghite men the tell wég brough
in ebout 2 month-Before the exeerticn end the othcr one about 15
gays before the execution. I”ﬁﬁfﬁﬁfthey had been brought from
antanaw. s il :

»

_—Two months ore the arrival of the first
of these men a man with "NEW ZEALAND"on his shoulders was brought
to the ONGUN Gerrison. I think he was an airmen. He wore a gold
coloured badge with two lions on it on his arms. He had brown
hair and was clean shaven, I should think he was a t2ll men but

sat with his torse hunched forward. He was never taken to
hospital and never given medicel attention, While he was at
ONGUKN he .slept in the garden, The Japs had given him a2 mosquito
net end a ground sheet. 4 or 5 days later the man disappeared.

O — s

I can recognise the photograph of’Thenouchi who was known as
E lleung.

Signed Khin Maung.
erpreter.,
_ I certify theat I duly translated the
above surmary to the witness in his own language prior to his
signeture which appears above,

Signed, Hla Nyunt,
Interpreter.

Affirmed before me d'Astugues A.R. Signature, kenk, Capﬁeiﬁa
Descfiption Investigator 17 Wer Crimes Investigation Team, an
Officer deteiled to examine the above bgethe Commender-in-Chief,
Allied Lend Forces, South East Asia,
(Authority:- ALFSEA Wer Crimes Instruetion No. 1 parz 7).

It is certified that the above statement is the
true copy of the Original Statement made by Mg Kin lig, Studen
Paukpanbyu St. Henzada,

Signed Ts S. F. BURNETT Lt-Col,
04C4 17 Wer Crimes Investigation Tezm

.
1
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FORM OF STATELTNT,

r—-sun::zzry exanination of Mg PAN, Trader, 1UDON,

L. C3 34 —
Mationality CBarrcst, ">
Hore Lddresss SAZIN Ores, MIDOCN,

itness duly effirned statcs-

I was arrested in the early morning of the day before the
expedition tc¢ SILNY'7. by & IT, TUIT OHN was with hin, I was questioned
end tortured all that day by gut.ipj. TUMURO Noriharu, The only reason
I can give Ior ry crrest is that I come from SHANYWA Village and I would
be able to recognise the man the Japs wanted.

The next norring I accompanied the party cormended by st. MEj.

T/AITURO Norihoru, TLN KIN CHOON was also with this party. We went by the
short cut over the hills; we had only gone about a mile out of MIDON
when we net about 200 villagers hringing vegetables to IMDON., Scte IBJe
AITURO Noriharu stopped these people and mode thew sit downy T was told tc
¢o round and see if the following people were awmong then - LUN SHEIN,
NGA XVE, SAN 1IN, A EE, AH BAY, LI KLH, THE HPADMAN OF SHANYWA, wife of
the Headmon, wife of AH BAV, TUN IVAING, U THLI KIN (iy father), and
SAN HLL GYA (ry brother). out of these pecple only Mz KWE, 4I KiH,
LH BLT and LUN SHEIN were not thercs The rest being present. I pre-
| tended not to recosnise any of then, but TUN MYAING on hearinghis nave
callec, stood up, Sute iAje TAIURO Noriharu questioned and beat hin
until he adnitted YIN SHEIN was at his house, TAN KIN CHOON on seeing
iy father and brother asked re in front of TiIDRO, "Isn't that your
father and brother over theregw, T/ }URO heard this and so I had to
«a@uit it was then; all three were arrested and tied wup. YIN SHEII was
arrested at TUN MYLING's house in MUFHAUK village. UWhen we arrived at
SHANYTA we were token to the Headriant's house. U OHN and U SEIN I0,
HLA I and OHMN KYLING were already there, I saw U OHN IE being beaten

by Site 1je TLMURO Noriharu, after this he told Si;tse NOIOTO Iinji, and

KANLZLTTA Seichu to toke U OHMN IE and U SEIN PO out and give then the

water trecatiuenty when they came back I noticed their ctlothes were wet.
‘ There was no further questioning or torture after this, T heard S:te

QUNLGAT Iachiro say to gote 1nje TAIURO Noriharu and TAN KIN CHOON

v7e will kill then ». 1G4 YA was then broucht in and guestioned,

‘ \té}«\ ! Ste IDje FOVAGLT Bochiro said wmve will kill hin alson,

Light of us were taken from the house and lined up between a

rangoe tree ond the gate, we were told toc sit dowvne NGA YiH, TO TO,
| OHN I¥AING cnd HL. IE were told to stand up, I heard Sibe MBje KUMLGAT
i Hachiro say wpring four soldiers®, I an not very clear as to what
| happened next as I was expectin: to be killed and I was praying with ry
} head bent and ry eyes closed, T heard a volley of rifle shots followed
I closely afterwards by one rifle shot and one pistcl shot. Sute 1Bje

KUL%G.I Bechiro came over to me and said, "you will be killed at MUDON
{ with YIN SHEIN®. I was then placed under the guard of I,C. SAN M. and
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‘HL. TE, I saw ry father (U THA KIN) shot by S;t. NOMOTO Iiinji, mw

! brother (SAN HL. GY.7) shot by Sgto KAN.ZAVL Seichu and U TUN MYAING
¢ shot by g/Tte FUJII Henjip they wore all shov with pistols, once

! standing up ‘and again aftver they had faiien, }

The Headrwn's house was then set on fire, and as R,A.F. planes
were above we moved out back to MIDON, I was kept in the XT lock-up
until the next morning, when I was moved to the Civil Dolice Station
and released eight days afterwards at the surrender,

(Sicned) MG DA,

Interpreter,

I certify that I duly translated the above surmary to the witness in
his own languege prior to his sismature which appears above,

(Sicned) SALW SiXl NUs

Lffirved before me J,C.B. BURDTKIN (signature), Captain, an officer
of the Royal Berkshire Rerinent, Dated shis 28th day of July 46.
Detailed to examine the above by the C-in-C, LIFSE.L.

(AUTHORITYs ALFSEA War Crines Instruction Noe 1 para.. 7.)

MG,

I hereby certify that this is a true copy of the sworn
statenent made by I /N, Trader, IMIDON, before Captein J7,.C,.B,
BURDFIZIN, Royal Berkshire Reginent, on the 28th day of July 1946,

(si¢ned) J.d. LAMBERT, Mejor.
Teley Central 17.4. Offie 0.C, 17 War Crimes ravestigation Tean,
THL/1IG. (1mjor J.H. LAMBERT MBE)
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Dvidentiary pocunent # 5340.

FORL! OF ST..TEITNT.

'-gul_ulry of exardnation off 8.7 BO GYY GY.77, son of 8.7 BL GY.W.
; Occupation; gStudent.
f Lddress. TAUNGTHUGON, INSEIN.

; 8.7 BO GYI GYAW, duly sworn/affirued, states;-

i

! I arn 22 years of\ ace, of xaren nuticnality, and born at

{ THARRAWADDY, 1¥ lzerz;;anen\t hone is at INSEIN, I an at present living
i at INSEIN,

I was living in ‘he Faren gquarter just outside the i ,B.l%,

rpound THARRATADDY. The house in which I was livipg overlooked this
cou;ou.nd. one day, in the¢ early or niddle part of 1my, just as it was
growing dark about 5 or 6 Delley I heard some shots fired from within
the compound. On hearing |this, I went to an upstairs window where I
. saw seven persons in the dustody of about six Japanese who were wearing
raincoats, The priscners were being blindfolded with strips torn fron
i @ blanket. I could not rebob'nise any of the prisocners as they were about
; 150 yards awaye. \‘

|

i The first prisonea“r I saw being executed by a trench was shot
at with a pistol at close i‘ange. several shots being fired. Two nore
rrisoners were brought by the trench and they were shot at by some Japs
vho were under a big tree, [these Japs rested their rifles on the tree

roots and fired at the pri?oners. This was repeated with the renaining
prisoners.

isfter the execution was over the Japs returned to their
quarters in the corpound. These Jups were rerpei Tail personnel and were
the last Japcnese troops in| TH RR.ADDY. I do nct know any of their
nanes except one, whose nw® was S/Pte 8.IT70, but he did not belorng to
the perpei mai. I do not kx?ow the Unit fron which he cane,

mhe majority of thé civilians, includin ryself, left TH.RR.~
1ADDY after this incident. |ghen I cane back to TIL.RRLZDDY, I ret sone
reople who were exhuning the bodies; U TIN's wife identified her
husband's body, and he was enated just near the trench, There was
also another trench neardy which contained the body of U D6 HL. VIN.

I saw his body, and the head| was smashed and the skull appeared to be
broken,
|

\ (signed) SAI BO GYI GYAY.

|




\
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|

Interpreter \

I certify thet I duly tranislated the above surmery to the witness

his owvn language prior to his signature which appears above,
\
|

\ (signed) HLA NYUNT

| Interpreter.
|

in

sworn/affirred before ne
Description; Invostig_;ator,%
RANGCON on the 31st day of

Ho H.RRUP (signature); Rank: Captain,
17 war Crines Investigation Tean at
1my 1946,

\
An officer cdetailed to exmqine the above by the Coimender-in-Chief,
Allied pand Forees, Scuth mast ieia,

(Authority;- LLFSE.L War Cancs Instruction No. 1, parc. 7.)

I hereby certify that this "P‘s a true copy of the Sworn stutenent nade
by Si¥ BO GYI GY.''y Student, TLUNGTHUGON, INSEIN, before Captain

H. ZLmUP, Investigator, 17 |var Crimes Investigation Tean on 3lst Imy
1946,

- \ (Sit;lled) J«So.F. BURNETT, Lt.Col.
116/~ 0.C, 17 var Crirces Investigation Tean.
mel; Central 174. | (Lt.Cole J,S.F.i.F. BURNETT, DSO, IT)
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i T \
| I.Gﬁpcrt Aindrey 1icol, aged 42, inglo-purnen,un Inspector in
the Revenue Departnent of the JTunicipal Corporuticn cf Ransicon, resident
at Mo, 81, sandwith Rocd, Renmgocn, beingduly sworn stetes as follows;-
|

Trior to the ocd‘upation of Rangoon by the Japanese forces, I was
permxpently resident at Rangoon but with the appreaching advent of the

Jopanese, I cvacuated from Rangoon in 20th Februcry 1941 and I remained
at Jyaun rya til1l 25th uy 1945.

on Tednesday, 7t*1 cither February or :arch 45, I can't reueiber
which, at about 1000 hrs.|a lorry stopped in front of ry hcuse in
IVAUNGI Yoy ARG Ri HLLING, |@ youngParien acccorpanicd by a Jap soldier
(three stars), caue to t'y‘housc and enqguired if I could speak En.lish
and purnese fluently. vhen I told then I could, I was asked to accoupapy
hen. } K

\ i

I was taken in t lorry to the ITKSET IIT rescrve forest, and
when I arrived there,I saw| one youn: RiF Serpeant with a 7ireless Qperator
bad_ e, to_cther with tuo sentries with rifles and bayonets and a Jap
goldier with a sword (one line anc three stars). The sergeant was seuted
with both hands tied behind his back, .bout one hundred yerds awey I saw
three other airmen standin{ guarded by approximately 25 Jap soldiers.
The genior officer anon st this party seered to be a pan about 5 ft. 2 ins
to 5 ft, 3 ins, wearin. @ &hite shirt, riding breeches and brown jack
boots. I thcught that he qas the Senior officer as he was the only ran
present wearin a sword and revolver, e was approxinotely 22 years of
age and rather fair for a Jupanese,

I vas taken by the| Jap soldier (ore line three stars), BA
HLLING and the driver, to where the Sergeant was sected. fThe Jop soldier
(one line three stars) spoke to B. HLLING in Japinese and Bi HLAING
trenslateé back to ne in cse and I was told to interpret for hin in
oo lish to the airmion. 1cst of the questions werc about the different
wavelens;ths the R.F used to|ccrrmnicate with their base, The young
gerceant would only say thm# the dials were fixed before leavig the
base, Thilc Ri HLLING was translating back to the Japanese soldier, I
maneged to (et the cirman 's?n:une. He told i that his namne was STLN
TOODERIDGL nd thet Le ciie fron CUINGFORD, LSSIX, IIVGL:AD.

|
~hen the airnan wc:hld not disclose any of the information
required, B.L HMLAING tock off| his belt ard struck hin several tines across
the back with the buckle end| of the belt. Then the Jap soldér (cne line
three stars) struck "OODBRIDGEC on the head with the flat of his sword
i severcl times, then the questions were repectcd but TAODERIDGE refused to
wive eny different ansvers. |This questioning lusted for about an hour,

vhen the questioning was finished, 'OODERIDGE was taken by the

: four Joponese and B HL.ING ficwards the other FolsSich was ong
hundred yards away, Then the whole party, includin; the four airnmen and
BL HLAING went away intc the forest, .s they were nwovin, off I asked the
driver by signs if they were Fcingg%o shoot the «irmen and he indicated

\
\

|




{ that they were join:: to\ be beheaded. I then went back to the lorry and
(| 4\27! waited there alone fer &bout Lelf an hour, until the Japs returned

|

{

{
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of then was ecarryin; a pick-axe, cnother

one
ws clcthes.

-5 |

a shovel and cthers carrying

he uniforris were rolled up intc a bundle which

The wnc

was carried by one mapn, ‘ullﬁ s¢ T could nct see how many there were. =
I%sce four puirs of lshces carried by other Jap scldiers.l B. HLLTVG
was with Thcile

€ 1axrty, including ryself and R IL.ING was
with thei., The whole party, ineludin; rysclf and R. HLADG, clinmbed
into the lorry and twe weTre ériven back to the town where I _of off at
the crossrcads,

|

\ (signed) R.i. NICOL.

|

|

|
Date: 5.7.46. \

sworn before re this 5th Tuy cf July 19L6,

‘ (Signed) ?

“ bth jdditional (ggistrate,
Rengocn,
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STLTEITENT OF VITNISS.

e

Nore s It; Than M ‘
Occupetion; Clerk.
Lddress; phamo. {

been duly sworn states;

I an 29 years of al'_;e, of ~urnese nationality, born at Rhanmo.
1y perranent hone is at Naungkho.

T sometine in tlhe niddle of ,umgust '4l at sn\u:;g?&&gthg with
YOSHIKA! L S/1Bje NaGAT.. Cpll, THAN TL, ILUNG IV and SAN LIK)(I saw one
Birzese B4 KHIN killed by YOSHIKAT. and NAGATA.

on the said ciéy)at‘ SINK. Ny THAN DE, and KO ! (Later now dead

killed by ®achins) brought in BA KHIM to YOSHIKAWL. \k FHIN was questione

by YOSHIKLTA recarding British trcops and Pi KM denied any knowledge of
therls R\ KHIN was beaten whilst being questioned by YOSHIKAY., and was
later taken outside the village. iere, YOSHIILL/4A oave Bi THIN his last
chance to tell tl.e truth. ryou will be released if you tell the truth,
otherwise you will be killed®, D KHIN still cdenied knowledge of British
- troops., Then YOSIIE.VL crdJ;red DA TTIN to be tied to a nearby tree,

and told T, KEM tc say his| preyers., ,fter Bi ITIIN had finished YOSHIKATA
ordered NAGLTA .%o kill R4 JHIN with his sword, NLGLT. thrust the sword
at BA KIIN's neck but it did not penetrate, and YOSHIKATA flying into a
fury took thLe sword from NAGATA and fiercely attacked B.. KHIN with the
sword all over his bcdy, killing the man,

e, (YOSHIKAVL) told all of us present that this is an exarple

| ___of the treatment anyone will receive for zoing against the Japanese. 3

The following weresat the site;

1s 303 10 2¢ THAN IEe 3¢ SAN .. IKe 4e TIN MAUNG, 5. 1llyself
and tke X.T, YOSHIKATA end NAGAT:.

I can identify the|Japs.
| (signed) IG THAN MUNG.

sworn before re D.R. I-.ZZDDOXJ 1t .Col. N0.16 Tar Crimes Investigation Tean,
at B0 on the Tth dey of Imy 1946.
petailed to exarine the above by the Comander-in-Chief, ,llied Land Force
soudh past /sia, (iuthority: AIFSE. Tar Crimes Instruction No.l para 7.)
I recognise the photograph c‘:'f Scte 1Rje YOSHIKLY L SADAICTIRC which I hLave
been shown as the man referred to above as YOSHIKLVA.
I certify that the above is |a truc copy of a staternent taken in the course
of Tar Crimes Investigations, the original of whiech is now in the custody
of 16 var crimes Investication mTear.

pated the 5rd July 1946. (Sicned) B.T, HULTHREYS. Capt. RA.
Investigator, 16 war Crines Investigation Teari.
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N o e STLTEIENT OF TITNESS.
Narnes 1. Than }Aung.
occupation; Irevious clerk (now unemployed)
Ladress, Bhamo,

Been duly sworn states;

I am 29 years of age, of purmese nationality, born at Thano,
1¥ permanent home is at I.’aungkho and T am at present living at Naunkhoe.

puring June 19[;14 when I was working for the Durma Iolice at
phano, after the rains had commenced in North Rurm, I was given orders
by riy chief to accompany the I",T., YOSHIZATA as an interpreter on his
tours.

mil€

The same evemn,:, YOSHIKAWA, another Jap 17, .( (name not knowm),
B4 YT and nyself left rharo by truck for the 17th &3¢ on the rhamo/
1yitkyina Road, arriving there after dark about 2200 hours. e slept
there that night with a Jap tnit whose Cormander had requcsted the .7,
to report to him for duty,

s e e A

Iarly the next mprniub we left in the direction of HUIR.I, with
15 other Jap troops. YOSHIV..Vi. suspected the Itachins in and around pUIT
RALI of helping the pritish or illied Troops in the area, [”hen we
“Tarrived at BUM RAI, YOSHIILLW.. arrested 8 Kachins (males), and after a
short stay we all l’.hde our way back towards the 17th mile., (These
Kachins (name not knovn were Rachins who were preparing to visit the
flats on a purchasing trip, when they were arrcsted,) /ifter walking
tve miles, a halt was called (for a rest) and YOSIIIFAA got the Fachins
tol_,etuer and comnenced questlonm(, the:,l regarding jllied E‘Q_@s in the
when sea:rched, were fou.nd in the possess:mn of silver rupees. rhcn the
interrogation was beingearried out, an aircraft (‘.m‘lcan) passed over-
head, and YOSEIFAV.. took the chance to further accuse the B8 Kachins of
# being spies., Ie then iave the order to the 15 Jap soldiers to bayonet
the Kachms. mwc of the I{achins came forward and confessed about the
Chinese troops in the vicinity, and they were not killed (the six
3 others were killed there; I was present on the spot). |
e proceeded on c‘?ur journey and arrived at the 17th nile after
dark, having the two pachins with us, These two rachins vere tied up to
trees for the night and made their escapetbfore dawn,
|

(signed) THAN ILUNG,

statement iven in Bn;_;lishJ
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Sworn before ne 3.T. HUITHREYS, Capt. Riki.
16 “ar Crimes Investigation Team, at Sharo on the 22nd day of 1my 1946.

Detailed to exawuine the above by the Cormander-in-chief,
A1lieé 1and Forces, South Tast ..sia,

suthority. LIFSCs Tar Crive Instruction Jo. 1, para. 7.

I recognise the photosraph of Ste IBje YOSIITL.TA SLDLICIIIRO which
I have been shown as the man referred to above as YOSHITLTL..

I certify that the above is a true copy of a statement taken in the
course of Jar Crimes Imvestigations, the origzinal of which is now
in the custody of 16 Tar Crimes Investiiation Team,

peted the 3rd July 1946. (signed) p,T., HUILIREYS.
Capte Reie
Investizetor, 16 Tar Crirmes Investigation Team.
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’ rvidentiary pocurent # 5354.
FORI! OF STLTIITINT OF . I'ERSON SUSIECTID OF BLING
CONCERI'ED IN THIL COITISSION OF 4 TiR CRIE.

I, Captain B,T. HUITHREYS of 16 ar Crimes Investigation Team

| certify that I have now duly warned Sgt. I1Rj. YOSIIIKL7. Sadaichiro

| 3 in the following terms;- wpo you wishk to meke any statement or to
iive evidence on oath? 7You are nct obliged to say anything.
or yive evidence unless you wish to do so, but whatever you say
or .any cvidemec you give will be taken dovn in writing and may be
civen in evidencein R, L4(E)e The said site IBj. YOSHIKAWA Sadaichirc
states that he wishes to neke an unsworn statemnt,

(scée) B.T. HUITHREYS,
Capt. Bihs
(capt+ DT, HUITHRIYS: Ri)
the 22nd day of June 1946.

I, Ste IBje YOSIIRLY.. sadaichiro of the Rempeitai have been
¢uly warned that T am not obliged to rmke a statement,bwt that whatever
I say will be taken down and rnay be used in evidence, wish to state
voluntarily as follows;-

: In September 194 I was stationed in the Fempei Tai at EHAID,

g and it was during that month that I received orders from Capt. :

: TURAVLT. Inesuke to go to the 15th or 17th 1dle north from phamo. | I

—"had to report to the H/R. BUT.I wko had a caxp there. I went There
accompanied by ggte 074 Tarotsu of the gempeitai, ad I was given a
party of soldiers from the putai under cormand of a St KATO:s I think
that he had four men with hin,

e

I went from the 15th or 17th @mle up the hill to BUIBRAI

accorpanied by this party and I think that there were also two or
three policenen.

I ordered the arrest of eight people when we reached BUITRAI.
we knew that there were some spies in the area and had information
that these eig;ht people were involved in the activities of the spies.
gore of these eifit people were TTachins and some were Chinese. They
were suspected of having come over the RBorder from china,

e took these pcople out of the village and on the way down
the hill to the maith road we stopped to question then, The interro-
gation confirmec that they were spies. I earried out the imberroga~
tion, I then turned them over to s.t. S.T0 of the Hara Butai and
¢ave hin a verbal report of ryy findings. S.LTO ordered about five or
six of them to be killed and they were killed there. The others ran
awvay later after we had reached the camp,
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17, went all the way with us and. I think that he nay have
interrogted one of the prisoners, but he tock no other part in the
affairs,

There was a Japanese defence post at BUMERAI. I think that
the reason for the people being killed was in order to prevent
information leaking out about the Japenese defences.,

The above statcixnt has been read over to me by an interpreter
and is a true account of what T have statecd and I now voluntarily
append ny signature thercto (YOSHIR.WA Sadaichiro).

sicned at mangoon on the 22nd day of June 1946,

(Gicmed Am Jepapese character,

CERTIFIQLIS, O LVERPRETER.
el P - o

¥, Tokeshi TT.I at present in Rangoon Gaok solerm¥e and sinbescly
declare that I truly and correctly translatecd to Sgte IBje YOSHIKATA
sadaichiro the words of the above caution and that he thereupon electel
to make an unsworn statement and that he then made an unsworn statement
which I truly and correctly translated into Endish and saw ygjgen down
by capte B.T. Humphreys Ri; I read over the whole of the above
statement to the said sgt. 1mje YOSHIFAW. Sadaichiro in the Japanese
langage and he acknowledged it as correct and has now duly signed it

in ny presence and in the presence of the said Capt. Hwphreys.

I certify that no inducement, threat or promnise was held out to the
said g t. Imje. YOSITIKATY. Sadaickiro apd that Le made the above statement
entirely voluntarily,

(sicned) TAKESHI IVAI.

iffirned befcre me B,T, HUITHREYS Captein Ri cf 16 var Criues
Investigation Team at Rangzcon gaol on the 22nd day of June 1946.
An officer detailed to examine the above by the C-in-C LIFSEA,
suthority: /IFSE.L "ar Crines Instrustion No. 1 (Second Bdition)
rara, 19(a).

I ccrtify that the above is a true copy of a statement taken
in the course of war Crines investigations, the original of which is
now in the custody of 16 1ar Crires Investigation Tean.

pated the 3rd July 1946, (signed) B.T. HUMPHREYS.
Capt' R..l’i-o
mmvestigator 16 tar Crines Investigation Tean..
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FoRld COF QTITENWNT
t gworn Stetement of RELANTD JOSEEH e 7
© Lddresss - ¢~ kr, T, 5, JCCEPH, HEAD MASTER ,KYAIK.
Occupation:- Student

Duly sworn states, I am 16 years of age, of(égglo-Burmese
.Qh;istlan nationqlitzi)ﬂnd born at KYAIKTO, My permanent home 1is
iat I am at present living at KYAIKTO,

|

{

1 About 20 days after the arrivel of K.,T. at our house, one
‘morning at about 1100 hours I came to the house from PHEKALEIK
|village to which place we had evacuated cerlier and while there
I saw a well dressed Indien, who I afterwards learnt that he died
qat PHEKALEIK while under K.T. custody, talking with Capt.
1MATSUOI\A Kenrc while Sgt. ilaj. SUZUKI Kiyoshi was sitting near
eatlng rice, I know these two K.,T. by their photographs. I heard
!MATSUOKA asking the Indien what property he possess and where he
11ved. After a while I sew Sgt., TOYAMA Shoji took this Incian
away to the back garden and Corporal SAKAMAKI Tsutae and SAKAKI
‘Toyohiko who I recognise by photographs tied him with a rope and
1blind folded him and brought him back to the house and put in
iwooden fetters.,

At ebout 1630 hrs, after their meal W,0, TSUBOI Yoshio, I can
rccognise fron photograph, interrogated him and ordered Sgt, TOYALL
'who rapped the Indian's foot with rags and pour kerosine oil on it
vand set fire to the foot, Later I found this foot with a big sore
ﬂnd d rotting. As the sore was smelling he wes kept apart.

’ 2 days after ell the K,T. left for NGAPYAWDAW village where
’nargtroops were heard to drop leaving BUZUKI Kiyoshi, one Jap
officer in spectacles who is not among the photographs and
.other N,C.0s. That very day I was interrreter THAN AUNG of
LEITPYAGAN Qr., PEGU, brought onc woman, whose husband I know to bc
KO BA MG of KYAIKTO, tied with a rope. The Jap Officer asked him
“why she did not accent the worn out Jap currency. She pleased
‘that it was not generally accepted. Then the Jap officer said that
she rmust be punished and another Jap whole photograph is not here,
‘tied her with a rope but she escaped and the Jap chased her and
pulleé ‘her back by her hair., Then she has retied and beaten by the
!seme Jap while SUZUKI Kiyoshi stood by and laughed agg_g;a ped his
'hands, Then SUZUKI Kiyoshi ordered the Jap to stop, and tgéaqher P
'to a posts When she was tied the Jap took off her longyi and —
vE’éj ‘her again. At this juncture I went up stairs and peeped
through the floor. Then THAN AUNG brought a phacard on which were
written some Burmese letters and hung it on her neck. Then her
‘longyi was restured and was pulled along the road by the rope
‘followed by the interprcter, tho Jap and Cpl SAITO Kenji who I
’rocognise by the photographe I was told that she was taken to the
ybazaar and was exhibited. After a while I followed and found the




party at the pagoda wuaere siae was released. I saw her fell cdown
unconscious and I returned to PHEKALEIK,

4 Then on the 17th June, 1945, the cday we were arrested at
t about 0900 hours while I was kept under arrest on the ground floo
. I sew SULTAN taken out by Cpls. SAKAMAKI and SAKAKI to the air ra?%%qu\
{trench in thc back garden, W.0. TSUBOI was then sitting on a
; chair near the trench. A Jap with a dah cut scar on the fore-hegéF")le
' took a pitcher full of hot weter andhe poured the hot water into
' SULTAN!'S mouth TSUBOI. who knows Burmese well Interrogated and «W
,orcercd the Jap who kicked SULTAN into the trench which was full
! of water and he pressed him down with his foot, After a few ’huaCt/
. minutes, he was pulled up ané the drowning was repeated 3 or 4 ;
;times. Then I saw SULTAN unconscious and was brought back and
' put in wooden fetters agein, At about 1600 hours MA SWAN TI
| was brought in and taken out to the back garden and beaten by
1 the Jap with the scar on the forehead, while W.0., TSUBOI
i interrogated her and Cpl, CHIBA Nobuo was 1ooking after MA SWAN TI
Childo

i
: I only heerd ABHUSU crying in pain from the back of the
' garden, On the same day I was releasedSJ

|
o

(Signature) RKROLAND JOSEPH
Interpreter.

I certify that I duly translated the above surmary to the witness
in his own languege prior to his signature which appears above.

(Signature) indecipherable.
Interpreter.

Affirmed before me <2 (Signeture) Rank: Capt.
Description:- Army officer on 6th July, 1946,

An officer detailed to examine the above by the Commancer-in-Chief
Allied Lend Forces, South East Asia.

(AUTHORITY:~- ALFSEL Wer Crimes Instruction No. 1. para 7).
At/10i8,
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STATEMENT OF HARLY JOSEFE, GANGAW Omo, KYAIKTO

Name e e HARRY JOSEFL, Age 23 Yrs.
Father R Mo B o 2 UOAHI\}.

Caste tone Anglo Indian, Christian
Address cesa GANGAW QT oy KEAIKTO, (M 5298)

| HARRY JOSEFE, having been duly sworn, states:-
"T solernly and sincerely declere that I will tell the truth,
the whole trutih, nothing but the truth,"

"The KELPEITAT of KYAIKTO stayed in our house from April 45
|_to June 45. There were about 25 KEMPEITAI personnel,! The names
"~ of some of the KEMPEITATI are given below:-

(1) Lt, MATSUOKA $Approx. 40 yrs. of age - Height approx 5!'6"
with spec aclies: thin).

(2) ©Sgt. Maj. KHAWASAKI lagc arprox. 35/40 - Height approx
5i6% Thin - always speaks with a sm*le )

(3) Sgt. KATO (Age approx. 30/35 - Height approx 5' 1" - shoulder
slightly bpent.)

(4) Sgt. TOYAVA (Age & wn,§xu 35 - hLeight approx 5i6" cruel
looking) .

(5) 8Sgte. SUZUKI (celled MCKPALIN SUZUKI who came to KYAIKTO from
KEMPEITAI LQ at MOKPALIN (G 3814) Agc approx
35 - stout - height approx 5' 6"

Among these KEMNPEITAIS, Fo. (3) Sgt. KATO and No. (4) Sgt.
TOYAMA were the cruelest of the lot:

I was arrested on 17 June 45 by the a/m KEMPEITAIS, who
occupied my house, I did not know why I was arrested, I escaped
from their custody the same night and did not see them again,

V— Wnile vas staying in my house together with the a/m
S—XKEMPEITAIS fer sbout 2 months I witnessed their atrocities (espe-
cially of Segt. KATO and Sgt., TOYANA) Prisoners (nemes NOT know)
were ill treated in the following nanners, while in their custody:-

(1) Beat the prisoners with big s0lid bamboo sticks (approx.
length 4'/5' - diameter 3%) Beat the prisoners until they
confessed (i.c. forced confession).
' (2) During beating and interrogation, prisoners were made to squat
ith hands and feet tied with roves.
(3) The hands of the prisoners werce tied with tcpes. Prisoners
were then strung up t> the roof of the house by their hand so that
' their feet did not touch the ground. Prisoners were left like
Nthis for some time.

(4) During interrogation, the prisoneris hands end legs were
‘ splashed w1th lgfge quantity of boiling weater,

@Mw& e
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" (5) The prisoner was blind folded, then a large quentity of
» water slowly poured into his mouth and nostrils, so that the
igfisoner suffocated, |

Among the KEMFEITAIS, Lt, IIATSUOKA gave the orders ancd the
rest carried them out., I could definitely say that Sgte. KATO
and Sgt. TOYAMA were the cruelest KEIFEITAIS of the lot.

Kecorded by me on 13 Nov. 45 at KYAIKTO (M 5298)

/s/ Lt. BA KO
Det, 602 F4S.S,
63 Ind, Infs Bde,

This statement has been read over to the witness in a language
which he uncerstands and has been acknowledged by him to be
correct,

F&f T Lte By B
Det, 602 FoSoSc
63 Ind, Inf. Bde.

I EEREBY CE. TIFY that this is a true copy of thec Sworn Statement
made by HARRY JOSEFH, Anglo Indian, Christien, GANGAW Qr.,
KYLZIKTO (1 5298) before Lt. BA KO, Det. 602 FoS,S. 63 1Ind. Inf,
Bde.

/s8/ JS«Fe BUIRNETT Lt, Col,
0.C; 17 War Crimes Investigation Team
Tels Central 174 (Lt, Col, J.S.FchoF, BURNETT,DSO0.MC)
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SVORN STATEMENT of Mr. RUDOLF RASIL VILSON,
wireless Qperator, Civil Y7ireless gtation,
Bangalore Cantonment;

1 was employed as a wireless operator in port Blair since 1936,
e were captured by the Japanese on 23 larch 1942 and kept prisoners on
the island for eight months,.
b S

mo weeks after or capture, in port Blair, Ir. 4,0, Bird,
comercial officer and personal assistant to the chief Commisioner,
was catagorised as a spy by the Japanese, He was taken out, tortured and
eventually beheaded in public on iberdeen., I did nct w1tness“¥hls T
Wwas kKept on RosSs Island “but—people connected with the conviet establish-
ment on the sindamans will possibly be able to give details of this

incident,

on 20th November 1942 eighteen of us were taken by the Japanese ‘
in the hatch of the KUNITU MARU Yo Rangoon. This party included various !
_Govt, officials among whom was the Chief Cormissioner,lr, C,F, WATERFALL.

[“7"c reached Rangon on 22nd November 1942 andthken straizht to the Central |
Jail, Tte werc confined in cells meant for solitary confinement but two |
were kcpt in each ccll, . fter two days of confinement in this cell we

| were removed to the Wing for British prisoners. During the time that we

| were in the solitary cclls most of us were beaten up by the Japanese

| guards. The chief Commissioncr and, I think, the padre of the Church of

mgland, ReVe Kenp who were in the cell next but one to mine werc the

persons most severely beaten, The beatings were due to the fact that we

o - did not understand what the guards wanted us to do, and which, I later

fo¥““ learnt, was that we should bow to then when we met them, The worst

3 beatings were in connection with the forms that we were made to £ill in

giving details of our names, occupations, state of mind at the time of

capture etc,/ The Japanese guard responsible for the beatings while we

were in thé solitary cells was killed in a subsequent air raid on Rangoon.

F————R

After our removal to the pritish i/ing we were kept in cells,
originally intended for 28 convicts, but which invariably contained 40
or more prisoners of war. The sanitary arrangements were nost unhygienic

and we had to clean our lavatorics ourselves.
—— i

while T was in Rangoon Jail, I was not beaten, but beatings for
others were daily features, 0Of these I can particularly rereher cases of
IRj. Loring, Ceapt. Meson, Brigadier Hobson and one lre Monin, a prisoner
of over 60 and who is now in the B,,H., Bangalore.
=

one Japenese guard in particular, whose name I do not know but
who was known as the mpulmein Terrore was the worst at this jail. wHe
wes a short, puny individual and whenever there was an air raid, which
was frequent, Mason and [oring would be taken out of the jail compound
gate and beaten up by the mpulmein Terrorvw, They were either slapped,
fisted or beaten with the butts of rifles,
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Two other uards, whc were in charge of the garden party one
by name MOTO and another known among us as *The jdmiralr, indulged in
considcrable ill-treatment of prisoners., They usually adopted the
practice of kickingwith ammmnition boots on the shins or private parts
of prisoners. Most of the punishments were inflicted as the result of
the prisoners failing to understand orders given rapidly in the Japanese
lunguage. vThe pdmiralw was so nemed by us because he had been trans-
ferred “fron the Jap Navy to the Army.

O e

peatings with rifle butts and arrmunition boots tock place
regularly every day but I cannot remember any specific dates on which
any particular priscner was thus beaten up. The Japanese guards allotted
punishment on a wmtual responsibilityr basis, That is to say for any
nisdemeanour committed by anybody, the actual individual concerned as
well as the senior officer, Brigedier ifobscn, would be punished.

n two occasions the Japancse guard comrinder, when going round
| after lights out discovered a faint glow of burning embers in the cook-
house, Irmediately Rrig flobson was called out and beaten, I did not see
the beating but heard the sunds Then the cock-house staff (priscners)
were called out and in the presence of Brige Hobson, made to fall in
ranks faeing cach other and made to slap each other hard, for a con-
giderable length of +time; rThe muerd irvelved in these instances was
nown as ‘ﬁanY" due to his stooping gait.

Mre. l'onin was severcly beaten by 1M0T0, in my presence., The
reason for this was that when Monin passed 110T0, his bow was not observed
by MOTOs who presuming that 1oONIN did not bow when he came intc the jail
corpound, beat him, pnin was also kicked, It was a severc beating
for an average young man and ;onin was half carried and half dragged up
to hic cell in a state of semi-collapse.

The worst beatings were given to new prluoners arriving in jail,
These, as they arrivecd, were kept in solitary confinement upwards of
three weeks at a time, during which time they were frequently beaten up,
the bucl:le end of a belt and the steel shaft of a golf club being the
chief weapqgglﬂ I have seen the guard known as the foulmein Terror®
going towards the solitary cells with a golf club, TIive American
priests - r, Newman,rathers O'Reilly, 0O'Sullivan, Demarais and Lucey -
who vere thus confined in solitary cells and beaten up have told us of
instances of pBritish Airmen prisoners being starved and beaten up
severely,

h Deaths among prisoners in the Rangoon Jail were frequent, cue
mostly to malnutrition and lack of medical facllltlea./ Cpl., Sykes, Ptes
Tollet, pte. Abrshamson of the puke of ellingtons, Pte. Holdsvorth of
the vest yorks anc pte, sheard of the I70YLIS were a few that I can
remember, I think Rev, jemp, mentioned earlier,who is now in yercaud,
had a list of prisoners who Cied in Rangoon jail during the period that
I was $here. BReri beri and dysentery were the Gause of most deaths,
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; which T can remember. (Qnuce
j orcer given in Japarcse b Cpi, OTAIOTC W0 was in charge of the saw-mill
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The doctors who may be able to give fuller cdetail are Lt.Cole Iackenzic,
R J5C.s 1BJe 1RCle0l, T,10.S.yDrs iBcdonald, I,15,D. and Dr. Swvingler,
I.i%D. Dr. lRcdonald is now at B.l7,H.s Bangalore, while Dr, Swingler,

I understand, is at ghiilonge. The only medicine available as far as I
can remember were Vitamin B tablets for beri beri, bone charcoal for
cysentery and diarrohea and [H2S for skin diseases.

There were also cases of prisoners of war who were taken for
experimental purposes and used as guinea pigs. I have heard of cases of
such priscners being injected with cdenge germs among cther germs. This,
however, was before I reached Rangoon Jail and I was told this by several
prisoners. (ne of such prisoners, I think,is Col. Dovetom RAIT.

Apart from this T have heard of Group Captain Joore who was
starved ancd ill-treated in the solitary cells for refusingto disclose
informafon desired by the Japs,

I was taken to Tavoy on 16th April 1943 where T was kept
in an internment camp., Here I was beaten up a number of times three of

it wos for not heing abis to understand an

in the camp. Okamoto on %his cacasion beut me with a flat piece of wood

1all over the body. On ansther occasion [ was saten up by the N.C,0, of

the camp, I"ITAHARA., This was because av a gramophone concert where I
was detailed to play a number of records. I played one more than the
number put to the programme. ITITAHARA s‘ruclk me with his closed fist

on the face a number of times, The third beating was alsg by I"ITAHARA
for not bowing to him. He commenced with his fists and later resorted to
his belt., I and another prisoner - !ANIN -~ were thenmade to kneel in
front of the guard room., A bamboo stick 2 inches in diameter, was then
placed in the hollow behing the knees and we were made to sit back on our
heels for about two hours, after which we had to rise and stand to
attention for another two hours,

Dre Swingler mentioned earlier, and one jrs, Childers, widow of
Lte.Col. Childers, were given solitary confinements for 3 months and
frequently beaten when in solitary conflnemeht./ This was done by a three

star private by name TATT,, TATE was the individual responsible for most

of the ill-treatment of prisoners in Tavoy camp from Jan. 4 to Aug 45.
He was the interpreter of the camp but appeared to have extraordinary
powers and virtually ran the camp, I¥s. Childers received particularly
bad treatment from TAIT, 7ith the advent of TAT"E an absolute reign of
terror prevailed.

ITr. T'orbes 1Hitchell, his wife and four year old son, at present
staying in 5 Curley street, Richmond Town, Bangalore Cantt;, received
consicerable ill-treatment at the hands of TAI"E, TAI'T was responsible for
deciding on diet of sick prisoners aud dve to his dislike of 1fitchell
refused to allow any special sick diet being gven to iitchell's son, who
was extremely weak and under-nourished,




0"‘

dentiary pocument # 5365.

L.

Evid
| There was a 1rs., Tun Hla oOung, wife of capt. Tun Hla Qung W K«
J was brought down from laymyo to Tavoy ceauipe She was an Inglish wetdr wew oas

|

i

aged about 26, and was subjected to an indecent assault by one of the

| camp governors.| This particular governor was in command previous to the

S -

indivicdual who was governor at the time of our release, I do not know
the details of this incident but I have heard that TAIT aided the governor
in his assault on Irs. Tun Hla Qung,
—
In mavoy food ceteriorated to such an extent that we were
i obliged to eat dogs, rats and snakes,

|

~—

Two other wireless cperators, who were in Rangoon Jail and Tavoy
camp with me and who might be able to furnish more information, are R,C.
ALLISON, 4 ilexander Street, Richmond Towvn, and R,T. WIGGINS, 16 food
Street, panglore Cantt:

Read over and approved as a correct record,

Bangalore (Signed ) RUDOLF BASIL VILSON.
23 Tebe 46,

The above sworn statement of . Rudelf pasil yilson,
consisting of 3 pages was recorcded by me and read over to him on 23
reb. L6 and approved by him as a correct record,

(signed) capt. Ce Thomas
gtaff Ccaptain,legal,
H.N., Bangalore srea,
I certify that the above is the above is the true copy of
the statcment made by R,.B. WILSON,

(signed) ? _
capt., Tavestigator, 17 W.C.I.T.
Detailed by C-in-C ALFSEA.
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Appendix mAvw part II
AILFSEA War Crimes Instruction No. 1l

FORIT OF STATE!IENT,

iy

gummary of Exemination of TAN HAIN ENG
poccupation Assistant l}mnager, latch Factory.
Address 127 71lanthawaddy Rde, Kemmendine,

puly sworn states, I am 32 years of age, of Chinese Nationality and
born at AIDY, China,

L‘\
1y permenent address is 127 Henthawaddy Rd., Kemmendine,
T am now living at 127 Hanthawaddy Rd., Kemmendine,

From 1y to November 1942 I was made to work by the Japs at the
western Kempei mai branch at rrome Court as a temporary interpreter. At
that time a Jap named Lte. (later Capt.) HXY.MA was 0,C,

MIYAIZs Lieutenant, promoted at end of 1942 to Captain,

igey  Jjust over 4O, looked 50,

Beicht; about 5 ft. 3 ins,

stout build : i

Going bald on top. Black hair, clese cropped
back and sides, ;

small dark eyessr

Fairly isr;e nose,

gmall moustache

Small mouth, Fairly full lips,

Round face,

T remember the occasion of the execution of 5 Chinese from
Rangoon at the Remmendine Chinese Cemetery, but I cannot rcmember the
exact date,
.
The 5 Chincse were;- CHAN BOON CHAO LEC HYE SOM
YEUP KHAI SO0 LIIT KAH CHAO
YEO BENG TWAY

The day before the exccution my cousin, TAN SIN KAR,came and
told me that his brother-in-law, CHAN BOON CHAO, was going to be execute
I do nct know how he knew this,

I went to a sergeant at prome Court nomed ARAHORI, and asked
him to intcrvenc on his behalf as he was a rclative of minc,
=,

ARAFIORT s sergeant
Azes about 30
Heicht; about 5 fies 2 ins,
Slim build
chort black hair.
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Dark eyes. No spectacles,
Straicht nose,.

Fairly thin lips. No moustache,
Long faceg

NO scar.

ARAHORI went, I believe, to Lte ITYAIN, but when he returned
said that nothins could be done as the order for the execution had come
from H,n, I then asked on my cousin's behalf if I could arrange for
the burial of CHAN BOON CHAO in the Chinese fashion. This request was
ronted,

The next morning T went to prome Court as usual, I was
asking S¢te L.RAHORI what I should do about collecting the body, when
an officer came in and told ®m to zo te Ite IIYAMA, I could not
recoznise the officer who gave me the order,

Between 7 and 8 aem, I left prome Court in a car with Lt,.
LNiijla_and another officer who may have been a doctor,

—

I could not now recosnise the officer who accompanied us as I
saw him only on that occasion,

Upon our arrival at the cemetery we went in, I forget now
whether the prisoners arrived before or after we did.

Other Japs had arrived from the fast Kempei Tai branch and Hg,
Altogether there were 7 or 8 officers, of whom I knew;

Lt. 1TVAI%, 0.C, Yest empei Tai, described above,
Lte. KINOSTA, 0.C. East rempei Tai, branch,

KINOSTA: Lieutenant (later promoted to Captain)
Age: aboub 35 or 40,
Heichts about 5 ft. 6 ins,
well built,
Short black hair.
Mo spectacles. Brown eyes,
No moustache,
straicht nose
Fairly wide mouth, Thin lips.
Long; face,
No seurs,

Seven or eicht N,C,0s were there of whom I knew three from Prome Court.
SCte LRAFORI: described above,

Stte UCHIDL: on charge of 15, T, at Prome Court.
SGte. ITTTOM::
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3.

UCHIDA Sergeab
Age: about 30
Beicht: about 5 fte. 4 ins,
well built.
short black hair,
pDark eyes, No spectacles,
Racher flat nose,
No moustaches,
Small thin lips
oval face,

MITOMA: Sergeant

Agey about 30
Heicht: ebout 5 £ft. 3 ins.
Thin build
Short black hair
Grey eysg. No spectacles,
Lons pointed nose,
No moustache,
wide mouth, Thin lips
Long face,

fss No secars.

There were about 10 private soldiers with rifles,

to be interpreters from other Xempei Tai branches,

flowers, one or two bottles of saki, and some glasses.

The prisoners were seated together on the ground,

HQ for their execution,

I translated it to thew

write,

4lso there were 3 other people in civilian dress who I took

A table had been brought, on which were a white cloth, some

They were
not bound. Ite. MIYAM. read a few words to them from a paper to the
effeect that they had been working against the Japs and collecting money
for anti-Jjapanese activities, with the result that orders had come from

Lte ITYAIL. then asked if they wanted to send any messages to
their families. Hegave me a pencil and paper and told me to pretend to

i1l the prisoners were talking at once and I would not have been
able to tcke it all down in any ocase, I simply wrote the name CHAN BOON

CHAO on the paper,

Lte ITYAM. then told me to goe I went away te a distance of

about 30 yards.
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k.

f————

The 5 prisoners were made to sit with their legs in the gaves
which were already duge. Their backs were against boards stuck in the
ground at the head of each grave, which bore their names, They were tie
to the bourds in some monner. Their eyes were bandaged and another clof
was put round cach mants forehead with a black spot in the centres,
presumably to act as a target.

5 soldiers placed their rifles on stands. 5 or 6 other suldier
stood a little way behind them,

A1l the officers and N,C.0s except IMIVAM. moved off to a
distance of about 30 yards.,

Lte MIVAMA then gave the order to fire,

After that the officers and MN,C,0s moved across to see the
bodies, and I left the cemetery to order a coffin at a shop just down
the road, for CHANBOON CHLO's body.

When I returned, 4 of the bodios had been put in the graves
eénd the soldiers and some purman's were filling them in.

The body of CH.T BOON CHALO was lying by an empiy grave,

I arranged for the body to be put in the coffin and carried
to a nearby hut. This took about 20 minutes and when I came away from
the hut the Japs werc leaving the cemetery,

e e ——— ]

cn the road outside I met my cousin TAN SIN KAR on his way to
the cemetery, I told him T had arranged about the body and then
returned to the factory at which I work.,

(signed ) TAN HLIN ENG.

Sworn before me (signature)
captain, F,S,0.
cormanding 598 F.S, section, S.E.4.C.
This 2nd day of July 1946.
Detailed to examine the above by the Commander-in-~chief, illied Iand
Forces, South wast ssia,
huthority; /IFSEL 'ar Crimes Instruction Nos 1 para 7.

I hereby certify that this is a true copy of the sworn
statcment made by TAN HATN ENG, .ssistant 1mnager, latch Factory, 127
Hanthawaddy Rd., FKemmendine, before %
captain, ¥,S.0, Comending 588, F,S. Section, S,E.A.C,, this 2nd July 19/

(signed) 7.S.F, BURNETT.
1 Lto COlO
0.Co 17 War Crimes Investigotion Team,
(LteCols J,5.F.LF. BURNETT, DSO, 1T,
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STATEVENT OF IR. J.H. WILLIAI'S, Dental Surgeon,
Rangoon, purma, re Tnternment Camps in }aymyo
and Tavoy .

i
:‘ Ire J JH. TIILIAS, duly sworn, states;-

; I was taken as a prisoner of 1Jar by the Japanese in May 1943
’ and was sent to TOIMBC Gam in TAYIVO.

!j Camp

: puring my six weeks “a this camp T witnessed extreme eruelty

it inflicted on B,0.R, prwo1 ars of wer., {n one occasion all the B,0.RS.
were lined up and ?Wrm wirl vwooden gwords. Ipay of tnem had their boots
taken from the“"‘. xh:f' rred Trcm Paymyo t cy were compslled to walk

bare-footed and’ om.y ue.‘._i‘ ictned s
) ) 4% i a A e-

I also wilressel the death of twe B.C.Ps. due to the inhulmity
of the M,0, in chdige, a 114%. gheut & £4%y 7 ins. in height, light com-
plexion for a Japs he alsc had athin musteches his name T do nct remember,
He actually kicked one man to death for hw was sufferingfrom a stomach

complaint, and could not con®rol his rtions, ¢

The Commandant of the camp was Capt, yYamakuchi, He also was very
cruel judging by the accounts cf cye wiitpesses. 'The cCapt., had a habit of
beating up all new priscners just fcr the flm of it, I understend that
a pritish mmjor was hungupsidc dom after being glv '-.:1 the water treatment,
and also severely beaten at thc sare 1 ilme by Ju“ officers

In June 1943 I was transfer-cé with oivhers vo IYAUFNE, In this
cap we were fairly wel treated. The C.0, was I®mj. IJOMOTO, and the senior
M.C.0, Was Sgt. YANAGA,

Teb, 194l we were t@l_en back to rmymyo, but not to Tonbo Camp,

Our stay in this particular ‘C&BP’IL.S unevenuful; cxsept for an assault

on !rs. Aungby a Jap soldicr, beccuse she had smiled in his presence,
e :

In Nov. 1944 we were transferr.d o pavoy camp where the con-
ditions were bad, New comers were not allicwed to speak to each other,
men separated from their wives and children., The focd was bad and 90g;
of the inmates suffered from beri beri, pellaga, and other forms of mal-
nutrltlon.

L/Cj)}. mekie was the big shot in this campj) his was a tyranical
regime, The men were beaten by him almost daily, He alsc made advances
tc most of the women in camp, inclucing some of the nuns; this was told

(-me by his orderlies. I personzlly know of one case in which Mrs, Aung
/| was taken from her hut .and broult before the Governor for the purpose of
{ { raje, Irs. sung was with the GOVEPNOr for several hours in a hut near
\JI where my hut was situated, I therefore heard all that wen?t on during the
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time that ghe was with him; this must have bsen & geoat ordeal for

Mrs. jung, An ormed guerd was placed outside § bhut by Takie,apparentiy.

-

to prevent any ol us from al¥erpTing to rescue Mrs. Aung. Tokie was

directly responsibe for this attack, After this episode Tekie began to

ke love to Irs, sung, ané they were planningtc ¢I0pe to RUSSITO ofter

the var, T Iirmly believe hovever thet Takie forced her to comply with
i his requests cnd cesires, | Y
Qquest i

In lBymyo it was said that Jrrs. jung was forced to marry a Jap

Ccle .ijime between Sept, and Dec. 1943. I was told this by rather
CIerici. N

During the entire pericd of my internment I was made to do dental
work for the Japanese, usingmy own tools, instruments andi material, for
vhich I received practically no pay; only for a short peried of time when
I was sent out of camp to the Jap hospituls to perform dental treatment
was I paidj this was absolutely inadequate for the #rsatment anc scrviccs
rcndercd, :

(signecd) J.,H. WILLIAVS,

Sworn beferc me (signaturc) i,M, MACGREGOR, (rank) Capt.
(Gcseription) war Crimc Investigation, this 12th day of March 1946,

Dcetailed to cxaminc thc above by the commender-in-chicf, Alliced ILand
Forecs, south rast isia,.

(Authority; AIFSEA "ar Crimcs Instruction No, 1 - para 7)
certificd thet the above is the truc copy of the statcment of J . H, WILLIA

(signcd) 1.1, AGARVAL, Capte.
patce; 1349.46, 16 W.0.T.T.
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STATTMINT BY IRS. M.}, WILLIAMS, Station Road,
Rangoon rc¢ Intcrnment in Maymyo and Tavoy.

-

ﬂ Mrse M., 77illiams, duly sworn stutes;-

In ey 1943 I und my husband werc arrested by the Japancse and
! interncd in Tonbo Camp, MYmMyoO.

puring the same month I witnessed the Camp Commandant, Capt,
YAMAYUCHI, accompanied by the Jap 24,0ey @ Licut, abcut 5 ft. 7 ins, in
| heiht, light complexion, thin moustachc, beat with a sword, punch in tho
' stomach about 40 British soldicrs., These men were starving, and not fed
for three days pricr to interrogtion, I heard themplecd for food, and
tell capte YAIMAKUCHI, "eed us, then we can talkn, prior to interrogation
they werc sprayed with disinfecctant, Thrce cdicd during my stay in camp,
# and I fcel their dcath was due to the beatings and starvation. 4An
| Indian told me he had seen a British Major suspended upside down from &
tree and water pouring from his mouth, YAMAWUCHI beating him with o stick,
The 17,0. accused me of being a spy and slapped me in the face, ! '

———t

sbout July 1943 I, my husbend, Irs. Scott gray, ir. Scott Gray
and the gstanley family were transferred to Iyaukme Internment Cimp. In
this camp we werc fairly well-trcated by 1mj. 70000 and Sgt. VANAGA.

——

on Feb. 16th 194 the abovementioned party and including Mr.
j Mrphy,,Ford, Stcrlingend princdle were taken back to !pymyo,to a camp
| near the signal Lines., Mrs. isung told me she had been beaten, and I also
i saw her being struck with a rifle, and kicked in the groin, and slapped
i on the face by a jap sentry. It was said in camp that Mrs. Aung had
i?mrrlea a Japanese Colone;zi
The following people on the 8th Nov. 194/ were transferrcd from
Meymyo to maveoy arriving there lst Dece 1944. 1T, and Mrs, gcott Gray,
Irs, sung, 1T, ford, Muwphy, Sterling, Brindle, Stanley wife and family,
rather Clerici, myself and my husband, A veekafter our arrival| Tak cie) askec
éf I wanted to change Rs. 1200/-= in Tndian currer currency to Japanese occupation-
_:Q;ggzg§. _I dic not agrec but was compelled and recceived—one—£or ONGa. .
I &id not spend any of this mcney and after peace was declared Takie
refused to change it back into Indian currency, The Jap mney is still

po } 4
(%L\~i? ¥ possession.

g=n on or about the lst FFebe 1945 I saw Mrs. Scott Grdy, Mrs. Aung
land Tlorence stanley standing in the sun for a.supposed breach of
camp rules ordered by Tckie, Mrse Scott Gray stood for;ffff%]hours,

s N NY »

3 |

| irse sung for ten and Florence Stanley for eight hours, ((Tekie|on this
Kycca51on also slapped [Tse. Aung @nd Irse. Scott gray. i
The water carrier lhd. Zaman told me that Irs. Childers,
l'other Sucille and himself head been severely beaten with a leather
buckled belt by Takie.

R R i b
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1r. Holden Harold and sSydney told m that Tokie had attempted
to seduce pnid, he (Mre. Holden) had epplied for an intcrview with te

Governor, this application was refused by Takie,and he hud reccived a
beatlng instead.

on or about the lst April 1945 after an air pamphlet raid Takie
came t. House No, 12 occupied by myself, Irs. sung, Scott gay, sStanley
b and Llexander called }rs. Aung outside and took her to Capt. HINURA
in the constructicn office, ghe returned about 033C hours with her
clothes torn in shreds; she informed us that HIMURA had tréd to rape
her, but she had rcsistcd,

Lfter the above incidsnt qrxiv hac¢ partitions erected in House MNo,
12 and visited Mrs. fune Tery frogcently, guite often staying untl 0200
hours and T have every reason %0 bBlieve that sexual intercourse took place,

purig the mosoons in July 1945 I was extremely ill and could not
get up for roll czcll; I was dragged out by a sensry, acting on Takie's
crders, and made to stand in the sun for nine hours.

After our release and in Rangoon, Irs, Forbes fichell told
me that on several occasions Takie had raped her in the construction offlce,

S

(signed) 17,15, VILLIAIS.

wern before me (signature) A,l1, M.CGREGOR, Capte (deacrlptlon)
Wer Crimes Investigation, this 12th day of pmrch 19L46.

petailed to examine the abve by the Commander-in-Chief, Allied Land Forces,
south rast Asia, ’

(Luthority; LAILFSEL Tar Crimes Instruction Noe. 1 para, 7).

certified that the above is the true copy of the statement of Iirs.
M7, Williams,

Dates 13.9.45. (signed) 11,M..C.LWAL, Capt.
off. wmjor Legal,
16 7,C.1.T.
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SYNOPSIS

-

/:f:L'Rl’z.n. ant. SI-Q.M X

B. P/W sent to tURMa Sector of Turme/Slem feilwey.

a) Prosecuticn Document numbered 52064, the Affidevit of
Chaplain r. k. talhrORD, is offered for identificetion, and the
merkeld excerpts produced in evidence:

"™On 15.3.43 at Thambyuzayet Camp, I interviewed POW No. 2867,
Pte. kell, a. J., AIF. At that time he was confined after being
receptured following his escape on 12.2.43. At thet time he
hed no knovlacge that he was under sentence of ceeth, nor dic
I have any such knowledgs. ke wes, in f.ct, execuﬁed at 0815
hours on 18.3.43 — the day after I interviewed him. So fer as
I am awere he wes given no trial.

About 14 deys prior to 13.12.42, the undermentioned Dutch
personnel escaped from Jepesnese ceptivity from Vegelie Céﬁp
(aporoximately 8 kms from Thambyuzayat):

Capt. J.E.VW. De ROCEEMOWT
Capt. Fei.M. EaRTHRINK
wEt. G.A.EERMANS

These officers were subsequently ceptured; the officers were
executed by & firing oarty uncer Lt. HAITO about 0815 hours en
13.13.42.

On 27.12.42, the uncermentioned Dutch versonnel were executed
for esceving from WEGALIE Cemp:

Sgt. Th. E. VAN EAASEL

Pte A.N.J. VZEDLVOOGD

Pte E-R- HELLESHER
On 13.12.42 RX 69005 Pte L-ITFIELD G. E. AI¥., esrrived at
Thembyuzeyat Cemp. Ee had esceped some weeks before from Kaniew
Cemp, roughly 4% kilometres from Thambyuzayat. Our Medical
officers were of opinion that ‘hitfield was not mentally sound.
origedier Verley interviewed lizito for the purpose of discevering
what woulc be the punishment of o man who escaped and gave himself
up, but not bveing mentally souné. Nazito informed the Erigedier
that such a men would not be shot. .hitfield was not confined

but allowed to remain in the hospital hut.
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Shortle befere 1100 hours on 1<4.12.42, a verty «f Japsnese

o
= N,

errived-et thiemkud, Joskted which wes

ey

hitfield, end upon being

told that Nhitfiolc~wes;"out31de boiling 2 billy," the man who

\ /
et /

was “ooil’iﬁg the billzf\éﬁd wvho was, in fact, Whitfield, ves

seized and. his th§§‘tied be:ind his beck, and his eyes bliné—
felded ah&“the,zég inmediately teken to the place ef execution -
a cemetery néarby - and éxecuted a few minutes later. There was
zo‘séﬁﬁl:nce of a triel. I conducted the durial service over his

remeins en thet day."

Presecutien document numbered 5034, the Afficevit of Lt. Col. C, M.

BLACK, is new produced for identification, the marked excerots thereof

- being effered in evidence. This document stetes thet the witness

cemmanced a force of P/h wvhich at the end ¢f 1942, went te & cemp 40 -

kiles frem Theambaziat.

"Conditions at this cemp were shocking. There wes an insufficiency
of water and food was very shert. The hospitel wes in e gully,

and. the camp had been occupied previously by surmese zn& was
generally in very bed ccndition. The sick rate rapidly increased
end I think at one stage there were a2bout 130 men in hesvital,

and sbeut 90 to 100 had very bed dierrhoea out of a total strength
of 675, Twe men cied frem dysentery, but cesoite my representations
te the Japenese lance-cerporal, who was in charge of the cenp,

end to Zrig. Verley we were unable te get anything with which

to treat the sick at all, Léter, we were fprced te e2bancen the
camp on account ¢f its bad candition end lack of wvater."

The conditions described were common te all the cemps the witness

lived in, except thet heurs of work were nermally long end incredibly

arduous.

Later =t Thambaziet, neerly 30 men were killed snd the witness

vas wounded by Allied air attack. “here wes no distinctive signs en the

cemp to indicete it centeined Prisoners of ler.

At Retpu, sick men were ferced to work. The Japanese Cemp Cermandant

on one occesion, ordered. two ef his subordinstes te kill e P/h. They
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refused whereupon the Co;mgﬁdant himself shot the P/i who fortunetely
wes only injured.
¢) Prosecution Deocument numbered 5041, the afficevit of Dr. C. R. Bb.

Richards, being offered for icentificetion, the marked excerpts thereof are
procuced in evicence. This document stetes thet in August, 1943, the
vitness wes at 80 Kilo Cemp et soerong. There were 200 Allied P/L in a
filthy hospitai cemp. The rein continually drenched the men. There were
ne fit men in this cemp to look after fhe sick. The average ceeths were
between two and six ¢eily end sick men hed to carry their comreces to the
greve. e

< The Japenese refused to a2llev the witness to look after the gick.
Tool given to them ves & tiny amount of rice. Mkedicel supvlies were only
obtained by barter, such =s a wetch for a bottle of iodoform. .

"The pelicy of the Jepenese Commender in thet aree was

that vhilst men were working they would receive food, but es

soon as they became ill they were "written off" and were sent

down to this oarticuler rosoital to live there to cie.

I cen imsgine nothing more appelling then concitions under
which these men lived and died. It was in effect & living
morgue. "

d) Prosecution cocument numbered. 50384, the affidevit of Lt. Col.
G. L. RAMSAY, is offered for icentificetion, end the marked excerots
thereef, preduced in evicdence. This Affidevit stetes thet et 26 end 75
Kile Crﬁps on the reilvey, Koreen Cemp Guerds inciscriminetely beet up
prisoners.

working hours werc long end in the rainy sesson, men often worked
in nmud up to their knees. They had no change of clothing.

At 105 Kilo Cemp, men suffered grestly from dysentery, maslaris end
nlcers. Guercs founé & fevourite method ef punighment in kicking an ubcer.
There were 158 deaths in seven months st this cemp out ef a force of less
than 1,000 men.

At Temerken during 1944, dysentery, fever and malnutrition caused

~meny Ceaths.
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INTEENATIONAL MILITALY TLIBUNAL
FOR_THE ¥ilhh EAST
No, 1.
TLE UNITED STATES OF AI.FRICA,
and ors.
- AGAINST -
AKAKI, SADAO, and ors.

I, FREDERICK LUGL. BAShFOLD, make oath and say as follows:

1., liy Army number is NX70685: rank, Chaplain/Captain: full name,

Frederick Hugh Bashford: 2/4 CCS. AIF: home address., 3 Wyargine
Flats:. The Esplanade, Balmoral, New South Wales,

2o On 15.3.43 at THALBYUZAYAT Camp, I interviewed POW No,2867,

t Fte BELL A.J., AIF. At that time he was confined after being

recaptured following his escape on 12,2.43, At that time he

had no knowledge that he was under sentence of death, nor did I
-ave any such knowledge, Ilie was, in fact, executed at 0815 hours
on 16.3.43 - the day after I interviewed him. So far as I em aware
he was given no trial,

3 About 14 days prior to 13,12.42, the undermentioneé Dutch
personnel escaped from Japanese captivity from WEGALIE Cam
(approximately 8 kms from Thambyuzayat):- ;
Captse Jo. e Ws De KOOLEMENT

Capte Fo A. I, HARTELINK

Lt. G A, LELMNANS

4, These officers were subsequently captured; the officers were
executed by a firing party under Lt. NAITO zbout 0815 hours on
13.12.42,

5 On 27.12.42, the undermentioned Dutch personnel were executed
for escaping from WEGALIE Camp:-

Sgte The L. VAN LAASEN
Pte. A,N.J. VREDEVOOGD
Fte H. .. NEILESSEN

6, On 13.12.42 NX69005 Pte WEITFIELD G.H., AIF, arrived at

! Thambyuzayat Camp., Le had escaped some weeks before from Kandaw

camp, roughly 4% kilometres from Thambyuzayat, Our Ledical officers
were of opinion that Whitfield was not mentslly sound, Brigadier
Varley interviewed Naito for the purpose of discovering what

would be the punishment of 2 man who escaped and gave himself up,
but not being mentally sounc. Nzito informed the Brigadier

that such a man would not be shot. Whitfield was not confined but
allowed to remain in the hospital hut.
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!7. Shortly before 1100 hours on 14,12.,42, a rarty of Japanese
;arrived at this hut, asked which was Whitfield, and upon being

| told that Whitfield was "outside boiling a billy", the man who

| was boiling the billy and who was,; In fact, Whitfield, was seized
! and his hands tied behina his back, and his eyes blindfolded and
the man immediately taken to the piace of execution - a cemetery
nearby - and executed a few minutes later. There was no semblance
of a trial. I conducted the burial service over his remains on

ithat day. |

SWOEN before me at Sydney
on the Fourth day of September, 1946, (Sgd) F. L., BASHFORD

Judge of Supreme Court of Queensland.
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INTERNATIONAL MILITARY TRIEUNAL FOR TFF FAR EAST
No. 1
THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, AND ORS.
- AGAINST -
ARAKI, SADAO, AND ORS.

I, CFRISTOPFER MONTAGUE BLACK, make oath and say

as follows:

Lo I was NX7084, Lt-Col. Christopher Montague Black, H«Q.
"Blackburn Force" when I was taken prisoner in Java on the
surrender of tre Blackburn Force in Marct 1942, I entered
Bicycle Camp and remained trere until October 1942,

2e I left Batavia witbh Col. Williams in about October 1942,
about 1400 or 1500 men being in tre party. We proceeded by
sea to Singapore. From Singapore we went again by ses to
Hengoon. We were tren transferred to another shipe.

3 We disembarked at Moulmein, wrere I left Col. Williams
and proceeded to TFAMBAZIAT. I was then sent back to
Moulmein to get nominal rolls, but I did not see what condi-
tions were like trere. Tre men bad been placed in a geol
and I trink trey were given food.

4 I returned tren to TVAMBAZIAT and remained at tris camp
for about 10 days. I was then required to split the force
into 2 groups, one to be commanded by Col. Williams, and the
other by myself, Col. Williams brought ris forece on to
TPAMBAZIAT from koulmein, and went out to 30 Kilo camp
(TANYIN), and I was placed in a camp a furtber 10 Kiles out,

5« Conditions at ttis camp were shocking. Trere was an
insufficiency of water and food was very srort. Tre Yospitel
was in a gully, end the camp rad been occupied previously

by Burmese and was generally in very bad condition. Thre

sick rate rapidly increased and I think at one stage there
were about 130 men in hospitel, and about 90 to 100 rad

very bad diarrroea out of a total strengtr of 675. Two

men died from dysentery, but despite my representations to
tre Japenese lance-corporal, who was in crarge of tre cemnp,
and to Brig., Varley we were unable to get anytring with which
to treat tre sick at all., Later, we were forced to abandon
tre camp on account of its bad condition and lack of weter.

6s Wren I left Bicycle Camp I wes suffering from pellagrous
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diarrhoea and my sickness continued in 40 Kilo Camp. I
menaged to get to TFALBAZIAT to 2 conference with tre Brigadier
end I wes placed in Yospital. Trat was prior to thre agfndon-
ment of tre 40 Kilo camp.

7 e Tre camp was taken over by Me jor G.A.C, Kiernsn whrile
I was in hospital., We were given rice and ¢ smell quentity
of vegetables. Tre food scale was so low that tre Japenese
commender bimself used to try and buy at his own expanse

& dozen eggs to give to the most seriously ille. Tre“lours
¢f work at that time were in my opinion reasonable. Sick
men were not forced to work. We had 2 medical officer, but
no medical supplies at all. Beri Beri and Pellagra began
to show up very badly. '

8. I was in hospitel for about 8 weeks a2nd then resumed
command of tre force. In tre meantime, tre force had moved
from 40 Kilo to 26 Kilo (KUE-NIT-KWAI) wrict bad been a
coolie camp and was in a shocking state of repsir., I was
informed by the Japenese guerd, wro took me back, trat it
bad been abandoned some 2 deys before because of an outbreak
of cholera, TYre Puts had been repaired slightly whren I
arrived, but conditions were still very bad indeed so far

as accommodation was concerned, Major Kiernan, who Yad been
in command, told me that re rad found it necessary to burn

a large portion of ttre camp for sanitary reesons; it hed
previously been occupied by Burmese natives.

9« _Tre food agein consisted only of rice end vegetables
in smell quantities, We did not receive enything like our
scale of rations,

10. It wes ot this camp thet I first met tre Jepanese quote
system of work. The commender of tre camp, wro is now deed,
used to enforce tris system and mede sick men go out to work,
Trere was 2 lot of sickness but no medical supplies. Sub-
sequently, tre meat issue was increased when the camp was
mede a staging cemp for cattle being driven 2long tre line.
Tre Sergeant wro took tre plece of tre officer in charge
also used to buy us supplies of eggs.

1l., During my stay in TFAMBAZIAT, Col. Ramsay brought Fis
force to 26 Kilo eand I joined bim trere. Tre bours of work
were increased and beceme very long; men were made to work
from 8 s.m. and did not get beck to tre camp until 10 or

11 p.me The work was of an exceptionaslly beavy nature, but
despite protests that werc made to tre Jepenese no relief wes
given., A4s a matter of fact, Cept. BLAU was becten by one of
tre guards out 2t tre reilwey line for protestinge.

12, From 26 Kilo I went to 75 Kilo but I was not ttere
long enough to observe tre conditions under w»ich the men
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were living. The guards began to bezt the prisoners from
tre first day of arrival,.

13. I was trhen returned to RETPU, 30 Kilo, I establisbred
a brospital wrich was subsequently teken over by 2 Dutch
officer after 4 weeks,

14, I =gein went to TFALBAZIAT and remeined there until

12 June 1943. Fere we were bedly bombed by Americen planes,
es a result of whrich trere were between 25 end 28 deatts,

and quite & number of wounded, including myself, T erec were
no distinctive signs on tre cemp to srow trhat it contained
prisoners of wer,.

15« I did not see any great hardships suffered there, and
tre food was ressoneble. Lieut. FAGUCHI was the Japenese
medical officer 2t TFAMBAZIAT., Cept. Griffin informed me

be had seen a large quantity of Jepenese medicel supplies in
TFALBAZIAT, but that trere was great difficulty in getting
trem into camp., The Brigadier mede meny protests both
verbally and in writing to NAGATOMO with regard to conditions,
but he received no reply et all.

16, Wrilst I was in tre camp trere were meny executions,
including thet of Private Writfield., TVris man had disappeercd
from tre 4 Kilo cemp and one morning it was reported to me
trat be Fad come into our cemp et TFAMBAZIAT., I saw *im end
be asked me whet I could do. I asked rim bYow far re trad got
in bis escepe 2nd be told me that be bad reacred Fangoon. PFe
said that he felt be should give rimself up 2and I said trat

I thougrt trat was tre best thing, and trat I would discuss
it with Brig. Varley. One of ttre most scrious trings in =
Jepenese prison canp was to have one men more than stould be
there beceuse thre Japancse always suspected trat o spy wes
being ridden there., After 2 good deal of discussion and by
arrangement with the M.0.'s, Brigadier Verley rcported thrat
Writfield Yad come into tre¢ cemp and that rc was mentel,

Tris was supported by the medical officers. At that time
Col. NEGATOMO rad gone to Singapore, and tre Group Commender
was Licut. NITO., Ve went and saw Writfield #nd said e would
leave rim there to rcst for a few deys end thet re would thren
send rim back to *is camp. Subsequently Lieut. FAGUCTI

the medical officer, came to see Writfield end s2id trat

he was not mental at all. Next morning Whitfield wes cooking
over 2 fire whren a2 number of Japsnese soldiers rusted up to
bim, bound rim, and took him over to the cemetery about 100
yerds distant and s»ot him. I actually saw him bound up
ryself and taken awey, and tren Yeard rifle srots.,

17. In cases of execution such as tris, tre Japanese
usually took Col. Femilton over to see tre body eand tris wes
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done in the case of Privete Whitfield. Fe was buried by en
Austrzlian perty. Tre Jepanese clways 2llowed & buriel
service 2nd I actuelly ettended tris perticular one; 2 |
ctaplain wes also present. I trink it was NITO who reported
tYe deatr to Brig. Varley; I know trat NITO told him it wes
as & result of & telegrem received from Col. NEGATOMLO thet
be gave the order for tre execution. I was present during
tris conversation myself. There were 2lso executions of
Dutcrmen, who had escaped, and altogetter I think thrree
Austr%%ians were executed, including Bell, Writfield, end
one otrer,

18. I wes tren sent to a camp at 18 Kilo, wrere Cpl.
FUJIYLEL wes in crarge. I was taken very sick trere withr
Major Fisher, Conditions were appalling; food was very
short, and tre accommodation was entirely unsatisfactory.
Trere was no room to do dressings except in the pessages of
tre ruts, trrough whict tre rein water rushed incres deep,
end tre facilities provided for men with dysentery were
absolutely s*rocking.

19. From 18 Kilo I was moved back to RETPU, Tre¢ camp rad
been abandoned, end tre roof of the buildings had fallen

in; tre whole place was in 2 state of disrepsir. We Yad a
large number of very heavy sick., Srortly after we srrived,
Lieut, NITO ceme to teke crarge. Fe forced sick men to
repair buts, setting time limits on tre work which were
entirely insufficient for tre work which rad to be done.
Despite my protests, he pcrsisted in bis treatment of men
at tre revolver point. Lieut, Fealy was blamed for any
trouble 2t 211 and Ye certeinly would rave srot him hed it
not been for my sending bim eway in time. Supplies, whrich
vere mecgre, consisted only of rice and vegetebles, and
occasionaliy a little meat whricl used to arrive by train
between 10 o'clock and midnight and wrich NITO forced very
sick men to carry a kilo from the trzin to the camp in the
rainy season. Tris applied, in fact, to all tre food. Men
used to fall dovn and injure themselves, 2s trere was no
track and mud everywrere between tre camp and tre railway
stetion, NITO continued drinking snd on meny occesions he
informed me trat Ye would have to kill somebody. One night
Ye ceughrt Sgt. Major Coombes of 2/4 C.C.S. at tre latrine.
Fe took him to tre guerdhrouse and the Japenesc guerd commander
informed me leter that he rad becen ordered by NITO to bayonet
him, but that be bad refuscde NITO tren called anothrer
member of tre guerd, took Coombes down to the cemetery and
ordered rim to sroot Pim, Tre guard agein refused wrercupon
NITO seid "Well, if you won't kill rim I will", Fe ttren
took out Yis revolver a2nd fired tvo srots trrough Combe's
back. Fortunctely Ye was not killed, NITO bhad accuscd rim
of trying to escape and as a result, for tre next six weeks,
I Yad to patrol tre camp 2t night witr NITO, who wes alweys
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drunk, with a loaded revolver in my stomeclr. ALt tbhat time

I »ad just bad 2n operation on my arm and I appcaled to NITO
to allow me to go to bed as I was ill, but e would not do
so. Pe forbede me to report thre mattcr, but I menaged to

do sO.

20, it this time, even NITO's own guerds 21lied with us
against Yim, Witk tre aid of tre guerd we manzged to get e
mcssage trrough to Col, NEGATOMO and Brig. Verley 2nd es a
result NITO was removede _

21, I tren went back to 105 Kilo camp whrerec Col, hemsey
was in commande I remained trere until just efter Crristmes
1943, Conditions were very bade

22s From 105 Kilo I went to a2 camp called NAKOM PATOL,

wrich was & very large hospital camp, very well built. Con-
ditions were reesonable witr thre exception tret & guard nick-
nemed "BUSTY" used to beat tre prisoners ummercifully,
including ke jor Williems Wynn, who was given e methUlarly
severe beeting; when I endeavoured to intervene I was alsc
given 2 very bsd beating.

23e Tre Jepenese forced some of tre sick to work at NEKOb
PLTON 2nd tYere were no medicel supplies to treat trose wro
werce ill.

24. When Red Cross supplies arrived, large quantities were

stolen by tre Jezpenesec guards and I em certain witr tre
cognisance of Col. ISYI wro wes tren tre commander,

Taken end sworn at SYDNEY éZéZcﬁf

on tre Tenth day of /s/ C. Beeek
Secptember 1946,

Before me /s/ A.Jd. .Jdensfield
Judge of Supremec Court of sueensland
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\/BT/ The only LOCLJ cal supplies werce securcd by barter with the

ey k<id
Evidentiory Docurcnt # 5041, :
INTERNATIONAL MILITLRY TRIBUNAL FOR THE FaR E.LST
NO. 1.
THZ TNITED STaTES OF LMERICa, oMND ORS
~ AGAINST -
ALARLKI, S4D.0, 4ND ORS.

I CIrL.RL.Js ROVLAND BROMLEY RICHARLS of msz in the ghtatec of New South
Tales, Medical practisionss. meke ooth and say as foirlows:

las I was NX70273 Capiain Chorles Rowland Bror:.‘lcv Richc;:-ds, 0T
attached to 2,15 (uswraizg: Field I-’.é nont when I bescme ¢ Prisoner of 1or
of the Joponesc ot SingopePe, on 15 Febweuary 1942.

2 Between the 30th July and 30th iugust 1943 I was ot 80 Kilo Carp
(LPERONG) wuth o porby of about 900 jusirclions belonging to No. 3 Branch,

3. tthen we arrived there, there werc approxinatcly 200 rfustralians,
smericans, oand putchmen belonging to Noe. 5 pranch suffering very badly fron
Dysentery, Beri Beri, Mnlaria, ond Tropical Uleers,

L. They were in o hospitel camp about 200 yards from where we were.

The accormiodation at this camp comnsizied of Lbiap huts, which were in a

filthy condiiion. The huis were nct sufficient to kecep out the rain, and
thc rien were continually drenched., Therc were no fit nen in this hospital
azip to lock after the sick.

be The avercge deuths wore from twe to six per day, ond sick ren
had to coxrry their cead corrades to the graves.

e The Jopanese refuscd to cllow us to look after these sick oen,
but we ncnaged to go down seorsily and excuiine them. They were in charge
cf on /pecriccn pepdicel officcr who was not cble tc get a proper grip of the
circunstances.

Te The focd given Yo these ron consisted of riec in very small
guantities,

Japancse, such as a waitch for o bottle of Jodcoforu.s/ 1 believe thet the

Japancse themsolves h“r acdictl supplies which could have bocen node
availeble for the priscners,

% On onc cecasgion it was necessary for an aoputation to be per-
forred on one cf these patients. Mnjor rrants ond _[ renaged $o have the
man transferred to cur carp without the knowledge of the Jopanese, but
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' during the operation they found out and came and watched., Te anaesthized
the patient with a small anount of anacsthetic, which we hod, and used a
hacksaw for the operation,

10. The policy of the Jopanese Couxrndar in thet (rea was that whilst
ren were working vhey would reecive food, bur as soon ts they beeane i1l
they werc myrition offn and were sent down to this particular hespital to
live there to die,

11, I can imngine nothing rore appclling than conditions under which
these ren lived and dieds It was in effect 2 living morgue,

SI7TORN before e at gydnsy on the )

Fifth day of scptember 1946, ) (signecd) C.R.B. RICHLRDS.

(Signed) L.J. MINSFIEID,
Judge of Suprene Court of qQueenslend,
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INTERNATIONAL LIILITARY TRIBUNAL FOR ThE FAK EAST.
NO. 1,

TLE UNUTED STATES OF ALELICA, and ors.

~ BGAINER -
ARAKI, SADAO, and ors.

s

i I, GEORGE ERNEST RAL:SAY of Srdney in the State of New South Wales,
! make oath and say as follows:-
1

1
i

\ . I was NX34999, Lt. Colonel George Ernest Lamsey, 2/30
. Australian Infentry Battalion when I was captured by the Japanese

;at Singapore in Februsry, 1942,

! P I was transferred to the 2/18 Battelion on a day in April, 1942
! I left there with A Force which was a force of 3000 under Brigadier:
i Varley. We were to move overseas to an unknown destination., I

iwas in command of 1 Bn. of A Force. It consisted of about 850 =211

. ranks, We embarkec¢ on the CELEBES LIARU with 1000 troops which

- included my own 1 Bn and a detachment from the 2/4 CCS, The

i remaining 2000 embarked on the TOYASHI LALU under Brigadier Varley.
| Before leaving we were told that the force would go to the same

i destination as the other one but in fact 1000 men were dropred at

: Victoria Point on the extreme tip of lower Burma, and the next 1000
! with me were dropped at LERGUI,

| 3. The remaining 1000 under Brigacdier Varley were disembarked at
i TAVOY,

e We got to Tavoy in late August or September, 1942, Biigadier
1 Varley was still there with portion of the originel 1000 but he

i was in a separate camp and I was deniec¢ officizl access to him.

5 - On leaving TAVOY we moved to THANBUYZYAT by rail and also

on foot., This was in December, 1942. Colonel NAGATOMO had his
headquarters at THANBUYZYAT and when I was at THANBUYZYAT Brig.
Varley had esteblished his own headquarters there. He stayed in
TL.ANBUYZYAT for 2 night or two and then moved to 26 Kilo Camp.

; LLitherto we had been with Jep front line troops; but on arrival
JUSNT™ at 26 Kilo camp we had our first experience with Koreans as guards.

i il

ihey were pretty bad,

6 L Jzp sergeant named FANATO was therej a Jap engineer officer
also wes there and they were insistent on a certain number of our
men _oing out to work each day. I wrote to them several times

and rade verbal protests against the numbers of men being required

i and setting out the reasons why their requests were impossible of
fulfilment. He threatened on seversl occasions, and did on several
occasions parade the whole camp and selected the men himself, This
wes the Jep officer. We were sometimes, however, able to substitute

{
{
i
l
!
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~or tnesze men other nmen whun tae I, reﬁa“'fd as T1tiey 2
' ones picked out by the dap 2iiildF. T“LJM citout, the guestion of
. work quotas was one of dally dispute anad truuuie.

7+  From 26 Kilo camp we maved to 75 Kile cam mp, called MEILOE,
There we struck a worsze crowd oFf Eereson gusrd: than at 26 camp.

! There was a lot of indiscriminagte bpashing there though no serious
injuries were suscained, Tre health ¢f theipon wes poor., len
woulcd be required to leave tie camp early in the morning and would

‘not return until 2 or 3 the nex=® mg~“¢.b, tnen tnoy would be

i compelled to leave agzin the same moraling shorily after dawn.
Occa51onally protests to the Jaops resuiced la some of the men
'being given an exitra hour or “wd of resi. The rainy season there,

4 e 3
imen often worked in mud up to tneir knees and they had no change
iOf clothing, Lieels were onliy fair,
B The Jap engineer scldicrs ill-freated the men a lot by hitting
ithem with bamboo their Tists and rifle butts, througn no fault
‘of the men but due to the impati erce of' the Japs wao could npt
‘understand that the men did not undercstend what was being requited
‘of them all of the time,

D e Jep Commander there was Lieut, EOSHI., I had my own force -
liamsay force and Flack and Green forces,

10, Korean guards apparently under instructions from the camp
commencer oiten forced men cut Lo work., LOSHI would often promise
that they would not be sent out withoat the concurrence of our
I140s but he failed to pass those instruzticns on to his Korean
administrative staff apparentiy, enyvay, So, wkhen the work party
was formed in the morning. ne would not be available, and the
Kcreans would deny that they had received inRZJUCﬁlons from their
commander. On one occasion I went uvp and found aim in the grounds
fust as a party of cur men just serscied were being sent out. I
reminded him of his promise, pciated out the men to him, and he
ordered them bazk to camp. However, he secemed to take great care
subsequentiy that he was never atout the rlace when other parties
were going out. In this camp we had about 10 deaths,

11. We moved to 105 Kilo camp, called AUNGANAUNG, in April or
ey 1043, and remained there for seven montns, It was there we
struck tropicel ulcers pretiy badiy, a lot of the men getting then,
fthere was a hospiial back at 55 Kilo celled the Death Camp. Some
men were sent back there for amputation; There were over 100
impu“ation cases and some cied afier the operatici, The 1M.0s. at

= Kiio camp were Captains Chmu‘ng, Ei;gjng Anderson and Whites the
w e a1l 4.4 .00, ODox ecamp in sirengta veried bpetween the 2G00
ang 2500 merx. OFf my c'iglna‘ force of 1000 men I lest 1283 I
ut nmy deatgs Aovn at 15%. There were 158 deaths a2t the 105 Kilo
camp from the ri’”Q force in the seven mcaths:. There were instance:
of men b01nh xnccxed about oy the Japs and the Koreans with bamboos
2nd other things. necedsitaiing medical treatment, Koresns were
particularly bruval. If they wented to punish a men they would
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istrike him anywhere at 2ll, and on half hezled ulcers., They

‘have kicked men on the shins and the shins had ulcers on them. I

« saw Japs screw a stick into a maen's navel., Lt. HOSHI was commander
! there,

12, TUlcers extended from knee to ankle, exposing the shinbone
for 8 or 9 inches, They went black. I have seen ulcers cover

ra whole foot., The question of iodiform was a pressing one
ttnroughout and once one of my men said he had been offered a small
{ jar of iodiform by a Jap in eXPHange for his watch., lie had

bcen pestered several times to exchange his watch but as it was
,a present from his mother he did not want to let it go. EHowever,
i in order to relieve his friend's suffering f{rcm ulcers he finally
flet it go for the bettle cf iodiform from the Jap., I told the
Jap Commander that the bottle cculd only have been obtained by
illegel means by his men, The exchange was made in the presence
of the Jep Commander. The iocdiform was in a bottle about l%
inches by 3 inches, Our 1,0, said there was enough in it to last
severel weeks, There was no label on it,

13. At the 105 camp there was 2 lot of dysentery and some mzlaria,
We had 3 to 4 cholera cdeaths there. There were no medical supplies;
we tried to et emetine from as far back as IELGUI but never could.

14, In December, 1943, after completion of the railway, we moved
'to TAIARKAN ,

1 There was a statement that the railway had to be put down at
tall costs - responsibility for that was with Col. NAGATOLO, who

t was i/c of No., 3 Branch, which took in our A Force, and Co.
‘Wllllams' force which had come from Java.,

516. Later Col. NAKALURA, who took Col. NAGATOLOS place, spoke
:1n similer terms. Le said we were only a rabble army and that
lwe were dependent on the Jap Imperial Army for our safety.
lNﬁGpTOIO had once read out some such stetement in Japanese end
;then his 1nterpretcr read it out in English. There are copies
tof this; copies weie left with use.
:
'17. NAGATOIIO ceme ‘out to tno camp on one or two occasions, but
‘dld not go right through, At no time dié he interview me in the
‘latter stages, or esk if I had any complaints generally, Neither
lof these two Jep Commandecrs ensured that their instructions,
lwhetever they were after I had had early intcrviews with them, were
|carried out, Perhaps they all of the time had no intention of
igiving these instructions. There always seemed to be.a general
;desire on the part of Jzpanese Commanders to evade responsibility.
loshl would send his batmen out, if we called, to say Loski was
iindisposed and could not be disturbed. Once we arrived too
jguickly for himj; we got onto the verandah of his cottage and
hrough the window saw him just getting into bed, clothed, with
Fls boots on. Ie came out subsequently and saw us. But that was
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'98, On 1 January, 1944, we reached TLLARKAN, It was allgged

! ?o be a rest camp. Food for the first few months was a considerable

improvement on anything we had had. There were not many troops
there when we arrived, but troops ceme all of the time out of the

. Jungle from the Jjungle camps and by liay there must have been about

i 5000 troops there.

|

i 19. There were ccnstant irritation tactics and minor bashings,

{ These were daily occurrences, At one time the camp commander was
\ LATSUSAKI, No indication was ever given to me by the Japs of any
}change in their cormend there.

{20, In August, 1944, the Jeps re-organised their groups. Colonel
; Anderson, who had taken Frig. Varley's place, took over command
¢ TrOn e .
! 21, There were c=omre deaths at Tamarkan. In the "black month" we
lost about 2 a day; we took dead bodies straight from the trucks.
| Dysentery and fevcr end malnutrition caused most of the deaths.
We had no quinine or atebrin. There was a Jap L.,0. at NAGATOLOfs
f headquarters who occesionelly visited the camp, and oncc more in
| thelr usual style they agreed that the men were very sick; but
{ I was told by the commender later thet the men were fit to work
{ because his 11,0, had so reported, The name of the Jap li.0, was
| HIGUChHI., The 1,0, at Tamarkhen was NOBOSAWA., _I believe neither
of them had any medical background, IHIGUCHI was a dentist and_
SAWA a vet, Our senlor II.0, wes Col, Hamilton, For most of
the time, before Col. Hemilton, Hajor Eobbs was our M,0, at
TAVARKAN ,

1
| 22, Ve remeined at TANAEKKAN until February, 1945, when they
| separated officers from Ors.

f 23. We were noved to KANBUL.I; a party of 3,000, including

{ Austrelien, BE: itish, American and Dutche. All officers, They moved
| the officers on a 6-dey trip by river and on foot to a2 new camp,

! and parties went in batches of 500, Five parties already had left a
 intervels of 5 days each. I reached BANGKOK on the niz ht we were

\ notified that the war was over. The camp site was on the other

1 side of BANGKOK.

| 24, Lieut NITO, Chief of Staff of NAGOTOMO, once visited our camp.,
i

! Normally he had been drinking before his arrivael. ke told liajor

- Green, Col. Black and me that he could promise us an honourable

. death, and that if things went bad he would shoot us himself. [

S I8l Ge Bs Rarsayy
TAKEN AND SWOLN AT SYDNEY ON THE TENT:i DAY OF SEl TEMNEEE,
1946, BEFORE LE /s/ k. L. Deasey, J.Fe
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SYNOPSIS OF SVIDANCS

Ce P/ sent to Sian Sector of Purma-Siam Reilway.

a. FProsecution Docuuaent numbered 50594, the Affidavit of Lt. Col. C.H.
E.PPS, is now offered for identification and the marked excerpts produced in
avidence, This cdocument states thot in April, 1943, 7,000 B/'f ware moved
from Singapore to Sizn, The trains were overcrowded, food was irregularly
supplied, water was inndaquate and sanitary conditions either non-existent or
revolting.

.

From Bampong the force was uarched about 1&€5 milss by night. There
was no transport to earry heavy equipment. Tha mar were beaten on the march
by the guards and the sick comnclled “o go on. The staging cumps en route
were £ilthy. In iday 1943 the men comuenced work on the railway.

"In all the woriking camps on the Railway into which our

party moved, the accommodation had not been completed and the

buildings had no roofs The Monsoon rains were then fallangs  The

food in these cnmps wes just rice and onion water or rice and beﬁn

watern,
A1l the tirie cur boots were fallingz to picces, and there

was no replecenient of ciothing or fuotwear. The work on the line

was very brd on boets as we stere dn mud and sonter all dwy/long.

Inter on we had to bnll~st tha line with stones and the men nzd to

walk across these stones ad work in currries without boots.

The hours of woric variad from twelv: to tweniy per day.
Twelve hours and fourteen hours per day were the most common.
Hormnlly the men would be out 2t & a.m, and biek 2t 10 poi.  ‘we had
no diys off, Yha first day off we had was when the Rhilway was
through, ~nd the l1ine wns joined near our camp about 19th or 20th
Sept arber. e had started sbout 14th or 15th lay, wnd we worked
night ~fter night right through te Scpterber, without a break., For
montns ~rd wonths the men did not see their coamp in daylight. Day
after day and many ties 2 day, 1 made protests, the woedieal Gffieon

imrde protests ond the adjutnt imde protests in nn endeavour to get

the nuwubers of umen werking reduced. Nuthing would stop the Japanese.

They saic thay would drive the men to work and if they wanted a
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thousand men for work they sweuld get a thousand ien, irrespsetive
of theip physicall eondition,

Rice with a2 few picce of fish in it, wa2s the food ration, In
the orrly stages rico was fairly plentiful, but as soon =2s a nan
want sick the ration was cut down to one third of the =mount given

to a working mn., Sick were then starved =2nd it was impossible tc¢

build  them up ag
During the coursz of ths building of the line I was told by
the Japancse th-t it was a Militsry Railway, and as soon as the line
was through I s~w the trains loaded with horses, guns, trucks,
ammmanition, cte.
The Force I wahs with was called "F" Force..... Until July X

was with Fond's Battalion....and then with a special party....zt a

Jjust south of NIZKE.

In Junc Pond's Batt=lion arrived 2t KOHCOITA where the party
halted for two uays. The troops w.re billeted in huts which had
been evacuated tha previcus cay on account of cholera deaths. The
huts wers indescribably filthy and protests which were mads to the
Japonese only ecaused tha forcs to realise that they wero officaetiy
placed on’ the same level ss Burmese Coolics, An appliecaticn feor
tools with which to eclean up the filth brought the reply that none

1 y)

was available, despite the fact that hundreds cf showvels and chun-
kesls h~d been brought from UFPik KONCUIT... Coolies walked through
the huts, spat, defecatod and wvomited sverywlero. Yok carts and
yelling droves congreg-ted ~t the entrance. Yaks were token throush

(=

the huts ~nd they dropped their cxerceta whore rice bags had to ba

STOYEt ot s

.t UFP3R SONEURAL Camp in mgust the Intrines were flooded
by incessant rain, Unc of ther had broken its banks and a filthy
stream cozed through the eamp arca and passed under the floors of
the huts cccupicd by the hospital. Outside and even inside the huts
o
was 4 guagunire, There was no reason for tha hespital to be in the
position in which it was 2s there was high sround where it could

have been placed,

No provision fer hospitalization of the force had been made
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except 2 small bospitnl caup at LOWAR HISKE, which was suvon
abandoned, Remuests to =llow it men Lo rerain in canp to)inprove
the situntion werae rafused wnd all £it moen were nade to work

railwny construction. 4Any attempts to get tocls with which officers

oy
=

4

could cdo this work met with vory little success. “fo gven found 3t
difficult to obtain a pick or shovel to dig gravas for the dead.

In the stne canp con the 10th ‘ugust cholera broke out. The
area sclected by the Japrnese for the isolation hespital was 2 small
cleared space of low lying ground cn tho river bank, whors ths mud
was ankls decp and the only fixed =ccomnodation was a2 small hut
capable of holding nu more than thirty patients. The remaindsr of
the personncl placed in isolaticn had tu be guarterad in tents and
uncer tont flys which invariably leaked. o fit mon werce frosd
from enginecr work to assist the sick in providing stagings to keep
thar: fron muddy ground, and a1l dutiss oxecopt nursing had to be
perforned by the personnsd In dsclatiocn,  RHeguests for riors ssrvice=
able tents and tha rslessa of men from work to improve ths ares and
even for » few additional tools all met with thce s=ie result. The

-

Japanagse did not occupy this hospital
Ths instonees I hawve given above indieate generally the type
of secommodation in these cwps, aespt that I have not stressed the
terrific overcrowding which existed everywhsra.
The nen hal n:thina.t' woar exeent thoe clothing dn which they
were eaptursc, =2nd mest of thot had rotted or perishec during the

nonths of the monsoon, - Many 5f the men werc geing to work with only
picee of eloth around their leins.

Ferca Heacguarters ware constantly asking for medical supplics
to bae brought forwnrd, but the smswer always given was that the road
to the swuth was dmpassable. Howover, war sguipnent and merchandise
for the W1dKH shopkeepers wers being brought forwsrd in gquantitics
by river.be~ts. The result wis that medical supplies wers prac-—
tie2lly non-oxistent.

I have seen all the becnes of a man's fect sxposed by an uleer

of*the fouot., I have ssen the bones ¢f 2 man's log axposed from the
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lmee' te the =nkle ~nd I havse ssen 2 nan's ribs sxposed by an ulcer

y treatoent which could be given was scraping

j]

On the 7th July a protest against the maltreatment of the men
was Lorwardec be GeNIRAL BAMIO, This pointed ¢ut thet en the

July, the men marched cog Gf ok {0900 hours 2nd after

through wud feor five kilometres they commenced work at 1030 hours,

~

The task for the day far 135 men was 160 metres of cordursying.
This involwved the renoval of the mud for a width of 6!, laying the
logs, and Craining and reinforeings the trock with earth and stones.
Partics of ten to twelwa men woers foreed to earry in the Gy seven
lugs 15 fect long and 30 9 12 inches in di~muter a cdistance of one
Ki¥onstre though the pud and siush. Pour pen collapsed. In one
instance only six men were astailed te o log, thesse were driven along
by an <ngin:cr who struck the mon evsry ten yards or sc with a
butboo stick.  After 7 brdslk of thirty minutss for luneh they bad

to work on until 2100 hours with cne rest of fifteen minmutes, ré-
uraing tc comp b 2230 heurs.  Thé working houprs the neke day wliee

the sama, sxcent that there was ho bréalr during the' aiternoof.
> | L e

Instead ¢f bon te twelys mam-being milstted to-cach dog earrying
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buen dim huspital wr on lightiewEiss,
Osi one oceasion we wsre able ~ftor somy difficulby to raiss

the secunirea number of men FoR work for the snginesrs when the

Japanose detand s another fifsy for work inside the €oiPecess

I refused ¢n the ground that I had no uscre men whe were capabie

JE standing wn thelir Pact. ..esamg of thum, .. .ontsred one OF the

huspitzl wards and comucnesd slashing at the noen with a stick with
the object o f driving then oub to work... Aftur tho Jipanass Gzd
tated that, if the men were not fortheoming the whole camp: retisn

womld be eut din hal £, e dseided shit it weuld be in the interesh

of the nen if we sclectaed f£ifty, rathsr then have the comp literally

Nue 3 camp were well nigh

starved. 4t this stzgé condifions din
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desporatc. The nusber of sick was ~bovc ona thousand, cut cf
a stropngth of 1680, ,.-a"
In July 1943, when the witnsss had sent out less than the requiraed
iwn cwing to siclness, one of the Japoness officers summoned him
that:
#The construction of the railway had to gc on without deliy =s it
was reguired for opcrntional purposes, and had to be finished within
2 caertain time at all eosds; drrespective of thoidess of diwves of
British and dustralian prissners. He saicd it was no use cur quoting
the articles of the Geneva Convention, as our owa psople had of-
fended 2g2inst it by the sinking of hespital ships and by running
down civilian intorne.s with steam rollsrs. If neecsssary, he stated,
the wen would be roecuired to work three to four deys on end without
Yeshen .

I gainced the impression that sverything was tu be subordinated

to the completion »f the linc by the c¢nd of lugust, and when this
was not fulfilled (The Japonese) bee~ie insons with rage. In ths
last cays of its counstruction our men had to work from 0530 hours
until 0200 hours the fellewing day.

On the 13th Septerber I was informied by Licut. FUEUDA that
the men rust be prepared to work 211 thrcugh the night as the rajl-
way was vnly 2 few kilometros to the north, =and it was necessary
that the linc should reach SCRNKUR.I, three kilomstres to the south
by the 16th. Owing to tlie hcavy rain, however, th. work ceasad
at 2230 hours, the avn hawving becn sut sinec 0530 hours that
porning. On the 14th Scptawber raveills was at 0530 hours and
tespite heavy rain a1l day and throughout the evening the nen
were forced to remcin cut until 0230 hours on the 15th.  Agadn
they were rcussd at 0530 hcurs and were worked until midnight of
the 15-16th Septciber. On the 16th reveille was at 0530 heurs and
work finishad at 2200 hours. By this time the men wsre completely
axhausted. Conditions were approxinmstely the sama on the 17th.

A1l the foregoing facts are set out in oy di~ry which I kept =t

Taox . A B
Bhe tire s e s
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Of the original 3,662 1en who lcft SIG.POKE as members
of "F" Force, 1060 failed to rsturn, representing approximately
29% of the 4.I.F. componunt. Thae losses in the whole Forcswas
L4a%,  The British lost 59%......" ?

b, Frosscution document numbered 50644, the Affidavit of Maj. B.L.W.
CLARKE, 2 doectur, is now produced for identification nnd the marked excerpts
therein offered in evidence. This doeument described the econdition of some
>f the men of F Force who returned from the railway camps in Decerber, 1943:

"These men were in a shocking conditisn, suffering from gross
attacks of boeri-beri, and Sts waricus types, malaria, tropical
ulcers and gross debility. The loss of weight was siuply appalling.
The average loss of waight would appear to be in the neighbourhood
of 70-80 1bs. per indivicual. approxinately 80 per cent of these

3 ren had to be admitied dmrediately to hospital.™

¢. Prosecution Decumecnt npmbered 5013, the Lffidawvit of! B.G. JILLIAMS,
is offered for icdentifiention, and the excerpts narked therein now produced
in evidence. This document describes the nightrare journay of P/ by caftle
truck fron Singaporc to¢ Siam. Men wore overworked, underfed, lived in
appalling filth, woere beaten and foreed to work when sick at camps in-and
nanr KINSIOK, Dyscntery, malzria =md cholgra took their tolldl  Clothing
hardly existed and ~fter a dey's work, scie nmon actually were only able to
crawl back to ewmp. Towards the ond of The eonstruction of tha railway, men
werc foreed to work dimpossible hours, and the Japancese rocklessly disregarded
the danger of landslides sc¢ that on one cecasiun six rnen were nsedlessly
killed.

d, Frosecution docunent numbered 5067, the affidavit of rt. Col, E.d.
BiRRATT, f..i0l..C., is tondored for identification anc the iarked excerpts
offered in svidenco, This decwient treats of the conditicns in CHUNGKAT
Sick Camp botween liay, 1943 2nd January, 1944. The average nunmber of Priscners
of war in the Camp was 8,000, They consisted of nen sent fron the railway
cauips sufforing frum varicus injurics nnd discasgs.  In seven rionths 1400

prisoncrs diad, mony from tropical ulesrs which hacd been caused by injury at

work or fron the guards, an¢ from deficiency lisecasces.
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/-Thk’///zra no anagsthstics, no instrugcnés.anc = meagurs supply oI
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. then/to waten anl}mputation‘Which\was being ®arricd out on a trop-—
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s y "Onc ‘\,’;8.,’[/5"]'2;')_:11 @St coctors cane tc ses tho camp. I asksd
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jtrl-tleer,case, Durin. the course the eeratisn one of the
Japansa Coctors f ainted and another was sick. Thinking this was

i s 'T"""/'/ . 1 .

2 good opportunity to request proper, instruments and supplies of

. drugs, I made ~ recuscst to thum and their answer was that I nust
rcalize that thesc ware prisonors of war and no supply could be
pade,t

@, Prosccution document nuibered 5072, the Affidavit of Sgt. C. BZERRY,

s

for ddentification, and the marked excerpts vproduccd in evi=

This documsnt status that the witness was at SUNGKRGI from Moy, 1943
until Septenber, 19433 :

Hihen at SUHGKRLI I was 2t Iio. 2 Caup (Death Vallqy) ant was
forced to work on the roed ‘during my first nine days. At SUNGKR.I
there wore barboo buildings without roofs or sides. Therc was mud
on the floors which had no fuuniations whatevor, dbove the floor
thars was bacboo natting, " The first night 1680 priscners of war
ware pub int: two huts about 200 nctrses long and about 24 fast
broad. It was raining whon we arrived and it continuod a1l night.
Thore was no cover whatsoever and the iasnsoon rain came down and
ns one had ér;undshu&ts g othorisrotiekion. Lt soon bocane ~bso-
lutaelr impossibls to: lic there. The only nlternative was to light
fires and kecp worn by stanling around.-then, we stayed therc all
ni ht until 0500 hours the following rorning when cverybody paradsé

vyricr tc going on to the railroad the first day. e were givan nc
opportunity of cleaning up or nnking the camp inhsbitablc.’ dge wers

&

<

Jdvided inko proups of fifty =nd positions wore allotted four -piles
cn erch side cf the erdp. My particular party was marched about thre.
piles from the camp. It was raining very hard and we were very cold,
only:cecebbing halt s pant OF rice for broskfast, which was servaed =t

0530 hours. sach man was issucc with a spade, a basket and a pick.
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we started work immetisbaly digging the road and we stopped for
ton winutes swory £ive hours. Half » pint of rice was issucd 2t
a cuarter to one ~nd then wie continued. o marched back to the
crmp ~t 1830 hours. 7This wos the d2ily rcutine,

wfter two coys of rvin the cimp was nothing but 2 sea. No
rroteetion was affordsd against the rrin, very min in the camp
ha"to line up in the c2rk for a further quarter of 3 pint of ries
and vegatable stew 2t ~bout 1915 hours. During the day's work no-
bocy was yermitbed by the Jajmnsse to lsave the Dardy if they were

t

[

111 or hurt in =py w=y. after @iiht days, Juringiwhich poried

rained stondily, »~lm bronches were plarced cn the ol As'n protee=

L

tion and =lso <n the sidas of the hats. Nothing was Conc bout ths
flocr ~nd bulow bhe b mboo wiba the water rushned through. Ths nien

had &0 1ics down on the b MADOU, AN the Cum.

- - it ' Y- = s = N ey TN 4 - 3
Un fiy seeond day thers, cholora broks out. No preporation

&4

~

hac been made for =n isolation hospital 2nd the cosus could AL HECIEES
segraegbad,  afber approxiistely a wesk from the tinms of &y arpivels
he Japanocse mrovided 2 hut for cholera cnscs and the following day

-

I was sent as a waedieall orcerly for Guty 2t ths hut, This huk was
only pertly roifed ~gainst tha ra2in and the combroe of the hut eoin—

cided with the course of thi woter eseanin: down tho hillsidas,

There ware bwmboo mots on tne sides of ths wall of the hut but

thera was nothing in the ecintre whore the wajor part of the watar
cruad threugh, Thire were so mnny casualtioss thot thers was insuf=
ficivnt room by the wolls sad somd had to 1is an the water. e
holaes dn thoe roof wspe sz lerge thob bhe rain cand Through chnsbo
the nen who were lying benesth, @e hnd no water othor then 2 tae
from the roof, whiech we hod to'boil, Thire was no scconmyiabacy
for the vrderlics, whe had to slssp anong ths patisats. HNo chelses
incenlatitn was sossible.

r.

=

fra crsualtiss werc earriad o the hostibal by the it ricis-
ers Vi war un growmashests. Cholors being highly' eontaguecus, thasa
ien wors frocuantly infected and diec, Thore was no lighting what—

e¢Ver and when I was op night Juty it was inpossible to renswve the
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deat, who in consacuencs hod to runsin siong the living until <xy-—
brink. On the first w2y thirty—vight izan dicd 2nd woera loft cutside
the hut, no provision boing made for them to bae roaovsed. Thers was
a lereiation narty of prisonsrs of wor but these could do nothing
bucause the Japonsse refused to give them shovels or sther impdements
with which te bury ths bodiss. There were any nuaber of tools be-
cuse they had to be used for cigeing the road. Those thirty-cight
men were left cutside thoe hut for ftwo dsys, only some of them bcing
covered, dventua}ly aftor twe days the Japsnese gave facilities
for burying thom,

ancther hut was made avnilabls for cyssntary cases. The Jap-
mese us«d to test 211 priscners of war for dysentory by putiing
cither 2 picee of buwboo or 2 pilaca of wire or 2 glass tube up the
rectun. This was 2 (~intul opeeation for thuse who wers fit. They
would t1kKe cut persons who were wxtremely ill or dying of dysentery
and would carry out this test, and this in bad cases definitoly
precijitnted death by reason of the Dzin snd the fact of their be-
ing movad. Convalescunts wurs forced té carry buusboos long dis-
tances in the roin with bare fest, with the rosuit that their Ideh
werd torn and resulting in ulesrs, for which thors were no facili-

n

]
I

ties for trgstuent, md meny of them died,....
f. Frosecution Decunent numbered 50314, the ffidavit of Maj. R. Jde

CillFBALL, is ¢ffercd for identification nnd the marked oaxeurpts tharcof pro-
ducsd in evidence, This Affidavit states that the Camp at T.LARKAN was ¢lose
t2 bridges which spanned 2 river and these were rorentedly bomboed, rermission
to kark the caup as containing P/# was roefused, and in sne raid 18 nsn wuere
kill:l an<¢ huts sct on firc.

ot RNBURI Camp in June, 1945, 2 British officsr, the Camp Inter-
proter, was be~ten into insensibility by Japancse officers, He was then put
ints 2 covared slit tronch, 5 ft. by 2 ft. 6 ins, by 4 f£t., which hzd six
inchss of wrter anc mud in it wnd w3s infestod with mosquitess, The officar
hrd only a pair of shorts. He wwg =iven water and ons ball of rice par day,
Later he wos taken back to the guird room whers he was throatened with tortura

as o result of which he endeavoured to comidt suicids.
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Two ronths later ha was racsversd by B/ ductors who s=id he would
have bean dead in a fow r\r; cays. He was insane, sufferec from blackwater
fover and was terribly cmacisteds He hod not washaed vr shawved during the paridc
znd hed not defeented for tﬁu nonths during tha sighty days he spont in the
tronch.

g. arcsccution drcunent nunborad 5074, the ffidavit of C.%.1.8. G.
KNC..LES, ‘%s now offered for identifiention ~nd the mrrked oxhibits therain
rrocuced in evidenee, This iffidswit relates the s wage besting of rrisoncrs
Oof war ot LNBURI, ien were beaton with toenk polos om 211 parts of tho body
until in soutie erscs the men were broken nd unrceognizable nd two ¢fficers
wePd rmarcerad,

h, Prosecution Docwient nuubored 5075, the ffidavit .f Sub-Licut.J.Q. |
C..UN, is tendered for identifieation andé the parked excerypts thereof now
offored in evidence. This  ffidrwit st~tes th 't in July 1943, at KNBURY
the witnoss on being told thot sowe sick men had arrived there found thenm
crwling ~bout the 3 kilomctre stretceh separating the rrilwsy station fron
the camr. Ono orderly had been sent with 170 men suffering from beri beri,
dysontery, tropical ulcers and cholera to this eamp,. It took five hcurs to
fans 11 these man,

The Jar-nese idjutnt f the Coxp snid he w.uld opon a new hospital for
ther, He srderced sone F/0 to brenk down the fonee which separatad the camp
from th:t of ~ Jaenese cav=lry regiment which had left the doy bafore. There
were 20 crity huts in nost of which there was -nin~l dung and filth., Tha
sojutnt ordersd the sick men to be noved here within mn hour,

It was two waecks befure nmedical staff wns gathered to look aftur the
husgitnl., By this tisme thore were osver 1,500 patients ~nd the dnily death
rote wts between seven =2nd twelve.,

4 nenth Ioter, despite 211 effurts, dyscntery pntisnts were still
1yin, opn the jrounc in o hut without platforns.

The hospital e=me under the direet combrol of Japmmcse Hoade un
JEficer f the J-pancsc Guoneral Staff, P/ Commnné visited the hospital throee
ways after its grisly cpening, and saw the disgracaful eonditions in which the

sick were living.




: Ay

Evidentiary pocument # 50594,
INTERMATIONLL MILITARY TRIBUNAL FOR THE FaR EAST,
No, 1.
TUNITED STLT' S OF AMERICA £ND OTHERS.
- against -
ARART, SADAO AND OTHERS,

I, CHARLES HINRY KAFPE of BRISBAME in the STATE of QUEENSLAND, moke
oath and say aos followsy-

NRY KAPPE: SIGN:LS UNIT, O
soner of war of the Japanese at

1. I was V45783 LT.COL, CEARLES
AUSTRALIAN DIVISICN, when I becams a pr
SINGLAPORE on the 1i5th F&bfhd;y, 1542,

,J '
w b

~2e I left CHANGE in April, 1943, in command of 3660 iustralian troops
generally specking, the men were in good condition, but f£it for light work
onlye Aifter fourteen months on insufficient food they had no resistance
cnd no reserve of strengthe

s The Joapcnese seid that the movement of this force of 7000 strong,
comprised of 3,300 British and the remainder Ausiralians, under the
commond of Ib. Col. HARRIS, 18 vive. Artillery, @ Britisher; was because
the food situation in Singapore was deteriorating,

b The Japounese told us we were going to a place where the climate
was similar to that of gingopores. They scid we were going to seven camps
in %he hills in a good Cl;muﬁb with healthy surroundings; that as meny
mosquitc nets and blankets as possible were to be tcken by individuals and
deficienciecs would be made up when we reached our destinution (which was
not disclosed); Canteens were to be established in all coamps and no
restrictions were to be pluced on the amount of personal equipment to be
taken; transpcrt would be made available for the cartage of heavy cam
equipment, camp and medical stores for ihe men unfit to merch; there
would be no long marches; we were not to be a werking party. I was not
told this perscnally, but the Force Commander was told and I have seen it
in his sworn report thut thirty per cent of the men could be unfit,
Australian policy was that only very near fits would go. There was no
inclusion of any sick personnel. In the Australian component we had only
one hundred and twenty--five men who were unfit for work, whereas the
British included the full thirty per cent.

e e moved by train in parties of 700 4o BAMPONG in THATLAND. The
transport was in ten rice trucks cnd each had to accommodate twenty-seven

“to twenty-eight men and stores. There was no ventilation in the trucks
except the sliding doors. The heat was terrific, The {rucks could only
hold ten men comfcrtably.
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6. The men were kept in the truciis for leng intervals and sanitary
facilities en route were sither on-existznt or filthy.

i The food ccnsisted of twenty ounces of rice and onion weter per
man per day for everybody including the sick. e were not given reguler
meals, sometimes we went for tweniy-four hours without food and one party
went for forty hours wivhoull GG

8. The water suppliecd wos inedequate, Drinking water was very
limited, we could only fill our water bottles at the stops, which were
irregulir, One train was without wazter for a full dey snd until mightfall
on the next.

Te The trip lasted four to five doys.
1@ When we arrived at RAMPONG we were placed in a staging camp where

the accommodation wes filthy and over-crowded, Food consisted of rice and
there was very little of it. We had one day there.

il ve then marczhed by night, a total of 185 to 190 miles as neer as
we can gauge. For the first port of the journey the weather wes dry, It
wes tropiecl country and pecspiration just poured from everybody and our

clothes became absolutely wet, when we were morching these long distances
end carrying hecvy loads, later the MNonsoon broke ond we marched through

tropical rain,

20 Rest periods were quite useless because the staging camps were in
cleared creas alcngside the truck cnd no cover or prosection from the
tropical sun or insects wos provided,

13. The journcy took seventecen days and during that time we had three
extra days' rest, that is three nights withouv merehing.

1. our longest merch weas cboui iwenvy--eight kilometres, during which
we marched forty minutes and rested twenty minutcs., Ve were very Over=-
locded as we hud to carry our cooking contliners, gear and medical supplies.
There was no transport to tcke any of the heavy gear which consisted of six
gcllon contuiners, medical pemiers full of medical stores, picks; shovels,
ctc,

154 e were constantly badgered by the Japanese, and the sick were
forced to continue despibe our own medizal officers! opinions. The guards
beat them along, and meny had to be cearried by conrades cn improvised
stretchers throughout the night, in addition to their own loads,

16, The beatings und slappings of men who were completely unfit
weckencd them to such an extent that when they crrived at their czmps they
fell easy victims to cholera ond other diseases and died rapidly. The
Japenese never lect up or allowed the men including the sick, to resta It
seemed to be the higher poliey to drive these men through, to sec that they
did not remein in the staging camps.
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257 Most of the beatings were done with hands and fists, but therc was
one instance when two officers, Mrjor ANDERSON cnd Lieut. TWEEDIE were
beaten with a golf club,

18, Everyone of the steging camps was shocking from the point of view
of sanitation, filth, full Jetrines, eic. were ripe for dysentery and other
diseases. There were flies Ly the millions and maggots crawling everywhere,

19. our party went to within a few miles of the THREE PAGODAS PASS
on the BURMA-THATLAND RAILWAY, and the men commenced werk on the line in
mid Mey 1943. I was with them the whole time,

20, In all the working camps on the railway into which our party moved,
the accommodation had not been compliebed and the buildings had no rocfs,.

The Ijonsocon rains were then falling, The food in these eamps was just rice
and onion water or rice and beam water.

21, All the time our boots were falling to pieces, and there was no
replacement of e¢lothing or footwear, The work on the line was very hard on
boots as we were in mud and water 2ll day long. Iater on we had to ballast
the linc with stones and the men had to walk ccross these stones and work
in quarries without bocts,

22, The hours of work varied from twelve to twenty per day. Twelve
hours and fourtesn hours per day were the most ecommon, Normally the men
would be out at 8 a.m, ard back at 10 p.ms We had no days off. The first
day off we had was when the railway was through, and the line was joined
near our camp about 19th or 20th september. Ve had started about the 1l4th
or 15th May, and we worked night afier night right through to September,
without a break. For months and months the men did not see their camp in
daylight. Day after day and many times a day, I made protests,the Nedical
Officer made protests and the Adjutant made protests in an endeavour to get
the numbers of men working reduced., Nothing would sitop %he Japanese. They
said they would drive the men to work and if they wanted a thousand men for
work they would get a thousand men, irrespective of their physical condition.

29 Rice with a few pieces of fish in it; was the food ration., In the
early stages rice was feirly plentiful; but as soon as a man went sick the
ration was cut down to one third of the amount given to a working man.

Sick were then starved and it was impossible to build them up again., Te
have complete records of the ration and they show that the food was totally
inadequate,

2 During the course of the building of the line I was told by the
Japanese that it was a pilitary Railway, and as soon as the line was through
I saw the trains loaded with horses, guns, trucks, ammunition, ete,

25 The Force I was with was called "F" FORCE and we worked on the
section of the railway just south of the THREE PAGODA PASS to NIEKE. Until
July I was with POND'S Battalion moving from KONCOITA to TAIMONTA and then
with a special party of three hundred odd to a general camp just south of
NITKE,
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26, In June POND's Battalion errived at KONCOIT: where the party
halted for two days. The troops wers billeted in huts which had been
evacuated the previous day on account of cholsra deaths. The huis were
indescribably filthy and protests which were mmde to the Japanese only
caused the force to rsalise that they were officially placed on the same
level as purmese coolies, An application for tools with which to clean up
the filth brouc.ht the reply that none was available, despite the fact

that hundreds of shovels end chunkels had been brought frowm UPPER KONCOITA.
Coolies walked through the huts, spat, defaecated and vomited everywhere.
yYak carts and yelling droves congregated ab the entrance; yaks were taken
through the huts and they droppsd their excreta where rice bags had to be
stored.

27 There werc dead coolies within two hundred to three hundred yards.
28, At UPPER SONKURAI Cemp in august the latrines were flooded by the

incessant rain. One of them had broken its banks and a filthy stream oozed
through the camp area and passed under the floors of the huts occupied by
the hospital. (utside and even inside the huis was a gquagmire. There was
no reason for the hospital to be in the position in which it was as there
was high ground where it could have been placed,

29. No provision for hospitvalisation of the force had been made,
except a small hospital camp at LOTER NIFKE, which was soon abandoned.
Requests to allow fit men to remain in camp to improve the situation were
refused and all fit men were made to vwork on railway construction. Any
attempts to get tools with which officers could do this work met with very
little success. 1ie even found it difficult to obtain a pick or shovel to
dig graves for the dead,

B0 In the same camp on the 10th iugust cholsra broke out. The area
selected by the Japanese for the isolation hospital was a small cleared
space of low lying ground on the river bank, where the mud was ankle deep
and the only fixed accommodation was a small hut capable of holding no more
than thirty patients. The remainder of the personnel placed in isolation
had to be quartered in tents end under tent flys which invariably leaked,
No fit men were frreed from engineer work to assist the sick in providing
stagings to keep them from muédy ground; and all duties except nursing had
to be performed by the personnel in isolation. Requests for more service-
able tents and the release of men from vork to improve the area and even
for a few additional tools all met with the same result., The Japanese did
not occupy this hospital,.

SET Ti.e instances I have given above indicate generally the type of
accommodation in these camps, except that I have not stressed the terrific
overcrovding which existed everyvherea

32, The men had nothing to wear except the clothing in which they were
captured, and most of that Lad rotted or perished during the months of the
monsoon. lany of the men were going to work with only a scanty piece of
cloth around tkeir loins.
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33 Force Headquarters were constantly asking for medical supplies
to be brought forward, but the answer always given was that the road to
the south was impaesable, However, war equipment and merchandise for the
NIEKE shopkeepers were being broupt forward in quantities by river boats.
The revult was that medical supplies were practically non-existent.

3k. T have seen &ll the bones of a man's feet exposed by an ulcer
of the foot. I have sesn the bones of a man's leg exposed from the knee
to the ankle and T have secn & man'!s ribs exposed by an ulcer under his
arm, The only treatment which could be given was scraping with sharp
instrunents,

35 The Japanese had their own medical supplies at NIIKE because
some of cur justralian doctors who were working in that area were attemptin
to purloin some of these stocks to pass on to our caups.

36. The facts set out in the preceding paragraphs are typical of the
treatment meted out generally at the railway camps in respect of medical
supplies.

37 on the 7th July a protest against the maltreatment of the men was
forwarded to GENERAL BANNO. This pointed out that on the 3rd July the men
marched out of camp at 0900 hours and after ploughing through mud for five
kilometres they commenced work at 1030 hours. The task for the day for
135 men was 160 metres of corduroying. This involved the removal of the
mud for a width of 6 ft., laying the logs, and draining and reinforeing the
track with earth and stones. Parties of ten to twelve men were forced to
carry in the day seven logs 15 feet long and 10 to 12 inchés in diameter

a distance of one kilometre through the mud ‘and slush, Four men collapsed.
In oae instance only six men were detailed to a log, these were driven
along by an engineer who struck the men every ten yards or so with a
bamboo stick, Up to 1345 hours the men had been given no rest. Then
after a break of thirty minutes for lunch they hcd to work on until 2100
hours with one rest of fifteen minutes, returning to camp at 2230 hours.
The working hours the next day were the same, except that there was no
break during the afternoon. Instead of ten to twelve men being allotted
to each log carrying party, there were only seven. Eight men collapsed
under the heavy loads., I made that report after enquiry with lmjor
JOHNSTOIT,

38, The above is typical of the work on the corduroying of roads, but
the work on the construction of embankments and digging cuttings was
just as arduous, The whole force worked seven days a week until about

the 17th september,

39 The majority of men who went to work would normally have been in
hospital or on light duties.

40, On one oocasion we were able after some difficulty to raise the
required number of men for work for the engineers when the Japanese
demanded another fifty for work inside the camp, This work included the
building of a new barrack hut for the Japanese, the meking of pathways and
other work in their interest. I refused on the ground that I had no more

&
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men who were capable of standing on their feet, I fought the Japanese

on this matter for iwo hours, fThe two persons making tals Cemand were
Iieuts. FURUDA and TOYANA, -After this $imes., ons of theam, I thirk it was
TOYAlMA entered one of whe hospival wards and cormenced slashing at the men -
with a stick with theobjeet of driving them out to work. I had a hurried
conference with my seaior Medical gffizoer, Mmjor STIVENS. after the

o

Japenese had stated that, if the men were not fortheoming,the whoie camp
ration would be cut in half, we decided that it would be in she intersesy
of the men if we selected fifty men in the latter stages of their malaria
treatment, rather than have the camp litsrally starved. At this stage
conditions in No. 3 camp were well-nigh desperate. The number of sick

was achove one thousand, out of a streangth of 1680,

ki, on the 15th july, 1943, I sent cut a party, 38 less than the
number requested. The senior Medical (ificer and his assistant started
work as soon as it was light to rﬁ*l 3sify the men. At about mid--day

Majors HUNT and JOENSTON and I wers summened to I.J.A, Headcuarters where
we found FUKUDA in a ragiug t&mp er bezause his orders had not been carried

out. FUKUDL stated it was Japanis intention to beccme friendly with
Australia after the war, but the senior officers were doing all they could
to antagonise the japanese by,refusing to carry out orders. He said that
if he ordered that 1000 msn would go to work, they would go despite any
protests which we would muke., The Japanese endneers were prepared to die
and the prisoners also rust be prepared to secrifice their lives for the
railway. He went on to threater that not only would the Camp Commender

and his staff be punished Lut all men in the cawmp weuld be made to suffer
for the disobedience cof his orders. Qur own particular punishment was to
consist of being made %to stand in a fire, He pcinted out thet the con-
struetion of the railway had to go om without delay as it was required for
operational purposes, and had ® be finished within a certain time at all
costs, irrespective of the loss of lives of British and sustralian prisonhers
He said i% was no use our qucting the articles of the Geneva Convention, as
our own people had cffenied against it by the sinking of hospital ships

and running do'\.n civilian internees with steam rcllers, If necessary, he
stated, the men would be required to work three to iuur days on end without
reste

42 The above instances . of the Japanese attitude towards
work throughout the railwa T bulnﬂc the impression that
everything was to ne subordineted to the completion of the line by the end
of Augus', and vwhen this was poy fulfilied, they became insane with rage.
In the lust days of its somstruction our men had to work from 0537 hours
until 0200 hours the following day.,

43 on the 13th September T was informed by Iieut. FUXUDA that the
men must be prepared to work all Lhrnuén the night as the railway was only
a few kilometres to the north, and it was necessary' that the line should

rcuch SONFURAY, three kilometres to the south by the 16th. Owing to
heavy rain, however, the werk ceased at 2230 hours, the men having been
out since 0530 hours that morning. On the 14th September reveille was at
0530 hours and Zespite heavy rain all day and bhroughout the evening the
men were forced to remain out until 0230 hours on the 15th. Again they
were roused -at 0530 hours and were worked until mignis®tof the 15/16th
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September. On the 146%h reveille was at 530 hours and -work finished at 2200
hours. By this time the men were completely exhausted. Conditilons were
approximately the same on the 17th, All the foregoing facts are set out

in my diary which I kept at the time, ;

Ly, In November, 1943, after the completion of the railwuy the
survivors came south by rail to KANBURI, which was the Japunese main base
for the railway construction, After about ten days there we moved to
BANGK(K, After about a week there I moved by ship with 500 troops to
SELARANG, SINGAIT'CRE.

45. of the original 3,662 men who left Singapore as members of wF"
Force, 1060 failed to return, representing epproximately 29 of the A I.F.
component. The losses in the whole yorce was Lig. The British lost 59%.

46. Meny of +the men have died since and T am certain that many others
will feel the effects for the rest of their lives,

Al 1 consider the reasons fcr the heavy loss of life were the poor
food for the fourteen months in CHiNGI, followsd by a five days! train
Jjourney under shocking conditions, followed by sevenieen days! marching
through the jungle wiih heavy loads and through filthy staging camps with
poor food, which completely exhuusted the men, No rest was given before
they were sent to work. Insufficient food was provided to make good the
exhaustion of their bodies following those events. Food of a nutritional
value was absent. On top of that excessive overwork had to be done., There
was lack of elementary medical supplics and facilities and elementary
neccssities for sanitation and hygiene,

(signed) C.H., KAPFE, Col.

SVORN BEFORE ME AT BRISBANE
ON THE 6TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 1946.

(Signed) A-H. DEAKIN, J.P.

JUSTICE OF THE PEZACE.
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INTERNATION.AL MILITARY TRIBUNAL FOR THE FAR EAST.

NO. 1.

UNITED STATES OF AMIRICA AND OTHFRS

- ageinst -

ARAKI, SADAO AND OTILRS.

[ I, BURNLTT L%SLIL WOODBURY CLARKE of BRISRLNE in the STLTE of QUEENSLAND,

MEDICAL PRACTITIONTR, reke oath end say as fellows:-

I was Q¥.22806 I{AJOR B.L.W. CLARKE, 2/13 i.G.H. 8 AUSTRALIAN
DIVISION, vhen I became a prigonsr of war in the hands of the Japanese
Forces.

2 . In December, 1943, a large portion of wp» Force returned fron
the BURMA-THAIL.IND RALILTLY, These nen were in & shocking condition,
suffering from gross attacks of beri~-beri, and its various types,
nalaria, tropical ulcers and gross debility., The loss of weight was
simply appalling, fThe average loss of weizht would appear to be in -
the neighbourhood of 70-80 lbs. per individual, jipproximatcly 80 per
cent of thesc men had to be admitted immediately tc hospital, ]

SWORN BEFORE M AT BRISRANE ON THE )
13TH DiY OF SEPTEMEER, 1946 } (sigred) B,L.F. CLARKE.

(signed) A4.H, DEAKIV, J.P.
JUSTICE QF TIE PEACE,
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The International
1MMlitary Tribunal
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I, Ronald George yilliams of Derby in the State of Tasnania, formerly :
TX2146 Lieutenant Ronald (eorge Tilliams of /40 Aust. Infantry Battalion,
make oath and say. -

I was first taker prisoner in Timor on 23 February J9h2.  En
September 1942 1 was toker with a number of ;ustralians to Java. 1%
left Java for gingapore or. umJamuylﬁg:ndumtto&mw1mhae
we remained until 21st jaruwary, 1943,

st i o,

from chang:i we erwtrained on 21 Junua-y 1943 and arrived at
Bangpong, Thailand, on 25 january 1943. The srain trip was very bad,
e were put into either cattle trucks or rice trucks in small steel
compartuents, into which over 30 men were crcwded. The heat was terrific
during the day and it was freezing cold at midnight. There was not
sufficient roorm for the :en to lie dowmn. The food was supplied on the
railway station and was rot particularly bad. Ve had a lot of malaria
on the trip but robody duied.

A - Lo = % G-

Fron Bangpong w: went by truck to Taso, up the river. Ve
stayed there overnight 2ad on the following worning left for a place
later called Hintok, wh¢re we arrived on 27 Jeanuary 1943. e arrived
at about five o'clock i, the evcning. Up a narrow road the Japenese
peinted to the jungle it self and said, mThere is your camp.®" Te then
had to go to work to hew a camp site out of the jungle; we had to get
off the road because of the traffic. The following doy we reccived some
tents, Food was very, very vcor at this stage. e had umore or less
plain rice for the two months we were there. Tfe were joired by a large
Dutch perty who kad a 2ot of cases of dysentery; they had about four or
five deaths before we _.eft but we did not have any although soie of our
party contracted the d:.sease. ¥e were still having trouble with malaria
and general malautrition and beri beri, Up to tnl time we had found
out how to tleutt;OpIC'l ulcers and we huid them under control. At this
caiyp we were first enp .oyed in clecning a laxrge area in which to build
e carp, and then we dil repair work on the jungle roads. The hours of
&work were from ejght otelock in the morning until six o'clock at night.

had sore sick men vho were taken out to work every day. Sonie men had
1to &0 out to work barefootcd because they haé no boots. OQur clothes were

ractically worn out, [fter we had built the camp the justralians were
in tents but the putekr were left out in the open with no accormodation
whatsoever.

e ——
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our next camp was at Kinsiok, where we came under the cormand
of Tenska. Tve rmrched 17 kilometres and arrived there on 18 March 1943,
and left with a.party of 230 cn 1 April 1943, The food was a little
better, as wc received a small quantity of dried fish; but it was still
absolutely inadequute and tne men continued to go downhill in health
mainly througlh malnutrftion; they were becoming weaker and weaker every
day. The acccrmicdation with which we were provided had forrerly been a
Dutch dysentery hospital, and there werc faeces all over the floor, There
werc some minor beatings in the campe. & went out to work on the railway
line and it was here that we first came into contact witk the Japuanese
engineers, whonl we nicknamed the "Black Crows®, I went out on to the rail-
way lines and tried to talk to the Japanese officer with a view to
shortening the kours of work and allowing sick men to rest as well as to
provide thenm with at least half-an-l:our for lunch as they were getting
only 10 or 2C ninutes, but for that I received a decent sori of bashing
from the Japanese officer., Sick men were forccd to work on the railway
line, fTi:e reply I recedived fron the Japznese was, "hen the Japanese
soldiers are sick they rmst work, so your men will work end also you will
work, T refused to work and told hinm that T was there to look after the
nen and not to work, and for that I was beaven with a walking cane, The
Jopanese were standing on the railway embankment throuhout the duy
throwing pieces of rock and dirt at the men if they go rmuch as straightened
their backs; they were also hit over the head with bamboo sticks, e
did not have any deatks, IEdical supplies were very, very linmited and
elothing likewise was short, 2s we had had no extra clothing given to us,
our doctors eand medical sergeant hed the tropical ulcers under centrol
but we had some very bad beri beri cases and perhaps ten of our nen who
were going blind were evacuated down the line to the hospital. 4Lt that
tine there werc 376 wnen in our party,

Fror. ¥Xinsiock I went with 230 men to clear another piece of jungle
ot xinsiok ITo° 1 Jungle Camp, 10 kilonetres down the river, 7e left on 20
July 1943. The food was at all times very scarce and the ren were still
going downhill from nelumtrition. .ccormodation was ubsolutely appalling;
we had 20 and 22 nen in & tent, which legked very rmuch. Jkn were working
fron seven otclock in the norning until 9 ctelock at night, when they
returned to cump, endeavouring to eat their food in the dark end going to
these tents which were absclutely 1;;0051016 to sleep in owing to the
weather. 7¢ had & great dcal of sizkness and dozens of sick iuen were
being forced out to work ou the railway lire each day. They were beaten
if they could not work., The ren in charge of thet carp was a Jupanese
named Hori Gunso, who is now dead, The Cowaander of the cerp was still
Taenaka, who was really responsible for our treatment. ¢ had our first
cholera cases there in July 1943. Iight Lustralicus died fron dysentery,
malaria end cholera. 71e had been joined at this canp by a party of 500
Englisimen, Up *ill their arrival we had had no dvruntery in the camp
but unfortuna+clv they brousht it with ther, and it becane rife amongst us.
Medical supplies were the shortest they had been up to date. e had
practically no beatings insgide the caryp but the engincers were bashing the
nen all duy, The Bnglish suffered about 4O deaths in the camp end they
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evacuated 350 sick men out of their 500, oOver the whole period, about 50

or 60 of our men were evacuated, Ve hud great difficuliiy in getting ren
evacuated; we would argue with the japanese for hours about it, L4t that
stage, the nen were wearing any old regs they couldget; they had no proper
clothes znd no fcoiwsar whaitever, Because of this, they contracted some sort
of foot-rot and I have actually seen uen crawling back into caryp at night,
Yet the Japanese would not allow then to stop work,

oo 20 July 1943 we went back to Xinsiok for three days to finish
the railway line, his was what the boys called "Three Days of Hellw,
They used to be made to work from daylight to dark to get the railway line
corpleted. The hours of work were very lon; and sick men were forced to
work; they were even driven out of hospital to work on the railway linc,
4t this camp we had seven deaths froi dysentery and cholera; men collapsed
on the job with cholera, Tanaka was still directly in charge of us, The
cuards thenselves were all Koreens, the worst of the lot being nicknamed
vThe (pd Roatmane - Mortiama, Another [ uard who was in charge of the work
parties was makiyamc, also Morimoto, He took pert in a lot of the bashings
and would generzlly pick on sizk men; he would go through the hospitals
and chase out sick men to work. He would bash the boys witk his fists and
with pieces of stick, from whick they had black eyes and bleedin; noses and
skin knoecked off their faces, DlMedical supplies were very, very limited.
There were dozens and dozens of cholera cases, The caip had grown and now
contained approxirxtely 1500 or 2000 men; when we came baeck it weas in an
ebsolutely appalling condition; there was rud up to the knees,

ve left pinsiok on 24 July 1943 by barge for rluang Klai, 80
kilometrecs further up river, ¢ rcuained there until 8 pecenber 1943,
There were 1000 ren in the canp, including 120 justraliuns. 1In the early
stages, the nen were suffering very badly from malnutrition but later the
food improved; we were ;iven a considerable number of cows and we had sore
neat each day., Tatterly, in this camp it was the best food we had in Thai-
land. It was the height of the wet season when we arrived there and during
the first few weeks we were saturated the whole tine, but later we built
ourselves a reasonable camp; we had tents with bamboo flooring all the
way between the tents so that we could go all over the cemp without putting
a foot on the sround. e werc still enpeged on reilway work but the hours
of work were not so long and the men did not work as hard as they had done
before., te still had a lot of mmlaria and the usual beri beri and nel-
nutrition. The Englishmen werc suffering very seriously fro:z tropical ulcers
end zen -were losing their legs. Sick men were being forced out to work -
nen with very large ulcers. « e would get ome day's rest with melaria if we
were lucky, and unlezs 1en had beri beri very badly they were sent out to
work. Six nen were killed in a landslide, /e were made to work in a very
dangerous position, I could not (et dorm to the place myself but the
Australian sergeart-rejor who was in churge of tlie woridng party repeatedly
pointed out the danger of the job but the Japunese would not heed his warning,
with the resuli that 17 of our men werc actually caught in the landslicde
and six liilled, The Japunese engineers were entirely to. blame for this as
the sergeant-riajor pointed out how the job could be done tithout the
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attendant danger, but no notice was taken of him., Tanska was still in
charge of the camp, (ne man died from malaris and one from pneunoniea,
Medical supplies were stvili insufficient, e did not receive any
vitanins of any sort and the mcen still suffered frowm malnutrition. Ve
had an issue of rubber boots there and a soall guantity of puteh clothes.
Up to this time a lot of men had becn cvacuated to the base hospitals on
account of tropical ulcers, cliolera, dysentery and pneusionic. Then we
went back dovn the river we had 98 men left,

b,

The railway line was joined in Thailand on 17 October 194%:j

e e e e o

Sworn before re at launceston )
in the gtate of Tasmania this ) (signed) RON G, WILLILMS,
2hth dey of september 1945 )

(Sif_‘:ned) ‘KLQJ.U I’TOIIAGIL‘N‘ .T.T .
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IN THE MATTER OF J.DANESE WAR CRIVES ..ND
IN THE M.TTER OF THE IL1~-TRELTMENT OF
PRISONERS OF Wi:R AT CHUNGKAI PRISONER OF
WAR CAMP, THLIL-ID.

Evidentiary Docuwent No. 5067.

AFRIDLY I,

Et, Lieutenant Colonel St. Clair Edward John BARRETT, (&$3%$), RelrelieCes
with permonent howme address at 4 Crescent Gardens, Belfust, lcrthern
Ircland, mwle oath end say as followsg- :

Ay o 15th pebruary 1942 I was captured and taken prisoner by the
Japanese et SING.PORL, Aifter being a prisoner of war in CHANGI I was,

in Movember 1942, sent into TIILILAND os medical officer to treat prisoners
of war wio were working on the building of the BANGFOX-MULMEIN railway,

2a I was senior nedical officer at CHUNGKAI Sick camp from 19th
ey 1943 until January 1944, During this time the British cormandant was
Lte.Colse OWTR.M, During this period there were no working perties at the
cawp and it was mainly used for administrative purposes and as a sick
cap. I had 28 medical officers under me including British, Australian

ané putch,’
{

—

S I remewber the following personalities of the Japanese staff;-

ILt. 0SARTO, He was of srll and slight build, very quietly spoken,
did not speak Imnglish and was aged about 35 years.,
Zis attitude towards prisoners of war was satisfactory.

Lte XOKUBO. e relieved 0SARTO as Commandant. Thick set build,
very dark appearance, bandy-legpzed, 3rd class swordsman,
about L5 years of age, was very fond of drink

Cpl. YLiSNO. This [7C0 maintained a very correct attitude towerds
prisoners of war, He was neither friendly nor
unfriendly.

(l:.. The average number of prisoners of war in the sick camp was 8,000.

They consisted of prisoners of war sent down from the railway ceamps who
were suffering from various injuries and diseases, In the seven months
I was there 1,400 prisoners of war died, many from tropical ulcers whieh
had been caused by injury received at work, or from the guards, and
deficiency diseases such as beri-beri and pelogra, . I had 120 amputations
in order to avoid the spread of disease to other parts of the body.

Bie Medical supplies were nil and I give the following: examples;-
Bendages; The supply was very meagre, My allocation was six 2w

bandages per month to dress 2,000 tropical ulcers.
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1y allocation of quinine was 5 kilos per month which was

guite inadequate, I would have required 20 kilos for the
supply of ordinary meintenance doses. My quinine officer
woes Captain IAN MACKENZIE, S.S.V.F.

=4
&
o

l‘

Instrunents; Mo instruments of any kind were issued, They were all hone
made, My amputation knife consisted of an ordineary carving
knife and my medical saw consisted of a hacksaw.

Anaesthetics: Tiere was no supply of anaesthetics,

6. I repeatedly brou;ht to the notice of 1t. KOFUBO this state of
affairs who replied that he had no supplies to remedy then, I em convinced
that he took no steps to obtain any supplies. Cpl. YASYO once showed e
his medical store and it was ermpty.

Teo one day 5 Japanese doctors came to see the camp., I asked them to
wateh an amputation which was being carried out on a tropical ulcer case,
puring the course of the operation one of the Japanese doctors fainted and
snother was siclk., Thinking this was a good opportunity to request proper
instruments and supplies of drugs, I made a request to then and their
answer wes that I imst realise that tliese were prisoners of wexr and no
supply could be made.7
SWORN by the suid gt, Clair rdwvard
John BARRETT at 6 Spring Gerdens

in the city of vestminster this
13tl. day of Deceizber 1945.

NN

(Si&ned) StOC .Ean &LH{ETT.

Before me,
(signed] F, HONIG.
Captain legal gstaff,
Military Departient,
Judge Ldvocate @Generalts QOffice, Tondon.

certified true copy.

for 1hlitary Deputy J.A.G.
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o IN THE MATTER OF JiPLNESE VAR CRIMES LND IN
M.ITER OF CONDITIONS z.T SUNGKR.I Cilp, TH&..ILAN]D,
AND IN THE MLTTER OF AN LSSAULT UPON PRIVLTE
RODRIGUES AT SUNGKRAI C.IP, THAILAND.

AFFIDATYIT.

TI, 726111l Serjeant CHARLES BERRY of the Royal .,rmy Medical Corps with
permanent hone cddress at 12, prospect Terrace, ithwell, Chorley, in the
county of Ieancashire, nake oath and say as follows;-

3 I was taken prisoner at SINGAPORE on 15th February 1942. I was
in prison camps as follovs;-|

(a) Robert's Hospitel, CHANGI on SINGAPORE Island from 15th February
1942 to 26th ;pril 1943.

(b) In trensit by rail and road fron CHANGI to SUNGKR.I from 26 4ipril
1943 i1l cbout 23 My 1943, stopping for one night at BANGPONG,
THAILAND,

(c) it SUNGKRAI, THATLIND, from 23 My 1943 to 12 Septenber 191;3:-”{
(d) it TAMB.Yi, BURM., from 12 scptember 1943 to 12 December 1943.

(e) At CHINGI, SINGAPORE, frem 12 December 1943 to Lugust 9th, 1944.
(f) At KRANTI, SINGAPORE, fren 9 sugust 1944 to about 9 February 1945.
(8) At CHANGI from 9 February 1945 to 22 July 1945.

(h) At a rubber statc in JOHORE supplying labour for tunnelling nearby
under the new Johore Police Barracks. The senior officer was
Captain HOLMY..RD, lst pottalion, The Manchester Reginent, fron
22 July 1945 until 21 jugust 1945,

(1) .t CHANGI until liberation on 15 September 1945.

' 2o hon at SUNGKRAI I was at No. 2 Carp (Death Valley) and was

“forecd to work on the road during ry first ninc days. Lt SUNGKRLI therc
were banbce buildings without roofs or sides. There was rmd on the floors
which had nc foundations whatever. Lbove the floor therc was bamboo mattin
The first night 1680 priscners of war were put into two huts about 200
retres long &nd about 24 fcet broad., It was raining when we crrived and it
continued all night, Therc was no cover whatscever and the nonsoon rain
carie dewn and no one had groundshcets or other protection., It scon beecare
absolutcly irpossible tc lie therc. The only alternative was to light
fires and keep warn by standing around them. Scue of then crawled undernec
the officcors!' sleeping quarters and alsc under the officers! living gquarter
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7e stayed thare 21l night until 0500 hours the following morning when
everybocy parcdcd prior to going on the railroad the first day. ‘e were

! given no oppertunity of cleaning up or naking the carp inhabitable. ‘e
were divided intc groups of fifty and positions were allotted four miles
cn eaeh side of the campe My particular party was murched about three
riles from the carp, It was raining very hard and we were very cold, only
getting half a pint of rice for breukfuost, which was served at 0530 hours.
Fach mon was issued with a spude, & basket and 2 pick. e started work
irmedictcly digging the road wnd we stopped for ten uinutes every five
hourse Hzlf o pint of rice was issued of 2 guarter to one and then we
continued, e marched back to the camp at 1830 hours. This was the daily
routine,

e Jter two days of rain the camp was nothing but a seas No pro-
tection was afforded against the rain, Jvery men in the camp had to line
up in the dark for o further gquarter of a pint of rice and vegetable stew
at about 1915 hours. During the day's work nobedy was permitted by the
Japcnese to leave the paxrty if they were 111 or hurt in any way. ifter
eight days, during which period it rained steadily, palm branches were
placed on the roof as a protection and also on the sides of the huts,
Notling was done about the floor and below the beiiboo mats the water
rushed through. Thc men had to lie down on the bamboo, in the damp.

L. On iy seccond Gay there, cholera broke out, No preparation had
been nade for an isoloation hospitcl and the cuses could not be segregated.
After cpproximately a week from the time of oy arrival, the Japanese pro-
vided a hut for cholera cases acnd the following day I was sent as 2 nedict
créerly for duty at the hut. This hut was only pertly roofed ageinst the
| rain and the centre of the hut c¢oincided with the course of the water
escuping down the hillside. There were baiibco rmts on the sides of the
wall of the hut but there was nothing in the centre vhere the major part
of the water came through. Thero were so neny casualtics that there was
insufficient room by the walls and some had to lic in the water. The hole
in the roof werc so large that the rain came through on to the nen who wer
lying beneath. "€ had no water other than water fron the roof, whieh we
had $o0 boil, There was no accormodation for the orderlies, who had to
slcep cnong the paticntse No cholera innoculation was possible,

e The casualtics were carried to the hospital by the fit prisonere
of wor on groundsheets., Cholcra being highly contageous, these nen were
frequently infected and died, There was no lighting whatever and when I
wes on night duty it was impossible to remcve the dead, who in consequencc
had to remain anong the living until daybreock. On the first day thirty-
eight nen dicd and were left outside the hut, nc provision being made for
then to be rerwved, There was a cremation party of priscners of war but
these could do nothing beeccusc the Jepancse refused to give them shovels
or other implerents with whieh to bury the bodies. There were any number
of tools becausc they had to be used for digging the road., These thirty-
cight nen were left outside the it for two days, only sonme of them being
ccvered, rventually after two days the Jopenese gave faecilities for
'burying theil,
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6. snother hut was nade available for dysentery cases. The Japanes
used to tcst all prisoners of war for dysentery by putting either a piece
of bamboo or a picce of wire or a glass tube up the recctum, This was a
painful operaticn for those who were fit., They would toke out persons
who were extrenely ill or dying of dysentery and would carry out this test
and this in bad cases definitely precipitated death by reason of the pain
and the faet of their being moved.

= Convalescents were forced to carry bamboos long distances in the
rain with bare feet, with the result that their feet were torn and result-
ing in ulcers, for which there were no faecilities for treatment, and nmany
of then died.

8e on or cbout 30 My 1943 I was in a working pwrty, of which
Private Rodrigues of the gtraits Settlements Volunteer Force was & member.
vhen . I got back to the camp I saw Private Rodrigues tied to a tree and
badly bruised about the face, which was very swollen, His legs were alsc
bruised and cut, giving the appearance that he had been droagged. I was
told (I forget by whom) that a Korean guard, whose name I do not know,

had attewpted to strikc Rodrigues with a harmer, that Rodrigues seized thce
harmer to prevent its being used ogainst him, but that he was forced to
let go and subsequently he was beaten up by this guard and the other guarc
I did not witness the occurrence but Captain (Padre) DUCKI/ORTH, Royal
Lroy Chaplains Departnent, would be well aware of the circumstances becaus
he is surc to have interviewed private Rodriguese I do not know which
guards were involved. There were about six guards and they were all
Koreans, I dc not know any of their nimes, Private Rodrigues was tied tc

U the trece with wire cnd there he was left for forty-eight hours. It was

raining throughout that period, He was wearing shirt and shorts with
nothing else over him., He was ticd to the trece immediately in front of
the guardroomfand in view of it and anybody coming in or going out of the
canp must have scen him, Lieutcnant iBP, the Canp Corrwnndent mmst have
seen private Rearigues there as his home was irmediately behind the guard.
roon. He was given nedieal attention afterwards but I do not know by who

S The mediccl personnel at the camp consisted of Mgnjor HANBURY,
Indion Medical service, Captain STIMIT, Royal /riy lMediccl Corps (Maloya),
ILieutenunt TURNER, Straits Settlements volunteer Force, Royal irny
Mediecl Corps, and a Ceptoin who was o keen botanist; serjeant 0'Grady
and Corporal Cawthra, and othcrs whose nemes I cannot remember.

30, The senior officcr in the camp was Colonel HINGSTONE, Royal
ATLY Ordnonce Corps (2)e

3., Licutenant 4BE, who was in chargc of the caup, was about five
feet cight inches tall, well built ané about ten stonc in weight. He was
always well dressed, usuclly wearing riding boots. He used to ride a
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horse. I do not know the names of any of the Xorean guards, who were
2ll bad nen, nor any distinguishing marks about then,

S.TORN by the sci¢ CHARLES BERRY
2t Heodguarters, southern
Cormand, ™ilton, in the county
of 17ilts this Third dey of
January 1946

N S AN Nl

(signed) C. BERRY, Sgt.
Before ne,

%
Cuptain.
Military pepartient,
Judge idvocate Generalts Qfficc,
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INTERNATIONAL MILITARY TRIBUNAL. FOR THE FAR EAST
Noe 1

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, and ors,

- AGATINST -
e ARAKT, SLDAO, and orse
I, PETER JOHN CAMPBELL, make ocath and say as follows;
33 My number, rank, name and unit is NX35053, Mpjor Teter John

carpbell, attached MY 4.SC 8 Dive I became a prisoner of war in
February 1942, and marched into Changi on 17th Februarye.

24 I left there in 1®my 1942,

e i7e went to Joulmein,

be In January 194l we moved to Tamarkan camp in Thailand,
5 The type of work done there was mainly repairing railway

bridges, which were next to the camp, and on railroad maintenance,

6. The corner of Tamarkan camp was about 100 yards from a wooden
railway bridge which spanned the river; 50 yds, higher was a steel
railvay bridge. The line bordered one side of the carp, During the
succeeding 12 months when I was there these bridges and the ack-ack
battery located about 200 yds, outside the camp were bombed on seven
occasions, Repeated complaints were made to the camp cormandant about
the denger of siting a POW camp next to a military objective, and
repeated requests were made for permission to mark the camp as such;

but this got us nowhere, The result was that bombs several times fell

in the camp; bomb fragments were scattered fur and wide throuchout the
carp; machine-gun bullets burst from the planes and from Jap observation
rosts spraying the carp. LAck-ack shrapnel came in in great quantities,
and nunerous men were killed and injured, In one raid alone, 18 men

were killed and huts set on fire, pashings and ill-treatment were
cormonplace occurrences; as an example; (Capt, Concannon was made to
stand in front of the _uard house for 30 hours by Sgte Kiroda at Tamarkan
I witnessed this, That would be about December 1944, He is a men of 50,
He had a light on in the canteen, which had been 1lit contrary to orders
by one of his men workins; for him - just one of these small mistakes

that happen,

Te In Februcry 1945 we were shifted to ponburi camp, which was an
officers! camp. There were about 3,000 officers stationed there in

carp, the dinmensions of vhieh, for rOi7 purposes, were 220 yds, by 120
ydse T were closely confined in this camp, so far as there were about
four fences and o deep bund, and a 10 ft, ditch around it. The restrictec
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i space led to colossal overcrowding; both for sleceping and for sanitary
i purposes. Conditions were similar to Tamerkan Caump, otherwise. The
! cormandant, Capte Niguchi, was an arrogent, sadistic type, who was very
f keen on nnss punishments for offences cormitted by individuals, such as
j confining everybedy into the huts for a period of about 10 days - I
/ cannct reueuber what the offmce wasinhkat case - no reading, no lying down,

] no conversing, no parties of morc than six, etc.

! a. on one oceasion I saw hin reke a Capte Martin stand for 72 hours
f in front of the puard house for looking through a fence, That was at this
'  eup ot xanburi abeut July 1945. He was standingto attention most of the
V' time, me had to stand all the time; there was no question of sitting
‘ down, He was ;iven water and one rice ball a day, The Japanese allowed him
f to riove away to relieve himself, ZEventually, he had to take his boots off,
g and of course his fect ot sunburned and he ultimotely cecllapsed. Capte
| Mexrtin is a barrister in gSydney,
|
|
|

%e The worst thing cormitted by this Cupte. Niguchi was against a
British officer, nomed Drower,

; 10, About the middle of June, Captain V7,17, Drower was asked by the
| Japencse to give his opinion on the refusal of some officers to do certain
| menial tosks., pHe confirmed their attitude and he was irmediately taken to
{ his office, where Captain Niguchi and his adjutant beat him into insensi-
:  bility with wooden swords and then put him in a cell at the rear of the
’ suardhouse, The Japs then realised that as he was the interpreter he could
undcrstand vhat they were saying so they then put hin in a covered slit
R trench, the dimensions of vhich were, say, 5 ft. by 2 ft. 6 ins, by 4 fte,
\ which had about six inches of rmd and water in it, and was infested with
mosguitoes; Drower had only a pair of shorts; he had no blanket; he was
cnly given water and one rice ball per day, Later on he was taeken back to
the guardhouse where he was threatened with torture and after this he
endeavoured to commit suicide by stransulation and by cutting his leg open
with & rusty tecapot spout.

11, on 16 susust he was recovered by our doctors, who stated that he
would have been dead in a few noredays, He was insane, and had severe
blackwater fever, and was terribly emaciated; he had not washed or shaved
during the period - he had long hair and beard; he had not defacated for
the two nonths in the 80 days he was in the trench,

X2 A Japanese interpreter, Capt. Drower told re that a form of mental
torture was introduced upen him Ly the Japs in the guardhouse; and all talk
in the guardhouse was deliberately audible sc that Drower could hear and
understand.,

e i o i e el 1 5 O
e e e b

13, At the end of July, the officers! camp at Kamburi cormenced to. be
transferred to a new canp at pakon Mycke This was a distance of 120 miles,
I left on 10 jugust with the fifth party of 40C, i started in open rail
goods trucks, 30 men to a truck, and reached pangkok, a distance cf 40 miles

o b - & en
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after 29 hours travelling. Ve sat up all night, and had no sleep. Ve
then started unloading baggage into barges, and sat in a very cramped

' position on the top of the lugsage in a barge about 6 ft. by 18 ft., and

in which 67 men were jaimed., Te sat up all night without sleep, with
intense disconfort; and next day we went five miles down the river to a
large concrete warehouse; we slept there two nights on the ecnerete
floors, with rain pouring down on us because the roof had largely been
blown away by boubing; then we entrained in small closed steel railway
vans, about 5 ft, by 12 ft.; 'these were first half-filled with baggage
end we sat on tops. fThe next 50 mles tock us 16 hours, and during this
nizht we also had no sleep, /e then set off marching with all of our
gear and as the mmjority of the party were sick putchmen it was a very
slow marche 7/ toock 36 hours to cover 30 miles and during this period
only had twé hours sleep on tlie roadside in pouring raine During the
last 12 hours of the marching we had neither food nor water, except
ditch water, which we drank from the paddy fields, On arrival in the
new camp the huts were bamboo and attap, but we slept on the earth floor
on a basis of 15 men to each hut bay, which was 10 ft, by 18 ft. fe
arrived there on 16 jugust 1945./]

R U S S

(sj-égned ) l‘ . J ° CI\LI\"TBIELL.

gwern befeore me at Sydney
on the fifth day of September
1946,

(signed) A,J, MANSFIELD,
Judce of supreme Court of Queensland.
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IN THE MATTER OF 7iR CRIES AND IN THE MLTTER

OF ATROCITIES COMMITTED(.T K.NEBURY PRISCNER OF

wR C.MP, STiM,) IN SIPTEMRLR 1945 AXD IN THE

MiJTTER OF TIE 1URDER OF CiPT. HATLEY iND LITUT.
ARMITAGD .

British Maticnal office Charge No:

United Noticns “ar Crimes Ccrmissicn Refercnecg

e D A VT T,

Is No. 3858367 C.n.M.S. GEOFRZY INO'LES, Reccnnaissuncc Cerps, with
perricnent address ot 3 mustin Road, Icrecaube, mcke oath und say s follows;-

7 4% I was tcken priscner in Singopcre cn 15th Februsry 1942, 1 stayed
thore wuntil June 1942 wnd wos then moved to Sici. Inter, in imreh 1943 I
was moved to Ronburi Frisoner of “Tar Carp. Fonburi was the headguarters of
Nce 1 Group cf prisoncr cf Tar “jorking Camps. Thae work we were deing was

on the pongkck - Meuliein reilwey lines Noe 1 Group consisted cof about
seven cutlying camps, one of which wus ecallcd Sakecmoto.  hen I errived at
Kanburi I was put to wcrk in the ecck-housec there, and «l1l the time I was
with Ncs 1 Group I stoyed &t Kenburi itself and did nct go cut tc any of the
cutlying camps,.]

i The Japanese and Xcreon personalities at Xonburi Caxp werc as
lelCr’..'IS;
Tie Corl Cezmendant.,
oOther rkmbers of his steff wcre;
Lt. oca
ILt. Kanematsu This on had been edaucated in .nerica ond had

been there 35 ycoars; ccnseguently he cculd spetk
cbsolutcly fluent mglish.

Thc M,C.08. wercs
Sjt. Ejema
Sits.atancbi There . were two ntantbis; cne cf then was nmedical

and the other in adriinistrzticn,

The guards were goreans, The cnes involved in these particuler atrceities
were cclled;

fenashira whese nieck-noiie by us was mhe ndertoakert
Yasinctce :

There were rorce guards invelved, but I cannct rermember their nanmes.
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o, In Septeuber 1943 the Juponcsec found a wirelcss set whieh had

becen mede by gerjeant dnjer Thew and & friend of his called sjt. Suith,
This set was found on Serjeant Mejor Thew's bed at sckoncto jorking Carp,
4L few days loter Thew was sent down to Fanburi and was stood outside the

guard rocn when he errived., I reuerber seeing hin therc,

L. it 11 p.n. the Japcnese begen beating serjecnt M:jor Thew. None
cf us were allowed to seec what was geoing on execpt the pritish Ccrmandaont,
capt. Renvick of the sherwccod Ferrestcrs who was called cut specdlly to
witness it. I wes on duty in the cook-hcusc cbout 100 yords away and I
heerd the whole incident. gSerjeant Mnjor Thew was beaten for wan hour and

a half., fThe method of beating was to strike hinu on the small of the back
cnd on the thighs with heavy teuk pcles. I cculd hear the thuds cf the
poles s they struck hinm. Ivery now and ogein therc weuld be a short spell
vher Thew was interrcogoted about his wircless set. The Japonese varied the
beatings by striking him cn the face with wooden clcgs. “hen it was all
cver Thew was left in o crumpled hcoup outside the guard rcon for four days,
on the first day he was brought down to the cock-house for some tea which I
gave hin, 4t first I did not recognise the run; his whele body was marked
with weals, his jaw was crocked as though brcken, cnd his fice badly morked
28 thc result cf blows with the wocden clcgs. His ncse appecred tc be
brcken and his legs up to his kidneys were o nass cf black bruises., He alsc
had a very bad eye injury which was suppurating, I did not sce nir after
thot, as for the rest of the four days rice cnd $ea were brought to him and
‘he stayed cutside the gucrd rcom out in the open, LAt the end of the fourth
dey he wos teken to hospital where I saw hin again., Lt thit time he was
barely conscicus and I do not think hc knew what he was doing or what was
heppening. It was discovered in hospital that as well as his other injuries
he had a burst car drum, There is no dcubt that cll the pcerscnalities I
have mentioned tock part in this beatirg,

e The day after Thew was allcwed intc hospital five pritish
officers were brought down from Sckoroto to Kanburi for a beating. They
WEere:

Mejer snith (S.S.V.F.)
imjor slater

M jor nights

It. DMeRoy

) 2071 Icucx (Reyel signals)

the day beforec these five pritish officers werc becton the whole carmp waes
wornod that there wes tc be & becting thot night, but there was tc be nc
dencnstration whatscever; trcops would remain in their bed spaces, other-
wise a massacre would tcke plucce I noticed that there were machine guns
in the guard roci, presurebly ready for this. .t 11 ctelock that night
the beating started. ;11 five of these British offiecrs were beaten in
mch tue sare way s gSorjeant Mpjor Thew. Mejor Suith was alixst killed ‘
and It. Lomax had both his foreorms broken os @ rcesult of trying to

protect himself, But I did nct witness those incidents owing te the camp

' crder; I only heard the serecams and the noise cf the teak pcles cn the
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victims! bcdies. ‘hen that was over the five of then were left cutside the
guard rocn for one day; they were then remcved tc hospital, I saw them in
hospital and helped to feed them as nene of them were able to feed thei-
selves, Their injuries were terrible,

6. The day after that four rore British officers were brought in te
Kenburi for besating.] They were:

Capt. Fawley

Capts Gregg (7th Coastal Btye R.i.)
)t AN Arniitage

Lt. Gilehrist (S-D.F.)

As it turred out, reither Copt. Gregg nor Lt. Gilchrist were beaten, but
at 11 ete¢lock that night capt. Hawley and It. Araitoge were rmrdered.
Again, I did not witness the incident, I only heurd the noise of the
bectings which listed in each case for about three-guarters of an hour,
In eack case Dr. Van der Eyden wes called out, but before he got to where
the beatings were going con he was rotioned back by Xeneratsu.

Te The next day two soldiers, Rdr. Rider and Gnr. Cavaney, whe were
in the workshop about twenty yurds behind the Japenese guard room, found

a Red Crcss issue trilby hat in the swill pit. They also slept in that
little hut and told ne afterwards that they had heard the Jupinese guards
drawing shovels from an adjacent tool house, There is no aoubt in iy mind
that Hawley and /rmitcge were beaten to death and buried nearby:)and there
is also no doubt in my mind that the Japanese personclities whon I have
nenticned above were ©ll responsible for these beatirgs as they rmst 2ll
have token their turn at striking those pritish officers and gerjeant
mjor Thew,

8. I would deseribe It. Cori 2s a men of about 40, height 5 ft. §
ins., weight about 10 stone, very thick set; round face ond flat nose and
locked more like o nonkey than anything else, It. 0da was aged about 27,
about 5§ ft. 8 or 9 ins. tall, rather slin, weigzht about 9% stone; he had
nonkey-like featurcs, high check bones, long jaw cnd was more slant-eyed
then the Japunese, upper teeth prominent. Xaneratsu, owing to his lopg
stay in .rnerice, had rather lost his Jopenese features; he was whiter than
the mejority cond wore sguore cut rinless glosses of an smerican fashion,

Hc was aged about 50, heiht 5 ft, 9 ins., weiht about 11 stone. Hc had had
varicose vein trouble and he had hed the affected veins taken out, so that
he did noct have actuclly a limp nor cxactly a ncrmal walk; he noved slowly
and rather stiffly. He was, prcperly specling, a civilian interpreter
attached tc the Japancse .irmy with a liecutcrant's rark, and hc wore on his
left brecst a bluc plague upon which were five overlopping stors groduclly
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decreasing in size. 0Of the scrjeents and Kcreen guards they were all
very rmeh the sare in build, about 5 £t. 5, typically built low-class
Japcnese or Korean coclic types,

SVORN by ths said GEOFREY KNO'I13S )
at 6 gpring Gordeas in the city )
of vestninster tlis eightl. day of ) ;
November 1945 ) (signed) G, KIT0.LES.
Feforc ne

(cigned) L4 M. BOLL-M.CDONLLD.
Capt.
Iegal staff,
Mil. Dert.
pffice of J.iud.
London,

gertified trae zopy:
(signed) R.B. LiMBE, Lt.Colonel.

.L‘L GJ.‘L:\GO

var Crines, HY LIFSEi.
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7 THE MATTER OF JAPANESE VAR CRUMES AND IN TEE MATTER
OF THE ILLTRRATMENTT OF PRISONERS (F WAR AT KANEURI NO.
3 HOSPITAL CAMP, 974 AND 1)Td JULY 1943.

Evidentiary pocument # 5075.

AFPREEIDAY IT.
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{ I, sub-Lieutenant J.0, CAUN of the Netherlands East Jndies iray, meke
cath and say as fecliows:=-

1, on the 8ih Mareh 1942 T was capbursd end teken prisoner by the
Japanese Army at BANDOING, JAVA, and was subsequently transferred to SIAM
where prisoners of war were cupicyed on tii: bviilling of the BANGKOX-MULMEIN
railway, I speak jopanesc and ab ohno various camps I was at acted as inter-

preter,

Pt on the 9th July 1943 abt one oiclock in +the mornig I was cwakened by
the Jopenese guerd commander of Siaff Cump, Group 1; KANBURY, who told me that
167 sick men had arcived from the jur:le, I weni to the cnircnce of the camp
but found only epproximately 40 patients there who locked filthy, underfed and
very sick. I asked the Japcnese in charge of the sick party where the remain-
der of this party werec., He replied that the remcinder wcre not very fit to
walk end that they were coming in slowly. I immediately went back and asked
for 20 velunteer strcicher-bearers.

3. 7e went to the station and found that aleng the 3 kilometre stretch
that separates the railwey svation from the canp, sick men were crawling and
lay about the ground. e picked them up as we found them, i/e also came across
a putch medical orderly who toid us that he wus the cnly orderly that had been
sent with this transport waich coasisied of bari.-beri, dyseatery, tropical
ulcer and cholera patients. He told us that they had been 4 days on the road
and that 3 of thcm hud died on the waye At six ofeleck in the morning the last
mon was found and brought in., 411 the sick were given shelter in the foot-
baths of the atap huts ia our camp,

e At nine olclock I saw the adjutant of éroup l, I1t, KOMAT, who said to
me that ncw he was going to cpem a new hospital., He called over 6 prisoners of
wer who were in the vieinity and orfecred them to break down the fence which
separated our camp from the Jopanssc cavalry regiment called vameda Butei. The
day before the Japanese and their horses hod moved out, leaving 20 cmpty huts,
3 with and 17 without platforms, In most of the huis the filth of the animals
wus still on the ground, The Jopanese Liecubtenah gave the order that the 167
sick, who were undcr the commond of the Tuteh Captain CLAASZ, had to be moved
to this new camp witnin an hour. There were no dceteorsy no mediccl orderlies
nor cook-hocuse perscanel ot that time so I went over to the Dutch doctor,
Cepts NOORDACEX-HAIT and esked him if T eould cpply to the Japanese for him to
g0 over as a volunicer, He immediately ogreed and the Jepancse Lieutenant
gave his permission for this doctor and other medical orderlies to go over

end attend to the sick,

S It took, however, several hours to persuade the Japanese to let a
working porty of 50 men cttend to cook-houss and hygiene necessiiies, The
only definite pcrmission which was given was that medical staff would be sent
from the jungle caups or the base hospital, Tt ook approximetely a fortnight
to get some staff and the man who had lkeen put in charge of the ecamp then

was the British Mujor BLALCK, R.A-M.C., who will certainly be cble to give a
vivid picture of his first irpressions.
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6. By the tinme the nmedical staff arerived the hospital housed 1,522
patients and the number of dead Sotalled approximately 7 tc 12 a day. It
tock 10 days befcre the Japancse supplicd cny redicines. On the third day
after this hcspital had been opened I had, on instructions of Dr.
NOORDHORY-HEGT, & talk with the japancse Captein, Doetor MORI, who was in
chorge cf the nedical dspartucnt of the Jopanese Priscner of ar idminis-
tration in THAIT..ND. 48 & result of this talk, on the fifth day the
hospital was supplied wi*h o ccrtain quantity of nilk, cigarettes, butter,
ccffee and sugar.,

7o The pecnle mainiy reoponsible were the Japanese Priscner of Tar
General Hecdguartors ghari thonesives. The hospital cane under direct
cocrmand of the Japenese pecdquaricrs, Docter MCRI being in charge of the
nedical side is certainly first of oll o blame; but also General SAITO and
his cdjutant were fully aware of “he filthy conditions and the horrible
circumstances in which this hospitcl was opened because an cfficer of the
Jopanese General gtaff, Prisoner cf or Cormand, visited the hospital on
the third day. Even in the month f jugust after a certain Captain MeGREGOI
cf the Mnlaya volunteers had becen building platfornms and repairing rocfs,
dysentery patients werc still lying on the ground in a hut without platform:

8. pritish dcetcors in this hospital were Ceptain CHURCHIIL and M jor
BLACK and the caup Cormender for the non-nicdical side was Mojor TLTE DE Lha
PORT.

9. The carp was placed in the middle of July 1943 under cormend of a
Jopanese serjeant; ATANABE, whosc gneral conduct was good and who did his
best tc help the different authorities.

SVORN by the said J.0. CLUN )
at 6 gpring Gardens in the )
City of testninster this )
18th day of Dpecember 1945. )

’

(signed) J. CAUN.
Bef'orc e,
(signed) F. HONIG.
Ceptain Iegal steff.
Military Department.
Judge Advocate Geueralts office, Londen,
gertified true copy,

(signed) X.TJ. RITCHIZ, Lt
for Militory Deputy, JAG.
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. DOC- NO. 54:50 { i Page lo
Synonsis of Evidence

Affidavit of Major R. CRLWFORD, is now offered for identi=- Yo _
fication, the marked excerpts thereof beipg produced in l/
evidence. This document states that in June 1943, the ~£L¢<%¢
witness was appointed Officer commanding *K" Force, a Unit’
of 230 P/W medical personnel designed to give medical
assistance tec coolies and P/W employed on the construction
of the Burma/Siam Railway.

The witness states that the journey to the working
sites involved for many gangs of coolies; marches of
indescribable hardshin, Conditions in coolie working and
hospital camps were disgraceful and a grave danger to the
lives of those living thereine.

The witness further states that:i-

"In these camps, at some periods, there were no

or quite inadequate sanitary arrangements, the

entire eamp area being, consequantly, heavily con-

taminated with feces., In practically no camp was

a satisfactcry water supply provided, the general

source being raw river water even with cholera

prevalent. Sleeping accommodatvion was in many

cases gquite inaddquate or of the most primitive kind.

Tents were generally and huts frequently not weather

proofy coolies often had to sleep on the ground,

Blankets were not provided, an occasicnal sack being

issued as a substitute, and the clothing issue fcr

coolies was at most a flimsy sarong. The food supplie@
to labourers was frequently 'poor! or 'bad! and quite
below the level necessary for the maintenance of

good health in individuals doing heavy manual labour,

"The unsatisfactory conditions here described

were conducive to‘widesbread disease of many kinds, the

principal of which were dysentery, cholera, pneumonia,

ulcers and deficiency discases., Conditions herein-

before described apply not only to male coolies but
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"but also to women and chiléren who were brought by
the Japauncsc to vork on the railwaye.

"Arising from these gravely unsatisfactory living,
feeding and working conditions sickness ameong
labourers was cver considsrable periods enormous,
and the indifference of the Japanesej/fheir failure
to take steps to combat sickness, th;Er failure to
supply suvitzlle and adeguate medical supplies cone
stitute criminal rneglect, The Japanese were in the

A

vast majority ol cases entirely insensiblie to sick=-
ness and hardships suffered by the labourers and
their attitude indicated only a determinaticn to com-
plete the railway at all costs with complete indifference
to the number of deaths that might and were caused
thereby.
"Any ef'forts that "K" lledical Force might have
made to help the labourers were virtualily nullified
in advénce by the conditions under which they had to
work and for which the Japanese medical administration
at all levels 1s directly respcnsiblec
"(a) The Medical Officer and his staff worked
* under the orders of an ignorant and
ill-trained Japanese medical NCC or
privatea
(b) The Medical staff of "K' Force were, at
the whim of the Japanese medical orderly
so restricted in their accecss to sick
coolies that co~ordinated policy and
continuous treatment were impossible. The
medical force (including lMedical Officers)
was largely employed on manual labour, and
Medical Officers were generally submitted
to degrading and insulting treatment such as
the performance of manual labour, working

in Japanese kitchens and as servants to Japanese.

“

<+ * .
L i ®
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“(c) There was extreme inadequacy of medical
equipment and supplieScecesoc”

Fxamples of the incredible conditions in individual
camps are given indicating the similarity in the neglect
of the basic humanities and in the evil treatment acédrded
to the men in all the camps mentioned.

b) Prosecution document numbered 5136, the Affidavit
of Captain F. Ho WALLACE I.ll.S. is offered for identification,
the marked excerpts thereof being produced in evidence.

This Affidavit confirms the conditions of coolie camps and
the treatment of ccolies set out in the preceding document
Nce. 5128. The present witness states that when coolies
suffering from cholera at Kinsayok were thought by the
Japanese medical N.C.0. to be too ill to recover, they were
pushed into a small lean-~to shélter of attap and left to
die. They were given no food or watere.

Coolies who were suffering seriously from cholera were
often forced into common pit graves and buried alive. Pro-
test from the coolies meant they were beaten down by Japanese
orderlies.,

In July, 1943, while giving anti-cholera inoculations
to coolies, the witness saw them beaten and humiliated.

Women were insulted, disinfectant was deliberately sprayed
into the eyes of some coolies and the Japanese doctor himself
beat them as they were being examined. The doctor explained
to the witness that Coolies were sub-human and not worthy

of consideration.

¢c) Prosecution document numbered 5256, being the
Affidavit of R. E. PETERSON, is tendered for identification
and the marked excerpts therein offered in evidence. The

document states that:
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7/ 1In February 1944, I was in a coolie camp known
s CHAYNONGA. On the 14th February 1944, I con=-
tacted a Japanese known to me as Arai (Storm Trooper)

Hayashi Karneatsu. We were in a coolie camp which

was also a hospital, \522?
“"Karneatsu proceeded to a coolie camp to inter= -~7<2

view coolies in the hospital. He had a hypodermic 7 jZfﬂ

syringe filled with a red unknown filuid, He ordered fkévy/

T

the cool¢es down from thelr beds and asked them if j%kikt%7{
77

A AT VR R . S O WAL O AT A T T R e

there Were anj who could not Wa+k, he told them they

@ e —
N AT ST St B

‘were g01ng to be moved to a base hospltal and those ' Tﬁ?

who ‘could ‘not walk woald be carr1ed,wdﬂ B T e AE;{Ldi

NS PSP T DI v e

‘"Severalvataggered forward and were piven an

injection of the fluid in the big vein in the elbow,

All who were inoculated died within a few minutes.
When the remainder saw what was happening they sa;’
they could walk. UWhen he had finished he proceeded
'to the dysentery hut.

"He looked through this hut and walked away.
Later he returned with a large tin of brown sugar
in which was mixed a deadly poison. He gave the
coolies this to eat, telling them it was good for
them,

"All who ate this poison died during the daysse.™

d) Proseoution document numbered 5370, the solemn
affirmation of THAKIN SA, is now offered for identification
and the excerpts marked therein, offered in evidence. The
document states that in order to enable the Japanese
authorities in Burma to obtain sufficient labour for the
construction of the Burma-Siam Railway, they recruited
coolies.

When the promises made by the Japanese to the labourers
failed to materialize, they press-ganged every available
person into the Labour Force, since willing recruits were

no longer to be found.
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The witness was appointed a Superintendent of Labour
at Thanbyuzsyat in De&ember, 1942, to look after the
interests of the coolies as far as possibie. He found
that men were only released from the Force when they were
used up physically and no longer emplcyable.

MeecoososLiving accommodation provided for
laborours at the camps was insufficient and insani-
tary. The area where the work had to be done was
very damp and labourers had to live in barracks which
could not keep cut the wet.s Barracks intended for
150 persons had to house as many as 300. Clothing
shortage was acutej when the ciothes which the
labourers brought from home began to fall into rags,
gunny bags were supplied to them to do duty botha as
wearing apparel and as blarkets. No change of ciothing
Was available to most of the labourers and none was
provided by the Army. The result was that the
clothing of almost all labourers was crawling with
vermin and most of them were suffering from a virulent
type of skin diseass. I'ood supply was not sufficient;
and the rice supplied was weevilly.

"Water supply in this area was a carrier of
malaria; but steps were not taken to sterilise the
water supply, except for a pretence at boiling the
water for potable purposes. Iledical supply consisted
only of quinine and even this was not in sufficient
quantities. Cholera broke out soon in the camps and
the Japanese sought to combat the spread of this
epidemic by cremating the dead and very often persons
whom they considered incurable. There were many
authentic cases of live cremations.

"Labourers were treated as slaves; whips and
sticks were freely used on the labourersj; and sickness
ordinarily was no excuse,

"There was a total lack of system in allotment of

labourers to the various camps. As the labourers
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"arrived a% Thanvyrzayat, they were either driven

up in lorries or taken marching through the camp.
Officers in charge of the camps would pick outs

persons they wanted; families bscame separated, the
husband being retained in one camp and the wife

sent th another camp, the parents going to one camp
and the children to other camps.s.eeeThis lack of
system and the hephazard manner in which the laboﬁrers
were taken into different camps made it impossible

to trace the lannurers later. Many cases had bzen
known of families then saparated never coming together

againoco-s-c"

In March, 1943, the Moulmein Civil Administration was
ordered to supply 7,000 labovrers within 5 days. Intensive
press gang methods followed tnis order. Between April and
July 1943, about 50,000 labourers were sent from Rangoon to
Thanbyuzayat to join "The Sweat Army".

The Japanese prevented the Burmese Latcur officers from
taking any active steps to help the cooliss and were not
even allowed to maintain independent records.

e) Prosecution deccument nunbered 5371, the statement
of MAUNG AYE KO is tendered for idézpntificaticn and the
excerpts therein cffered in evidence. This document confirms
the evidence of the last witness in Prosecution document
No. 5370. The present witness became a Labour Officer in
1943, He found the ill-clad labourers, fevered and hungry,
living in disgusting ceonditions. A large number of men
were malariel; many suffered from junglie sores exposing the
bones and the vermin infesting them. Deatns at Kycntaw
Camp averaged abcut ten a deye.

Cholera was rife at Kycnkayae. The dead and dying were
piled together and, soaked in petrel, burned. Iilen were
beaten savagely and on one occasion the witness found the

decomposing bodies of two men who had been left to rot as

a warning to P/ and labourers,
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i

In or about October, 1943, six P/W escaped from Kilo

126 Camp. On recapture they were beheaded.

The witness states that he saw so many floggings,

beatings and deaths, that it finally left no impression
on him,
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evidentiary peeument # 5128,

I THE MATTER OF JiD.NESD VAR CRIMES /0D IN

TE KTTER OF THE ILL-TREATMENT, TORTURE AID

CRIML.L NEGLECT OF COOLIES L.BOURIRS ON TID

SIAM-BURIY. RAIL Y BETUEEN THEZ YE.RS 1943
LND 1945.

l‘LFFlDu-VIT.

e

I,lnjer nobrt Crawford, formerly of the Johore Vclunteer
Dcineers,vith permmnent address in UKL, C/o lercantile pank of Idia
Lt¢.,15 gracechurel: street, fondon, E.C.5.y moke oath and say as followsg

1 I was taken prisoner by the Japanese at gingupore on 15/2/42
ané on 25/6/L3 I was appointed officer cormandin; wr* Force, which was
a company of 230 redical personnel of all ranks, blonging to British
and peninion Forces with a few putch, and which was intended to nove
to the gian-purma pailway to lLring medicalassistance to coolies of all
nationalities (and to 07''s) employed on the construction of the said
railvay, TIn ry capaecity of Medical officer,cormanding that fore, I had
he opportunity of oberving the mediecal,hy;cinic and gneral conditions
under which Indian, Chinese, iwlay, Javanese, purnese and Earasian (a
ferr) ccolies worked and lived uncer Japanese ccrmond between 1943 and .
1945,

24 The narrative contained in this ry affidavit is concernea with
Ly personal experience and observaticns and with information gathered
directly fren medicalcfficers and other ranks of w3 Force,

2 gencral; The number of coolies eployed by the Japanese cn the
Siam-purna Railway cannot be ascertained definitely, and estinctes vary
frem 75,000 to 250900. It is probably that about 100000 were so employed

The journey to the werking sites imolved for mmy gng of coolies
marches of indeseribable hardship, lasting in scie cases up to ten doys,
in monsoon rains, and responsible for heavy mortality end morbidity.

b From observations made by ne and from statenents made to me by
nembers of mir Force it is established hat conditions in coolie working
carps and coolie hospitals alike,e.., [Iintck ecamp, Upper oncuita camp,
Niki pride-building canmp, 73 rilometre camp, Iongl canp,. Canburi Noe 2
hospital canyp, Tanyei hospital caup, ITinsayoke hospital cawyp and many
others,werc so far below any st.ondards of western civilisation that they
can be described as disgaceful ané o rave danger to the lives cf those
living in thew

In these caps, at some pericds, there were no or quite hadeguate
sanitary arrangenents, the entire carp areas ding, consequently,heavily
contaminated with faeces, In practically no canp was a satisfactory
water supply provided,the general source ding raw river water even with
chelera prevalent. gSleeping accormodation was in runy cases guite
inadequate or of the most primitive kind, Tents were cenerally and huts
frequently not weather-ircof; ccolies often had to sleep cn the gound,
Blankets were nct provided,an oceasional sack being issued as a sub-
stitute, and the clothing issue for coolies wus at nst a flimsy sarongs

The food supplied to labcurers was frequently spoor® or wbad®
and quite below the level necessary for the mintenance of jood health in
individuals doing heavy manual labcur,

The unsatisfactury conditions here ceseribed were conducive to
widespread disease of nmany kinds, the principal of which were dysentery,
cholera,pneuricnis, ulcers and deficiency diseases,
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5. conditions hereinbefore described apply nct only © mle coclies
byt also to women and children who were brought by the Jopanese to work
on the railway.

6. Lrising from these grevely umsatisfactory living, feeding :and
working; conditions, sickness aucng labourers was over considerable
pericds enormus, and the indifference of the Jojanese, their failure to
take stels to combat sickness, their failure to supply suitable and
adequete medical supplies constitute eriminal nedects The Japanese were
in the vast majority of cases entirely insensible to sickness and hard-
ships suffered by the labourers and their attiude indicated only a deter-
mination to complete the railway at all costs with complete indifference
to the number of deaths that richt and were caused thereby.

b T iny efforts that I ledieal porce mi ht have rmnde to hep the

labourers were virtually nullified in advance by the conditions
under which they had to work and for which the Japanese medical -
administration at all levels is directly responsible,

(a) The 1®dical officer and his staff worked under the orders of an

5 ignorant qnd ill-trained Japanese medical NCO or private,

(b) The lfedical staff cf wKv® Force were, at the whim of the Jaranese
medical orderly so restricted in their access tc sick coolies that co-
ordinated policy and continuous treatment were impossibles The medical
force (including ledical Qfficers) was largely erployed on rrauel labour,
and 1pdical officers were generally submitted to desrading and insulting
treatment such as the performance of manwel labour, workingin Japanese
kitehens and as servants to Japanese,

(c) fThere was extrene inadequacy of medical eguipment and supplies.
8. The following are examples of conditions in working.camps:-
(2) IINSAYOKE Nce 1 Jungle Campe July-.ugust 1945.
1eaky tents., Focd - small quantity rice with two or three fresh chillies.

Toor hygiene. In July deaths reached 20-30 daily, the population being
about 1500. :

(b) I Compe IWoiene - nil, gickness colossal, puring cholera
10-1) deaths daily, but many never found. Cholera cases driven into
Jun_le ané abandoned,

(¢) UTER KONCUIT. Campe Strengh cbout 3000 but estimated that 10
to 20 per cent of original strength disappeared on the march to the camp,
1200 sicl.daily. Dpeaths during October 1943 - 382.

(¢) INIKI Bridge-building Cape. It is estimated that 1500-2000 coolies
died in this camp in a pericd of six months, Treatment accorded coolies
described (by 5932200 st. G.D, Chandlen, 2/Canbs) as sterriblew,
Fractures from ill-treatment seen. migh suicide rate - probably 20-30
in six wonths,

(e) 73 KILOMETRE Caimp, Burma. 500 Burnese labourers., Deaths
averaged 2 daily cver 3 ronths, jverage daily nunmber at work about 200,

e The following are examples of conditions in coolie hospitals;-

(a) C.IMBURI Nos 2 Coolie Tospitul. Lverage number of patients 2000
or rore, Conditions in cdysentery wards and nieath-house® indeseribable.
Coolies sent to ceath-house struck off ration strength, Complete
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indifference on the part of the Japanese to sufferinge Ccnstant beating
‘ and maltreatment of patients for offences, real or imaginary. Deaths

over & periocd of 18 months numbered about 5000,a figure which is
regarded by meny as an undercstimate. Frequent exarples of gross cruelty.

. (b) IYII Hospitale .vercoe number of patients 1500; wmaximum 3300

- in gseptember 1943 with (ross overcrowding and patients lying in the open.
Tstimated 4000 deaths in 12 months, September 1943 being the peek ronth
with 600-700. Tll-treatment of coolie patients fairly frequent,

(¢) EKINSLYOEE jlospital. At first tents with patients on ground, Up
to 1000 patients, Ilospital run by 2nd Class Japunese private. Deaths
estimated at about 2000 in 15 nonths. gsick frequently driven out to
work around caip.

{ 10, lortality. Fron estimpntes and observations made by members of
vk )edical Force it is certain that 50 per cent of the total labourers
brou_ht from imloaya tc siem-and purma dicd there in the period Y43-45
and that by far the peater part of this mortality occurred in the last
ei ht months cf 1943,

i Ban Tong Jlespital 300 deaths camburi 1 Hospital 1500
i cemburi 2 fespital 5000 vanyei Hospital 5000
ﬁ Tinsayoke " 2000 Toncuita = 1800
i ikl " 2000 Appuron 1200
: and sc on

I A surmetion of all estimates indicatcs about 42,000 deaths
y among; 75Q00 labourers, and as the survey does not cover all camps, it is
i fairly certain that there were 50,000 labourer cdeaths con the railway.,.

ﬁ 11 The following instances of specific ill-~treatment, brutality and
» neglect were reported to me by medical personnel under ry cormand;-

i (a) 7349689 sjte. R. Tullen, RAIT reported that, in the Takamoto Cap

1 at wiki sick labourers vho vere still alive were thrown into a mass g rave,
| he personally havin;; observed movements of limbs in the g raves, The ;
I Japanese 1edical officer of the putai was one Tliketa.

b () X 50666 ~te. DR, Boardman, /JC reported that at Tainonta

i goolie [jospital a considerable number of sick labourers were killed off
! by overdosa_e cf morphia and by the intravepnus injection of air of
mercuric salts, 4 Japanese private - mreenpants® - togther with an
unknown 5-star Japanese, was rcesponsible, Ti:e hospital was under the
administraticn of rudo putai (Imjor udc).

(c) captain B. Iennox, RLIT reported that at ye., 2 Hospital, camburi,
intravenous injecticns causing considerab&é agony ancdeath were
adninistered to a nuber of coolies by a Japanese doctor, It. Takana.

‘ (d) 5932200 sjt. G.D. chandler, 2/Canbs re;orted that a very sick
coolie was taken toc the edie of a commmnal gave and hit on the head with
a shovel by a Japunese serjeant and thrown into the grave. He asdo
reported a coolie pushed off a bridie at Niki by a Japanese and drowned.

These incidents cecurred in a brid_e-building Butai (0saka Tai) at fiki. |
e
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(e) captain R.L.G, Dawson, Rul®: reported that ten jfodical Officcrs
andé 40 oRs,who werce being wwmrched frem Kinsayoke to Niki were at Tamajo
billcted overnight in tcnts previously used for cholera suspects and which
werce but a fow fect ww.y from tontscontaining active cholera cascs,

() 7368972 Tte i..... DaLC, RLIT rcported that at Niki Coolie Hospital
the .ustralian jkdical officcr was forbidacn to visit two British 10Ws
suffering from typhus whe were brought into the hospital and that an
Indi.n dresscr was forced to administer cn overdose of worphia with fatal
rcsults.

(¢) Ccartain g.x, Twllece, I,17.8., reported that at a Kinsayokc check-
ing station coolics undcr.oing reetal swab cxuiintion werec,one after the
other, kicked biolently by the Japanese medical officer of the Hypicne Butai

(h) V¥X 37391 r~te. G.E, Hibberd, L.l reported that <t No, 2 Coolie
Hospital Canburi (undcer [wjor rFudo, alrcady rcferrcd to) coolics were kept
standin;, for hours vith wcijhts tied to the penis,

o (1) 7382349 Tte, E,i, Berber, R.IT reperted that at Finsayoke Hospi-
tal/coolic suffering from cercbral malaria was kicked in the face by a
Japanese soldier known as rScarfaccre,

(j) ceptain D, Gewn, R.IT reported that when sick were being evacua-
ted alrost heclpless patients were nade to cruwl several kilometres to the
station or barge, from Kinsayokec Hospital,

(k) wmjor §.C. Nardell, I.,l7.8, reportcd that at Ccnecuita Coolie
Hospital he was struck aeross tlic fuce by the Japanese medical officer,
known as pago Joe, for refusing to curry out surgical treatment of which
he, the scid mjor maracll, did not a:prove,

s

(1) 13772 8jt.. C.E.D. Iewie, SSVF reported thut mewbers of the
Japancsc Hy.iene Unit at Niki, during & routine rectal swab examination,
insertcd a glass rod into the vagine of a chinese woran examinee, and
beat a sick coolie along to the cxamination point where he collapsed
and soon afterwards died and anoth-r atrocity of similar nature.

(12) 7349689 sjt. R. Tullen, R.JIT reported that at a Niki Coolie Cuzp
& coolie, suspected of theft, was tied to & tree, floged and struck over
the genitals, thut another form of punishment was the bringing of lighted
amboo into contact with the body and face of ccolies, causii, severe burns,

i

(n) cept. R.L.G, Davson, R.IT reported that at Upper Concuita Carp
sick coolies werc used for the practice of judo und thrown over the
shouléers of Japunese and that they were also beaten,

(0) 7538201 rte., R,L. Jones, RilIC reported that at Upper Taimontu
a coolie, accused of theft,was taken into the jungle and shot, Between
sucust and December 1943. He also reported that coolies, who had stolen
rice, were made to maintain a bent position over fires,

(p) VX 54784 rte. R.B. Cussen, ..M rcported that at a Concuita
Cup wbcut 50-60 coolics, cholcra-suspects, werc given lerge doses of norphia
and saturated potassiunm permanganate solution from whieh cll of them died,

(a) 7341626 sjte R... Stoneucn, RIT reported thet et vanyei Hospital
« coolie, suspected of theft, was svung round by the hair,

These iustances could be multiplied aé nausean,

12, The Japancse uduinistration responsible for the welfare of coolies
(of which Col, Hatakawa is known to be a mcmber) must be held answerable
for -
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(a) The appallingconditions prevailing in many workig carps and
hospitels;

(b) The criminally inudequote rwdical supplies for the treatment
of sick coolies and DOs, and tlhie shocking conditions under

(¢) mimhichdbthaasicBivdreupelied to coolics and in particular
to sick coolics;

(G) fThe coarsc and brutal treatnert accorced the coolies;

(e) The forecing, of sick to work;

(f) The colaossal rorbidity and grave mortality, much of which could
and should have becen prevented.

(6) The de_rading wnd insulting trcatnent wecorded to lediecal officer:
and their staff; and

(b) 1In general the culculated and criminal neclect of even the most

elenentary provisions for the health and welfare of the coolies.

STORN by the suid ROBERT CR.VFORD )
at 6 gprin; Gordens in the City of ) (signed) R, CR..”FORD.
westiinster this 15th day of February 1946 (ROBERT CR.LTFORD)

Before ne,

(Signed) H, NEIL I.STERS,
Capbes 186l gtati,

Mil. papt., J.G's office, LONDON, S.V.l,
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AFFIDAVIT in the mantter of Japanese 'ar Crimes and in the
natter of the ill-treatrent, torture, starvation and
rurder of coolies on the Slam-Burma Railway.

E?THE DEPONENT (Captein E,H, T/allace, Indian ledical Service)
wishes to make the following statement;- “

1. Hore Addressg Cap‘t ain mpdwin Herbert allace s TS
Mylnebeck House, lLake Road,
"INDERMERZE, estmorland,

Tnit; Indian Medical service,
on Bx-1,0,7. Leave,
attaclied to India office, London,

2 .pate & T'lace of capture; 15.2,1942. Singapore.

3. gtatenient of strocities;

(1) XINSLYOX COOLIE HOSPITAL, SIAM, JULY, 1943.

hen the Japanese }pdical ,uthorities (that is, the opinion of
the Jupenese N,C,0, in local charge) considered that coclie cases of
CHOLER:. were dan_ercusly ill and thought not to recover, or when the
CIIOLIRA HOST'IT:L (2 meagre hut holding 40 nixed pritish 1,0,W, and coolie
patients) was full, then these patients were shoved into a small lean-to
si:elter of attap leaves and left to their fate., No provision was nade
for their feedin; or drinking and the doctor i/c the Coolie Cholera
Hospital was ncot ;iven necessary medical supplies or staff to deal with
these unwanted or excess patients. fThey were left to die, I saw coolies
erawling, from this hut on their knees begging for food and their only
angwer fron the Japanese orderlies was abuse and kicks, In the Cholera
Hospital itself the pritish 17,0, i/c was overworked, under-staffed and
so ill equipped with instruments and drugs thet ficedles mcde from bamboo,

| _eut bx_themselvesJ were used for intravenous saline infusions necessary

for the treatment of elclera, This was seen by ryyself,

7itnesses; Captain Christison, R.,A.}.C.
Major Crawford, u

It was said of Cholera Hospitals in this area that excess or
nearly dead coolie patients were forced into common pit graves and buried
alive - if there was protest, the coolies were beaten down with spades by

Japanese orderlies, This fact I often heard substantiated by many
RAMCorderlies from differcnt canps; eye-witness of this particular
atrocity -

Jal.NESE COMVANDANT - Names unknown,
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(2) XKINSLYOK COOLIE C.Mr. JULY 1943.

I was told, in ry capacity as doctor, to accompany the Japanese

' M.0, of the J.DUNESE IMPERIAL ARMY HYGIENE UNIT, in order to give anti-

+ cholera innoculations to coolies, T arrived at a Sanitary Cordon mut on

' the path leadiny from the South elong the railway line then beins con-

* structed, .t dusk a long procession of coolies, carryingtheir belongings

"and children, and utterly exhausted, walked through the control barrier

" and so onwards to the camp where they would rest for the night. Instead

" of treating these coolies with consideration - they were already starved

© and had walked all day carrying loads without food - the Japanese 'doctors!

" made constant 'fun! of these exhausted coolies. The usual procedure at
these points (a necessary one sinece cholera was rampant up and down rthe

‘"linew at that time) was for an examination of the anus with a ¢lass, metal
,_or bambco proboc to be Tade, and the coolie sprayed with & disinfectant.

. This was all done in an atrocious renner, Female coolies, naturally,

J-objected to lifting up their skirts tm front of a jeering umob of white

. coated Japanese end their many friends standing In the rear -_these women

| were picked out by theé Japanese and often their skirts were thrown ri ht

over their heads, or their heads foreed down to the  round, whilst &

| laughing erowd cxamined the woman's fprivate parts!, If either a man or

, @ woman, usually white haired and exhausted, lingered or seemed uncertain

; of what to do they were herded forward by smacks all over the body with

i large banbco sticks or poles, If there was any hesitation whilst the

i spraying was done then the smarting disinfectant was purposely sprayed

z into the face and eyes. The anal examination was performed by Japanese
f

! nedical orderlies, I cave the innoculations of anti-cholera serum; the
_~Japanese 1,0, Limself stood at one side of the line of coclies waving a
; huge stick and many times, when coolies were bending down, he would strike
f; then across the buttocks with a large bamboo pole, one inch thick at least,
| : and also kick them, on doing this he would leap up into the air with glee
and shouts of mirth, with his orderlies joining in upon each occasion, At
{ the same timc he himself wore a white face resk, white coat and big boots
| and he ot an orderly to spray him all over every so often, On the way

[ | 4 back, in halting Bnglisi, he explained to ry protests that these coolies

E K\(// é/! were in h{E’SEIEIEHTEEE;EﬁEEﬁ”ﬁhq_gquﬁggjhym9§§gnyrggnsidg;gtignhand

e, | | geemed surprised that T did not take the same view; he then passed on to

| | a discussion of how Japancse sur;ical scicnce was far in advance of the
\ ~Britishk and ,merican efforts. AT e R R

| TADANDSE M,0,'s NE: Unknown,

|
| 7itness; Captain Brown, R,...M.C.s 198 Field irbulance,

(3) NIKAT COOLIE ZOSTITAL, 133 Iue Sian Burma Border.

July, 1943 - January, 1944,

i Here was a very large coolie hospital even in the early days of
i 1943, Dratients who were considered likely to die, or whose treatment
: would have to be prolonged, and who, after being cured and were considered




zvidentiary Document # 5136, ¥

of no further use as labour on the railway, were all put into the w“pead

Houser (named so by the Japanese therselves), This was a lon. badly made

i hut, liable to flooding, at the river side and allowed to gt into a most

delapidated condition and although 200-300 yards from the rest of the

hospital hute not provided with its own fireplaces or kitclien, The

| Jopanese medical orderlies very rarely visited this place and did not

bother at all with its administration, and no British M,0, or R.A.MM.C.

orderly was allowed to visit it. The consequence of this lack of

attention was that the mativer (MRlay Tamil dressers usually) dressers

and the Mplayan Service Tanil »doctorw who was really an ex-dresser, were

! in charge of this hut and seriously risabused their position. pPatients
were left entirely without trcatment for many édays on end, food and

! vater was not supplied to patients unable to rise from the bamboo frames

i on which they lay - the wstink® in consequcnce of unattended wounds and

i unattended excretions of nature was almost unbearable in the heat, _JI used

~ to visit this wpead Houser and was told many piteous stories by the inmates

\ T‘“Tfiﬁﬁi'aﬁcused the so-called native dressers of not bringing in their Two

) »y | mwa1s of ¥ice and chillie water (alloved by the Japancse) nlcss thoy were

; ‘ bribed to do so - some of them had cven to pay ten dollars ($10) for a

| container of water, They crawled about, or lay any.here, as best they

l COU.ld.t

-~

I consider the frightful state of this particular "pead House"
(there was one in every Japanese coolie hospital) at that time to be a
serious mis-use of medical privilege by the Japanese authorities running
the coolie hospital, The truth is that conditions in this hut were so
disgusting that the Japanese thenselves preferred to keep away despite
their medical responsibility.

JLTANESE M,0'8 NAVME - forgotten,

ritnesses;- Caeptain J,L, Frew, lustralien Medicel service, (13 3.G.H,)
Lieut. I, Tomlinson, F,M,S.V.F. (MBlayan Medical gervice)
Captain Gibsonp R.A.M.C.

(4) NIXAT COOLIE CiMP, JULY, 1943 - JilN. 1944.

I lived in a tent opposite the guard-house of the Japanese
Military Dclice (KEMPIT.I). On many occasions I saw wany coolies forced
up the big trees near the juard-house by Japanese using long sharpened
bamboo poles, then coolies had reachcd the top of the trees and could go
no further they were repeatedly jabbed at by the Japanese guards with these
sharpened polcs, The cries of fear and horror of thesc men could be heard
all over the camp, and they were often kept up in these positions for 48
hours at a time without food or water, On several occasions I saw coolies
fall down off the trees when they were only snarled at and kicked by their
captors, (n one accasion I saw a coolie of age about 50-60 (.rey hair and
ergciated) thrown into the nearby swift river despite his exhaustion; he
floated, repeatedly sinking, down the river and was rescued by a I,0,i.
(a rrivate 7, punk, R.4.M.C., attached F.M.8.V.F.) bathing further down,

R T e el i o ol e i e v il
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Despite his state the coolie crawled into the jungle bleeding and
presunably died later at night, At night time the coolies in the trees
had no respite as the Japanese juards whenever they felt like it attached
burning pitch faggots to the end of their poles and continued to jab away
at thc coolies above with fire -~ accorpanied as usual by the howls of the
nen and the laughér and jers of the guams, .t this same pas~-house coclies
caucht for various misdemeanours (and I have to admit, that of stealing
whieli the Japanese were very intolerant of - but generally on account of
absenteeisn from work) were flogged extremely severely by these Kempeil
guards -~ in secveral instances I have seen coclies faint off tied up agains:
trees with their severe punishment,

ILMCS OF GUALRDS: Unknown, Yitnesses: .4s in No. (3).

(5) EKANPURI COOLIE HOSPIT.L, SIiM, OCT. 1944 - M.RCH, 1945,

I was placed in charge of the Dysentery vard of this Hospital -
at this time there was an average of 40 patients daily, and ah average of
1l - 3 deaths daily., My indictment is that patients were not given
sufficient dressings for their wounds and totally insufficient drugs for
treatment., zwmeline Hydrochloride, the only drug; capable of saving life
in /moebic Dysentery, was absolutely with-held despite almost daily
protests., Ivery morning I had to attend the Japanese Medical Stores for
ry issue of drugs and dressings for this ward - although the ward was con-
sidered the mead House" by the rest of the hospital, and so admitted
the most fulminating cases of Tropical Ulcer - cases in which one or both

Iqbs,xught have the bone corpletely exposed from knee to ankle T—I—EfE_ZfP

fravelv every morning handed a piece of gauze, 31 inches by 3 inches, or
ﬂallor, one bandage every third or fourth “dayj “"half a dozen tablets of
“soda bicarbonate; one tablet of aspirin; a few crystals of rota351um

rermanganate; and 1 - 3 tablefsof—=mmwantiseptic akin to Acrlflav1ne

called wRivanol"; cotton wool,one handful if one was Jlucky, Consequentlj
dressin.s had to be provided from the boiled clothing of coolies who

R
dled._knd when that was used up, Just leaves, No 1nstruments rere Supplled

i,8. NO scissors or 1orceps, ‘Pottles or jars rarelx. j s

L//’§\‘ pue to the ill-equipped state coolies in the last stages of

Dysentery had to be nursed on mats on the bare ground as the mats becane
filthier and filthier by excreta they could not be replaced despite
protests. Food was supplied but wus of such inferior quality (rice and
vegetable soup chiefly) that it was impossible for patients to recover on
it especially when already suffering from starvation, beri-beri and dysen-
tery. Dpuring this pericd I remember at least three patients who committed
suicide as they realised there was no hope for then; one suiclde would
cormence a sequence of such acts throuchout the hOSpltul as the railway
line was couveniently near,

I do not know whether I can directly blame the Japanese
Cormandant (Captain, now Major, XKUDO of the I,J.i. Ingineer Regt.) for
these conditions, But_there was a serious shortage of drugs, dressings
and feod in this esrm and the authorities which nermh FFeA mm w7z




o

zvidenticry pocument /! 5136, e

5.

and, I think, 6 or less Jopanesc orderlies. It is thus not surprising
that therc mmst have been leakazes and thefts of food and drugs.

1 do Imow thet pmjor IUDO ot drunk very frequently end thet he
chased eny fair-lookin, coolie wouan patient he ever saw and *slept® with
her despite The husbanat!s protests, and alsc that a (mlay dresser wished
to run avay as his wife was being approached by the commandant, gSo it is
not surprising that the rumour ot around that the vegetables which should
have been _iven as rations to the pritish 7,0.Ws in the carp were sold in
the coolie cantcen and that prisoners (all 11,0s and nedical orderlies)
could thus buy back their own raticns at high ratese.

A1D COMEMDANT: Major (then Captain) KUDO, I.J.i, Eniineors,

itnesscs: Lt.Coles BEMSON, ReielaC.s 27 Indioan Field /mbulance,
Sgte STONENN, RedoM.C.s 198 Ficld .xbulance,

(6) 1In this Ranburi Coolic Hospitel was a Mr. Chin (a Malay
born Chinese, livin; before the war at mitterworth, near Penang). I
have no proof but li¢c was widcly suspected by all ,0,7, as bein; an accon-
plice cf the Jjapanese, and that he gave information away to the XERII
Tolice (Japanese Military Police) at Kanburi concerning legkage of news
from the outside world into the camp ~ this inerininated friendly Siamese
subjects and caused the torture of pritish 1,0,!/, under the Japanese
rolice, He was definitely anti-pritish when T first knew hin late in
1944 but grodually changed his views, .t the tine when thore was a KEM'I
enguiry regarding pritish -,0,1/, subversive activitics I saw M, CH
cyeling into Fanburi town every morning which was an unusual practice
for hin as he worked in the hospital every morning as shead doctorn,
I have no definite information excepting for his original anti-pritish
views and his opinion that we should lose the war, I have to say thet his
wife, name unknown, was friendly to British Trisoncrs and on one oceasion
save one tied up against a pole &% the Guard House a glass of water
despite the objections of the Japanese Guards,

CTINESSES: Lieut, Col. Benson, R...M,C., 27th Indien Field .mbulance,
Major Crawford, R.4,1LC,s (Estate Doctor, JOHORE).

(7) The gcneral nedical and sanitary management of the entire
coolie caips syread up end down the gian-purie peilvay was absolutely,

“depiox e, und conditions cven at this late catc seem unbelievable,

The administration was such that whole bodies of thousunds of eocolies and
British 1,0,''s would be merched all day to new cauap sites; they would
then be left tc build their own huts and be left sometimes even without
rice for foocd for days at a tine., This occurred when wp® and "H* Forccs
of Iriscners arrived in gian frow Singapore, Considering the extrerely
hard anual lebour of coolies and our own men the food during 1943 and
early 194, was absclutely inadequate, 1En working from before dawn up
till nidnight had to jo for periods of I to 8 weeks on & diet of rice and
vegetable water only., It is not surprising that hundreds collapsed from




WA

Tvidentiary pocunent # 5136, ; ¥

starvation and the consequent lovwered resistance to tropical diseases
such as malarie and dysentery. Although the Japanese )Medieal authorities
lnew the prevalence of malaria, mosquito nets during 1943 and early 1944
tere not supplied to coolics or prisonerse There was a total lack of
appreciation of the situation by local puerds so that coolies and I,0,V.
would errive perhaps with plenty of rice but no containers tc cook it in,
slckncss throushout this period was not considered & cause of absentceisn,
ana coolie cwip MNDORS (Chiefs) had to produce & certain fixed percentage
| of workers present every day - if the figure fell the Japanese guards
| voula visit coolic and British Hospltalsand whip the men with ccnes or
strike themwith—barbee—poteosand TEKG the: come out to work (1 saw this
nany & 6olic hospitals and once at the British
Hospital at rINSayor in July 1943 - the protests of British doctors were

1ot considered and orten the doctor ended up with a beating hinself, The

provision of sanitary Tacilitics was-ludicrous = Ferely pits without any
shelter for thousands of men, and these had to be dug by patients fron

the hospitals as the rest of the camps were out working on the railway dur-
ing daylighte The ecolleetion of flies round the open latrine pits was
disgusting and by their dissendnation amongst living huts and cookhouses
diseases spreuad rapidly at every camp. 'ith the advent of cholera to back
up the dysentery and malaria the Japanese were foreed to send dovn to
singapore, when it was already too late, for a party of 40 doctors and
about 20C R,.\.M.C, nedical personnel in order to prevent the entire

coclie and-T,0,'. labour from being wiped out, Ry Noveumber, 1943, there
were well over 5,000 deaths in the F & H British Force of Tabour; and—as—
ré ards coolics an cstifiﬁmxnrd?Pdtfftﬁﬁlt’ﬁﬂt“]fIhow That at SN KRYER
coclie camp (about 120 Rae fron TLMBUSAY.T, and a few km. above NIKAE)

the death roll in Noverber, 1943, wus 40-50 daily for a period of 6-8 weeks
in one swall caup alones On the march mp-countryr from KINSAYOK to

NIKAE, every hundred yards oF so of the path worn by previous prisoners

and coolics, we met dead bodies of coolies or the unnistakable suell of a
deccying corpse - these were of nen who had been forced to march in too
exhausted a state or who had fallen ill on the way and had been left behing,

In sore instances Japanese guards tried to auend the conditions
but they were powverless in the face of a woofully inadequatc supply and
mcdical organisation,

In ry opinion the Japancs: Medical Colonel in charge of the
Railway predical & Senitation idministration and whose 4,0, was at KAMBURI,
and_who_gqggg;pggrtggﬂégggicans vho built the Danama Canal as wbig white
beastsn is the Japancse officer dircctly to blame for the absSI"¥er
unneccssary high death rell amengst coolics and Epi"bners on the railway,
_certainly in 1943, He uust take the blamc for responsibility for racial
hatrcd as witnessed by his speech to British doctors whom he made sit
for an cxamination to prove they were doctors, and for his failure to
transport nedical, food and sanitary supplies to the forward caups cutting
their way through virgin jungle. There was also inadequate supervision of
Japancse uedical juards and orderlies who were allowed to treat coolies as
they thoucht fit and who werc given far too wide powers of local
ddninistraticn, .
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LDANESE MEDICAL COLONEL'S MN.IE: Unknown - H,0, at Kanburi, Sim,
June - Deceiby 1943,

7itnesseg; Major Crawford, R...M.C. (Estate poctor, Johore, lalaya).
captain J,L, Frew, Australian ledical Service, 13 A,G.H,

(8) INFORMATION REGARDING NUMBER OF COOLIEL DEATHS ON RAILVAY,

Estination extrenely difficult as I only saw one caup at a time
and had no birds-eye view of the railway line as a whole, I have livecd
in six differcnt coolie hospitals up and down the line and, together
with discussion with other doctors, have formcd the conclusion that I
should not be surpriscd at any figure between 100,000 and 150,000
coolies throughout the carly 1943-1945 period,

(signed) E.H, 7ALLACE, Captain,
Indian Medical Service,
lMenber of wgr Medical force on
gien-purna Reilway June, 1943
to smucust, 1945,

Tindernerec,

17.2.46.

{ I, IDVIN HERBERT VWLLACE, do solemmly and sincerely declare that the
foregoing statement is true to the best of my knowledge and belief,
and T wake this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same
to be true,

(Sizned) E.H. YEIILACE, C&ptain.:i
DECLARID before me this 18th day of FEBRUARY, 1946.

(signed) E.., HEWETSON.
Justice of the reace for the
County of jjestrorland,

Exarined with original affidavit at H,q. AILFSTA this seventeenth day
of ipril 1946, and certificd a true copy.

(signed) ?
Lt.Col., Legal staff,
var Crines legal Seetion,
LIFSEA, Singapore,
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N < S | I, Richard FEraest FETTRSCH of Moo, 316 Dawson St., BALLARAT in
- NP : . ~ . - = e 3
— \\ £ o J the Stabte of Victaria mele oath and say as follouss—
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N o Te I was a nenber of the 4IF, Iy Nunbor was TX30023 and I was
/ . - » -
o e | -attached %o the 2/9 Field inbulancce

S

o
oA
=
&

I was taken prisoner of Tar by the Japancsc in February 1942

Dl = 5 and placed in CHANGI prisons later I was sent to Thailand in
r\§ = 'K forec and placed in various camps in STAM.

‘}? 3 In February 1941 I was in a coolic canp known as CHAYMONGA.
A On the 1lhth February 194l I contacted a Japancse knoun to ric as ARAT
~< = (Storn Trooper) HAYASII IARNEATSU., Ve werc in a coolic.carp which

Q\ b vag also a hospital.
4__ : 3 be  KIRNEATSU procccded to a coolic camp to interview coolies in the
2 \”‘ : hospital. He had a hypodermie syringe filled with a red unkmovn fluid,
- ~\‘ ( He ordcrod the coolies dova fron their beds and asked then if there
S s ¢ vere any wvho could not walk, he told then they were roing to be roved
R - to a basc hospital and thosc vho could not walk would be carricd.
= ) B Several staggered forvard and werc given an injecetion of the
 RE W fluid in the big vein in the clbow. A4ll who were inoculated died
A 5 vithin a viev minutes., Then the ranainder saw what was happening thoy
: 5) said they could walk. 'hen he had finished he procecded to the
\ s dysentery hut.
"g_\? 2 _
- 2‘* 6o He looked through this hut and walked aweys. Iater he returncd
s with a large tin of browm sugar’in vhich was mixcd a dcadly poison.
\Q 1} He gave the coolies this to cat, ¥clling them it vas good for ther.
~ i <
i ‘“’3; 7? All vho ate this poison died during the day.
1 ; cle The Japancscessoswas knovn to all prisoncrs at CHAYMONGA canp
; ~ as Green PantScosseoce
S
. ~t : s 15
e i

7,3,
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I, Thekin Se, trader, Yenangysung, now
residing at House No. 156, 4&th Street Rangoon, solemnly affirm
and state as follows:=-

il

For some years before the Jepanese
occupation of Burma, I had been associated with lebour movement
in oil-fields area and had taken part in meny activities intended
to improve the condition and status of labourers in that area and
elsewhere in Burme.

o) The Japanese Arny, in July 1942, began
to recruit labourers in Burma for work on the Burne-Siesm kailway
projecet, It relied at first on specious propagenda for the succes
of its recruitment. High rewards were promised; good food, good
living conditions, ample clothings and good medicel treatment whil
at work were promised; and the recruits were definitely told that
they would not be required to serve more than three months at the
project. Consequently, recruitment was at first fairly successful

But when the first few batches af
labourers were not sent back at the end of the stipulated three
months and when those who escaped the vigilance of military guerd
set over them came back with stories of ill-treatment at work,
of scanty food end clothing supplies ¢t the camp and total neglect
of the sick and ailing, further recruitment on a2 voluntary basis
became impossible, The Army on this resorted to prees-gang
methods. Units of the Japenese Army stationed at different parts
of Burma seized persons they thcought suitable and took them under
militery escort to the labour camp at Thanbyuzayat. People of 2ll
sorts and conditions were taken in this way, while they were about
on their legitimate business. The agency of the civil police forec
at whose head was a Japanese Officer nominated by the Army, weas
also employed. Persons whom the local police officers considecred
a source of trouble were seized; people who had incurred the
displeasure of civil and military administrations as also persons
who were thought to be disaffected with the Administration were
taken into custody end pressed into the labour forcec. Some of
then were kept detained in custody for some time before being sent
awey to Thanbyuzayat. The provisions of Lkule 38 of the Defence of
Burme Kules made by the lewful Government cf Burma under the
Defence of Burma Act, 1940, was freely mis-used in respect of
persons who escaped from the press-gengs or from labour camps,

In spite of strict censorship meintainec
by the Arry and the eivil administration set up by the Army,
discontent in the country became vocal and could no longer be
ignored towards the end of 1942, {i_conjoint Boerd of five
Japanese representatives end five representatives of the Burmese
administration was set up to £llay discontent with the methods
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i of recruitment snd with labour conditions et the camps. The
Burmese Administration was elso permitted to have Burmese Officex
at Thenbyuzayet and at labour cemps to look after the interests
of labourers., In pursuance of this scheme, I was appointed a
Superintendant of Labour at Thenbyuzayat. I held that post from
| 27th December, 1942, to 31lst, liarch, 1944,

When I arrived a2t Thanbyuzayat, there
. were about 7000 Burmese nationals at work at various camps on

, the railway project. In Jenuary, 1943, the Army asked for a

i further force of 16600 labourers., It was then also stated on

i behalf of the Army that the labourers would not be retained at

{ work beyond threc months of their arrival; and it was 2lso

! stated thet the arrivel of these new labourers would enable those
¢ who had been at work since the first recruitment to be released.
¢ Between 18th Jenuary, 1943, and 8th Merch, 1943, about 9000
L_labourers arrived at Thanbyuzeyet,| It was reported that there
had been many escepes on the wey in spite of vigilant guard set
over the recruits. [It may be stated herc that none of the former
7000 0dd or of the présent 9000 odd labourers was discharged as
having completed their term of service. Only such as were
completely used up physically and who could not be employed any
further were allowed to go back and many of them died on their
way home.,

Living accommodation provided for
labourers at the camps were insufficient eand insanitary. The
area where the work had to be done was very demp and labourers

had to live in barracks which could not keep out the wet.,
g Barracks intended for 150 persons had to house as many as 300,
| Clothing shortage was acutej; when the clothes which the labcurers
i brought from home began tc f211 into regs, gunny bags were suppli
to thenm to do duty both &s wearing apparel and as blankets. No
change of clothing was aveilable to most of the lzbourers and non
was provided by the Army. The result was that the clothings of
almost 211 labourers were crawling with vernin end most of them
! were suffering from e virulent type of skin disease. Food supply
was not sufficient; end the rice supplied was weevilly.

i of malariaj but steps were not taken to sterilise the water suppl:
except for a pretence at boiling the water for potable purposes.
Medical supply consisted only of quinine and cven this was not

' in sufficient quantities. Cholera broke ocut soon in the camps
and the Japanese sought to combat the spread of this epidemic

by cremating the dead and very often persons whok they considered
incurable, There were many authentic cases of live cremetions.

; Water supply in this area was a cerrie:
|

Labourcrs were treated as slaves.
Whips and sticks were freely used on the lzbourers; and sickness
ordinarily was no excuse.ﬂj

e« 0 s
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e There wes a total lack of system in

1

21lotment of labourers to the various camps. As the labourers
arrived at Thenbyuzeyet, they were either driven up in lorries or
taken marching through the camps. Officers in charge of the
camps would pétk out persons they wanted; families becane
seperated, the husband being retsined in one camp and the wife
sent to another canp, the parents going to one camp and the
children to other camps. Labourers who were sent from one camp
to attend one of the few hospitals then maintained a2long the
route were not exermpt from being taken into any other camp. This
lack of system end the haphazard manner in which the labourers we:
taken into different camps made it impossible to trace the
labourers later, lieny ceses had been known of families then
separated never coming together again. It mey be noted that some
of the camps are as far as 154 kilometres away from Thanbyuzeyat,

In theory, age limits for recruits to
the lebour force were 14 and 45; but, in practice, labourers range
in age between 12 and 60, A fair proportion of the labourers
were womenj; some of them came with their husbands and others
came with relatives or friends from the same local areas, In
most ceses, they were scparated through haphazard selection of
labourcrs at the camps from their husbands, relatives or friends,
They suffered a good deel of molestation from the Japanese Army
personnel; and reports made to senior officers were lightly
dismissed as & rule. A report once made through the Burmese
officer in cherge of labour of a change of rape agszinst two
Japanese soldiers met with a rebuff from Capteain Fujino, who wes
then in charge. His reply was thet Japsnese soldiers were not
capable of such impropriety and that the Burmese officer should
not appear to encourage frivolous reports against the Arny.

The molestation of women labourers did not abate till after July,
1943, when the Arny authorities imported about 300 prostitutes
to serve the Arny personnel engaged on the project.

About the end of Merch, 1943, the Army
authorities et Thenbyuzeyat issued a statement that out of 7000
labourers reccived before January, 1943, and of 9000 labourers
received by 8th Merch, 1943, 5000 only were effectively at work.
The difference between 16000 and 5000 were sought to be accounted
for by illness, death or descrtion. We were told that the Arnmy
rmust have another 30000 labcurers end we were directed to report
accordinzly to the Burmese Administration at Eangoon. The Army
at the same time issued a directive to the local civil administra-
tion at Moulmein that pending the arrival of the labourers to be
ccllected on ccountry-wide basis by the Central Burmese Administra-
tion at Rangoon, loulmein area must supply within five days
7000 labourers. Intensive press-gang methods followed this order
in Moulmein district. Between the months of April and July, 1943,
eapproxirately 30000 labourers were sent by the Burmese Administra-
tion at Kengoon to Thenbyuzayat. This was the last recruitment
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to what was known as the “Sweat Army". !

Evidentiary Document No. 5370, \ Page 4.

The nanmc "Sweat Army" hed esrned such
notoriety that it wes decided to rename the labour force, which w
knovn thereafter as Labour Scrvice Corps., though now and again
the tern "Sweat Army" was still used in correspondence.

The authority of the Burmese Superin-
tendant and Supervisors was smell. The Army was very jealous
of what it esppeared to consider interference with their preroga-
tives by Burmese officers, The lattef were not allowed freec
access to the labourers end were not allowed to maintain
independont records, Once the labourers arrived at the campss
2ll records relating to them were kept by the Jepanese authoritie:
Such records were highly unreliable; in the first place, the
number of deaths were minimised, as each death at work meant 2
payment of compensation to the dependants; and lestly, the
records were slip-shod,

We did our best to improve living,
food and working conditions; and by the time the road was opcn,
the conditions had improved z good deal. But, even at the
best, these were vcry bad. Flogging of lebourers, punishment
by exposing them to the sun tied to trees and starving them
used stilll to be resorted to. There also was another practice
indulged in by petty officers of the Army, resulting in illicit
gain to them, These officers would keep back twenty per cent of
the wages due to the labourers, &s security for their good
bechaviour , It was professed thet this sum would be paid to the
labourers on their discherges; but very few labourers were
dischorged, DMoreover, labourers were very often trensferred from
one carip to another, and the Japanese officers also used to he
transferred quite as often, Onc officer succeeding snother would
profess to know nothing of the deposits wiith the previous officer:
and labourers transferred hed no means cf meking their clains. |

i o

(Signdd) Thakin SA
late Lebour Supdt.

Identificd by mes=- 7
(Signed) E. Mzung)
Advocate-General
Burma .

Affirmed before ne, this 1lst. day of August, 1946.
' ' (8igned) 2
District Magistrate,
Rangoon.

$eal of the Court of the District Magistrate
Rangoon. 1/8/46 .,
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f Stetement of Maung Aye Ko, late Camp
| ufficer, Burma-Siam Keilway project,

| @ Cinenz Lrtist of hangoon, Burma.

In 1943, I was appointed a ceamp
officer to supervise Burmese labour on the Sizm-Burma Reilway
projecth In the_compeny of 49 other camp officers appointed at
the same time,|I_left Kangoon on 26th July, 1943, and reported
at the recepticn cemp at Mupun Station, Moulmein,

There were, then, at that camp about
2000 Burmese labourers. They were housed in barracks open to
the inclemencies of the monsoon, which was parficularly severe
in that part of Burma, Most of the lebourers were clad only in
a loin cloth and nany of them were down with fever., No
medical aid eppeared to have been given, and the food supply was
bad aﬁd insufficient., Senitary errangements were practically
absent,

From thc reception camp, batches of
100 to 400 labourers were teken in open railway trucks to
Anankwin Canp (45 kilometres from Thanbyuzayat)e. No arrangement
was made for neals during transit,} Many cases of attempted
and effective escapes from the f?ﬁcks were reported;imilitary
guerds had orders to and did shoot deserters, Aftcr Ahankwin,
labourers had to march to the camps appointed for them. ©Some
of these camps were as far as 130 kilometres from Thanbyuzayat,!

» e—

A few deys after arrivel at lupun Camp
I and 29 other camp officers were taken by railway as far as i
Thanbyuzeyat. 14 camp officers were left at Thanbyuzayat and
16 others including nmyself proceeded onwards by motor-~trolleys
to Lonsi cemp (65 kilometres from Thenbyuzayat). From Lonsi,
we travelled in motor lorries to Kyontaw camp (95 kilometre from
Thenbyuzeyat) . The last named ceamp was the heedquerters of
Conno Butai (No., 5804) under 2 Major Conno with Lieutenant
Seto as his second in cormends -

g

{on our wey from Lonsi to Kyontaw,
we found lebourers at work, scantily clad in rags or gunny bags.
They appeered for the nost pert to be emeciated and meny of them
were suffering from sores, Whips and sticks were freely used
by the Japancse cverseers sect over the labourers. There were
at work 2lso prisoners of war, They were equelly 1ill clad end
meny of them appeared to be very emeciated,

‘At Kyontew camp, we found the labourer
to be about equally composed of Burmese and prisoners of war,
Eurmese labourers lived separately from the prisoncrs of war;
but the zccommodation provided for both and food supplied to -
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them are almost the same..L;ong barracks with bamboo flooring rais
cbout three feet from the ground end not affording sufficient
security from the weather housed both classes. Kice was
weevilly end to accompany it used to be supplied a kind of
tasteless broth of vegetableses Only about 30 percent of either
class cculd be described as fit; about 30 percent were badly
affected by meleriz of & virulent type and were very emaciated;
and the rest appeered to be suffering from a virulent type of
skin discase, which caused big sores to appear mainly on the
lecgs, through the openings of which sores the bones would eppear
exposed end vernin infesting them. No medicel treatment wes
provided et the camps for the last disease, though it eppeared
to be fatal in many ceses. For melarizl retients, quinine used
to be provided, but never in sufficient quantities, A hospiteal
was situated at a distance of about 5 kilometres from this campj
but, no trensport of eny kind was available for the sick. Those
too 111 to walk to the hospitel had to do without any medicel
attention. Deaths used to average about ten a dey, at this camp
alone .,

The rembers of Conno Butal were
particulerly harsh and cellous in their dealings with those at
work under them. Floggings were freely administered to thcose
who through shcer physicel weakness or illness could not work
hard enough to please thc?LJ

Lfter & few deys at Kyontaw canp,
five other camp officers and I procecded by Motor lorry to
Kyonkeya carp (114 kilometres from Thanbyuzeyat). Three
officers including myself were left at this camp end three
others were taken onwerds to thcenext camp at 121 kilometres from

_Thanbyuzayat. My duties took me often to the last mentioned camp,

Lt Kyonkaya camp as also at the camp at 121 kilometres there were:
both rrisoners of war as well as Burmese labourers, DBurmese
labourers were then placed on earth-work 2t the neking of an
auxillisry motor roadj snd prisoners of war were engaged in stone
carrying and stone-brecking. Cholera epidemic was rife at the
canp and neny died of it, The dead and dying were piled up

end soeking then in petrol, the Jepanese used to cremate them.
Brutel acts committed on lebourers were deily occurrences, but

we were powerless to prevent them. One one occesion, when I was
coriing from the cemp at 121 kilometres, I saw a prisoner of war
at work in a stone querry collepsej his companions went up to
render eid to him; and the Japanese supervisor belaboured those
giving aid to the man who had collapsed with a heavy pieee of
planking. Another man collepsed on the spot s a result of the
beating; and I was told by the Japanese guesrd to move ones Three
days later, when I got back to the place where I witnessed the
incident, I saw two deed bodies cof the prisoners of war, who had
fellen down dead that day, The bodies were in an advenced stage
of decomposition. Later I used to pass this spot and I found the
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dead bodies left to rot there till subsequently, there were oniy
! the skeletons left et the place. I learnt that it wassat the

! orders of the Jepenese zuthorities thet the dead were left
unburied, s 2 warning to prisoners of wer, and other labourers.

; Towerds the end of Septenber or thc

i beginning of October, 1943, six prisoners of war escaped and
were recaptured. They were from the camp at 126 kilometres;

and I was informed by the Jepanesc officers that after recapture,
~the prisoners were taken to Thanbyuzayat end were beheadeql_s
Shortly after this incident, I obtained leave and was zbsent
fron the cemp till Februery, 1944,

On return fronm leave, I was stationed
at Abalon camp (85 kilometres from Thanbyuzsyat). I found two
British medicel men (prisoners of wer) doing good work, saving
neny lives of Burmese labourers. Yebai Putai with Major Yabia
in comnmand was in cherge of Abalon camp. Prisoners of wer,
nunbering ebout 20000, were at work between 100 and 131
kilometres from Thanbyuzeyat., Major Yebali and his company were
less brutel then lMejor Conno end his menj; but, the Kempeiti
had by thecn been stationed at labour camps, and several prisoners
of war and otherssuffered death at the hands of the Kempeiti, A%
this time, thc reilwey hed been open for some time cbd Burmese
labocurers were employed on repairs to and maintenance of the
railwey line, Prisoners of war had to make the motor road.

Work was lighter than in 1943; but food supply and living
accomnodation werec as bad., Medical supplies were almost nilj
and deaths from cholera, melaria and emaciation only slightly
decrecased.,
§ Finding that I could not do anything
effective to better the conditions of the lebourers, I resigned
| after 2 little over two months,

In the few months I wes at the labour
cerps, I saw so many floggings, beatings and deaths, that I
became inured to the sight. Even soy there is one sight that
left 2 strong impression on rme, It was on my first three months
service, in 1943, ot 2 place between 126 and 131 kilometres.,

I sew zbout 400 dead bodies, prisoners of war, Purmese and Malays
piled up and splashed with petrol end burnt.

( Signed) Meung Aye Ko,
The cbove statemcnt was signed in my presence by lMeung Aye Ko}
letely @ Camp Officer on Burma-Siem Reilway Project, personally
known to ne,

Stemp of Advocate-Gencral,
Burne

(Signed) E. Mcung
3rd, Lugust, 1946,
Ldvocete~Generel,
Burna.
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J

connected with the Burma/Siam Rallway.

a) Proszcution dezuament nmunmbere d 5275, the Affidavit
of Major C. E, GREEN, is now intrcduced for identification,
the marked excerpis therein being offered in evidencz.

This document s%ates that at Aerodrome Camp, Viectoria Point,
in June, 1942, a P/W having escaped, a number of other P{W
and officers were imprisoncd vntil the mants recapture. When
the man was found; the Japanese Senior officer said that
there was an Order that anyone attempting to escape was to

be shot and that this man therefore, had to be shot. The
witness as the Camp Commandant mede every attempt to prevent
the execution, which was nevertheless carried out iIn front

of the witness. There had been no trials

b) Prosecution document numbered 52063, the Affidavit
of Chaplain F. H. BASHFORD, is tendered for identification,
and the marked excerptcs thereof introduced in evidence,

This document states that in June 1942 eight P/W escaped
from Tavoy aerodrome camp. On recapiure they were executed,
the witness being present. Letters of protest against the
execution by the Seniocr British officer were of no avail.

c) Prcsecution dccument numbered 5030B, the Affidavit
of Lte Col, Go E. RANSEY, is now offered for identification,
the marked excerpts thereof being produced in evidencee.

This document statess that in May 1942, the witness was conm-
manding a P{W canp at Mergui. The camp was overcrowded, many
of the men had dysentery, and hospital facilities did not
exXist,

Three men were shot for allegedly trying to escapea
The witness made representations to the Japanese Commander
to no avail.

At Tavoy in September, 1942, P/i werec employed on ehlarg-
ing a military aerodrome. Three men accused of stealing stores

were taken to the gaol and there tortured savagely by the &empeitai.

PR
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d) Prosecution Document numbered 5274, the Affidavit
of Wing Commander L. V. HUDSON, is tendered for identifi-
cation and the excerpts marked therein produced in evidence.,
This document states that in March, 1945, at Rangoon Prison,}
two men who were seriously ill were refused medical aid by
the Japanese Doctor, who said they were dying anyway. In
fact the men did die within a week,

On numerous occasions the Doctor and his Orderly weré
asked for treatment to which the answer was, as before, that
since the men were dying, to give drugs to them, would be a
waste.

The Commandant of the prison inspected the pitiful
bareness of the cell which served as a hospital and saw the
condition of the sick without comment,

The witness was beaten up by the Doctor and his liedical
Orderly for writing a complaint to the Commandant on the

conditions in which the sick were living.
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a) FProsszcuticn deczument numbered 5275g the Affidavit
of Major C. E, GREEN, is now intrcduced for identification.
the marked excszsrpts therein being offered in evidence.

This document s%ates that at Aerodrome Camp, Victoria Point,
in June, 1942, a P/W having escaped, a number of other PLW

and officers were imprisocncd until the man's receapture. When

Jfthe man was found, the Japanese Senior officer said that
&

‘there was an Order that anyone attempting to escape was to
be shot and that this man therefore, had to be shot. The
witness as the Camp Comnandant made every attempi To prevent
the execution, which was nevertheless carried outr in front

of the witness. There had been no trizle.

p ¥t

b) Prosecution document numbered 52085, the Affidavit
of Chaplain F. H. BASHFORD, is tendered for identification,
and the marked excerptcs thereof introduced in evidence.
This document states that in June 1942 eight P/ escaped
from Tavoy aerodrome camp. On récapture they were executed,
the witness being present., Letters of protest against the
execution by the Senior British officer were of no avail,

¢) Prosecution dccument numbered 5030B, the Affidavit
of Lte Col, Geo E. RAIISEY, 1s now offered for identification,
the marked excerpts thereof being produced in evidencee
This document statss that in May 1942, the witnesgs was com-
manding a P{W canp at Mergui. The camp was overcrowded, many
of the men had dysentery, and hospital facilities did not%
existe.

Three men were shot for allegedly trying to escape.
The witness made representatiocns to the Japanese Commander
to no avail.

At Tavoy in September, 1942, P/Wl were employed on efilarg-
ing a military aerodrome. Three men accused of stealing stores

were taken to the gaol and there tortured savagely by the Hempeitai.
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d) Prosecution Document numbered 5274, the Affidavit
of Wing Commander L. V. HUDSON, is tendered for identifi-

cation and the excerpts marked therein produced in evidence,

This document states that in March, 1945, at Rangoon Prison,

two men who were seriously ill were refused medical aid by
the Japanese Doctor, who said they were dying anyway. In

fact the men did die within a week.

On numerous occasions the Doctor and his Orderly were
asked for treatment to which the answer was, as before, that
| since the men were dying, to give drugs to them, would be a

{prffste.
' -‘ The Commandant of the prison inspected the pitiful
bareness of the cell which served as a hospital and saw the
condition of the sick without comment,

The witness was beaten up by the Doctor and his liediecal
Orderly for writing a complaint to the Commandant on the

conditions in which the sick were living.
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I, VX39006, Mujor John Kevin LIOYD of ATy Headquarters rilke oath

and sS4y s
X, I ann an officer of the australian )dilitary Forces,
2 Annexed hereto and marked ogv is a true copy of an «ffidavit

sworn by Charlcs Zdward GREEN on 5 Murch 1946 which I have
in 1y custody in the course of iy duties.

3. The oridnal affidavit cannot be nade available irmedictely
as it is required for trials of idinor war criiinals,

SYORN before 1e ot MZLBOURNE

)
) (signcd) J, ILOYD, lajor.
tiis 27th day of 1py 1946 )

(signed) R.D. CRAMPTON, Cupt.
An officer of the
Australien [Hlitary Forccse.
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IN THE MATTER of War Crines

and

IN THE MATTER of WX3435 lejor
C.E. GREEN of 2/4 machince Gun
pattalion 4,I.F,

United Nations War Crires Corinisse
G OTeNCE T s s s e

fI, Ckarles mdward GREEN of Mount Strect, Derth, in the state of western
.ustralia being duly sworn muke cath and says

e I wes WX 3435 mujor charles rdward GRIEN of 2/L Machine Gun
pattalion, Australiscn Impcrial Force,

2. I was second in churge of the 2/4 Machine Gun Battalion and on
the death of Coloncl [j,J, ANFETEL in February 1942 T cormunded the Ba,
I rewained in commund of the Bns at CHANGI Caunp, Singapere, until 1
ray 1942,

3. The Japunese then ordered a party for overseas work to be
forucd consisting oft 300C all runkq} I wvas appointed by lajor-General
CALLAGHAN to coxmiand Mo, 3 Battulion of this force which was known as
;" Force,

S {'The Force embarked at Singupore on 14 May 1942 ou two shipse )
2000 all ranks under the comwand of prigadier A L, Varley vere pt on

the "POYOHASHI MaRUM and 1000 all ranks under the coimcnd of Lt.Col,

G. RaMSAY vere put on the >CELERES 1iARU*. On these two ships the troops
were grossly overercwded, holds which would ordinarily provde for 200
uen being made to uecorazodute 600 nen. The food on the ships was poor,
consisting of a small rice ration supplemented by a siall issue of tinned
food nade into stews, The water position was bad «nd the latrine
facilitics extreaely bad. On 21 Moy 1942 ti:e two ships arrived off

- VICTORIL POINT, Burna, and tlie Joponese -ordered the discubarkation of
1000 wen plus -sick. No., 3 Buttalion, its strength being then increased
to 1000 men plus sick, was diseubarked,

e it vietoria Point we were divided into two curps, 400 men being
gquartered at the Point proper and 600 pen at the cercdroLe canp approxi-
tetely 0 niles fron the point, The food condiions at this can, could be
regarded as beiny, reusconubly good although in reality they were talow
necesscry requirenents as it wus found later cn thatmen began to

exhibit signs of nalnutrition, 7}y nain generul complaint was that at
the cerodroiie we vwere xde respansible for guarding ourselves and that

a gucrd of Australicn Prisoners was naintained from the camp and were
held responsgible for any attempts to escape mude by any prisoners of the
camps M about June 1942, NX10420 private R,S, GOULDEN, o neuber of

3 pattalion quartered at the Aerodrone Cuorp attenpted to escupe. He was
found to be nissing and after a rewsonable time the fuct that he hud
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iescaped was reported by me to the Japanesc,' Captain YASUDA was the

itk s 55 S e Sy

genior Jopenese officer at yvictoria Point and was gquartered at the
tireless gstation. Cuptein Y.SUDi vas known to be of the Permanent
Jupunese Argy and was a pman of about 45 years cf age. He was about 5
feet six inches in height and of heavy build, ¢ The first steps taken by
the Japwnese was a complete check to establish that the nan was nissing;
all officers were then swmioned to the (Orderly Roou: and ¥ was confined to
ny gquerters for two days, The Quarteruaster and the Orderly officer of
the day (Australian Priscners) were also confined to their querters. The
whole of the australian guard vhich was on duty at the tire of the escepe
was sentenced to be imprisoned until such tiic as GOULDEN was recaptured,
The guard were punished by close detention in respeet of the escape.
Approxiuctely six days later it becane kmown thet COUIDEN had been recap-
tured by the Jopanese, J irmediutely requested that I should be present
at any interrogation of GOULDEN and was told that he would be brouglt to
be canp for questioning, a4t this stoge the guard whiclh Lhad been
irprisoned wes released. GOULDE wus brought to the Japunese cap Guerd
House and I was sent for b Capt. YuSUD.L, I pointed out to Cupt, YaSUDA
that on the question of the trial GOULDIN should huve representation and
he replicd th.t an order had been given thet any mun who «itcupted to
escape would be shot cnd GOULDEN had atteupted to escope and would therc-
fore be shot. It is oy opinion thut GOULDIN was Lentaly derunged as he
atteipted this escupe without any wdecuvete preparation whatever and
without couiunicating his intentions tc unyone else. It is uncerstood thag
he, realising the inpossibility of his cetions, gave hinself up to the '
Buriese Police who hunded hiw over to the Japunese. During the interim
period, i.e. while ke was out, a complete statewcnt covering the cuse was
preparecd by Lbt. 17CCAUL-Y, iy Iegel officer, pointing out thuat we objected
to being rwde responsible for gucrding our own prisoners und further that
we objected to cormmunal punishrient being gpiven in respect tc offences
cormvitted by individuels end the fuet thut escapeces were to be punished by
shootihg, I lodged two copics of this docwient with the Juponess, one for

‘ their owvn use and rcquested that one be forwarded to & represcntative of a
; Neutral povere. Dpuring this period the Japancese Cailp Coimander, Sgte

ISEIFAWA and also a Jupunese QOfficer in Corzxand of the srea adjaeent to the
aerodromne were intervicwed by i1 cn various occasions «nd the whole
question of GOULDEIT's escape ¢nd the objeetions to the possibilities to
his being shot were raised, I intervicwed GOULDZEN after his recupture and
he wus in a very distressed frame of nind, Capte YaSUDA would listen to
ro appedls whutever; he scid that if GOULDREN ves not shot discipline
would not be wmaintained and thet other nen would also attept to escape,

I was then ordered to return to 1y quarters. ghortly afterw.rds a
Rattclion porade vas ordered by the Jupenese and I was sent for. The
puttalion paraded on the purcde round and GOULDEN was marched from the
Japtnese quarters to @ position in front of the asseribled parcde, Copte
YASUDA, one otlher Jupanese officer, nule unknown, .nd three guards were
present. Capte. YiSUDA &nd the other officers urranged theuselves with
drawn swords cn either side of private GOUIDI™ and Cupte. YuSUDA then read
a docunent to the assecuibled troops in Jjupenese., The Bettulion was then
ordered to stund fast and « party which included 1yself, I jor STRINGER,
Lts BERN.DU and Lt., WATSON werc rwrcied in coipeny with GOULDEN and the
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guards to a point upproxinately five hundred yards from the caip. 4t

tlis spot a pole had been erected and GOULDEN was blidfolded, tied to the
pole and shot in front of us. GOULDEN had no formel trial. T then get a
doctor, Capt. HIGGINSy and a padre and the Doctor examined the body und
pronounced life extinct and we were ordered to carry the body back through
the asseibled ranks of the pattalion, A truck was waiting at the gate and
GCULDEN's body was taken to the victoria point Ceretery where a greve had
i already been prepured and was buried in my presenci,i Sgt. ISHIKAWA, the
Ceip Coumandant and private SHIRLISHI were also present, The following
docunents relative to the above werc hunded in as appendices to ny general
report on 3 Battulion whicl was suhiitied to HR vestern Coixand on 12
Noveitber 1945.-

Appendix No. 2 - Diary of 3 Buttulion ®i* Forecc to 16 Oct 42.
sppendix ¥o,1l - Court of Inguiry on the execution of NX10420
Private R.S. GOULDEN,
Appendix No.12 - Copy of letter subiitted to Jununesc on execution
cf NX10420 private R.,S. GOULDEN.
6. nn 28 sep 19/2 the australion troops under ¥ cormend arrived at
THANBYUZYAT uhizl wus the nortl: sterting cnd of the purne-mhailend railway,
ve were the first ausiralien troops to uarrive ut THANBYUZY.T and we cune |
under thc coirnud of the HQ Moo 3 Pranch Thailind Var Prisoners. The
exceutive staff of this HQ were:-

Lt.Col. NAGATOL'O

Coixzanding; Officer,

Licut. N.TT0 - Second in chiarge.
Lieut, HIGUCHI - Medicul officer,
Liecut. K.GAOT - Zconoiidc QOfficer,
T The war erines set out hereunder caiic within iy personal knowledge

w.ile we werc within +the cormand of Lt.Col. NMAGATOWMO:-
IXECUTION OF ESCLPLLS.

Mx69005 Ptc, G. M, WIITFIELD, of 3rd Rescrve MT oIF.

thitfisld cscuped from KaND.LW 4 FKilo Camxp cormninded by i on the
10th Mov 4<. He surrendered hiiself to the Jopanecse ot Thenbyuzyat on the
13th pecs 42, At thct time I believe thet Lt.Col, N.G.TOMO wus temporarily
absent and [t. Meito vwas cdndnistering comund, whitfield was shot on
the 1} peec, 42 on the orders of it. Naito. To 1y knowledge this man was
given no tricl by the Jupunesc, Ti:e followingpersonnel esccped fron
Thetkaw 14 vilo Cwup corxended by me on the 12 Febe, 434~

NX12243 copt. A, MILL, HN 4..,5,0, AXF.
VX73827 pte 4,7, BEIL, 2/6 Ficld pork .iIF,
vx57167 Pte DICKENSON, ¥,.J., 2/15 Field Regt. LIF,

Dickenson wous recaptured by the Jupunese on approxiiwtely 28 Feb 43 and
executed on the 2 My 43at Woenbyuzyat, To iy knowledge this mon was
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interrogated but was not given any formul trial. Mull «nd Bell went on
further together and it wos reported to me that jmll was shat by the
prnese police near ghwegon on 10 [ar. 43. Bell was wounded at the sae
tize that Mull wes killed and was brought bek to Thenbyuzyat ond was
executed at 0730 hours on the 16 Mer. 43. To the best of ry knowledge
and belief Le¢ was interrogeted but had no foriwl trial,

II'PROPER INMPRISONI ENT,

At the beginning of Qctober 1942 ILitue, NLITO approuched ne and
asked i to sign un undertaking thut I would not escape. I refused. Licut,
NATTO then said thay I would be in serious trouble if I did not sign the
undert.lking. He suid that he advised e to sign it as otherwise I would be
kept in solitary cetention and idght be shot. I mainteined :y attitude of
refusing to sign and on 5 Qct 1942 I was pleced under arrcst and taken to
THANBYUZYAT <nd placed in solitary confinercnt in a cell in the guard house,
It. NMAITO visited e daily and demanded thet I should sign the undertaking :
but I still rcfused cnd usked to be allowed to interview Brigadier VARIEY.
The cell in wideh T was confinec wus a siwll wooden one with an psiatic
type latrine on one corner. I wus given three reals o day, each consisting
of half a dixie of plain rice and helf e 1mg of water. I was not pernitted
to leave the cell, I hud no facilitics for westing. On the sixtk doy of
1y detention Prigdier Verley was arrested cnd placed in the cell next to
i.ine, e were able to converse togetier. T believe the sole recson for
Brigadier yerley's detention was to give ¢ en opportunity of interviewing
hir: without the Jupenese having to give o forixwl consent theretos It was a
facc~-saving device. On 12 Qct 42 prijudier Verley and ryyself agreed thet
as I was acting under duress T could sign the undertaking, and I therefore
infornea the Jupuncse that I would do so. I was Heken to It. Col. FAGATCIO
at his HQ. He expressed regret «t the action thut had been token but said
the undertaking had to be signed «nd that uyself and Brigadier Varley would
have stayed in detention indefinitely Lad I maintuincd my cttitude of
refusing to sign. I signed tiie undertaking and we were released fron con-
finenent, Mmjor BLRZENBIRG, the senior putel officer in Burra, head
previously subjecet to sitilar tactics by tlie Jupenese; that is to say he
ves kipt in solitary confincient until he signed a non-esecpe uncertaking,

FORCING OF SICK PRISONIRS TO WORK.

Tu Murebh 1943 o force of australion Troops known s Black Force,
Green Force ond Rausay Force cuie togctlier at 75 wilo-Cap Meiloe. Lt.Col.
Raiisay was the Senior jsustralian officer. and was Conp Comziander. The Coip
worked on & RBrijpcde bagis with thc three above-mentioned forces. (Conditions
in this cuap were extreiely bad und tle cffecets of the long period of
inadequate diet begen to show thersclves; it was alsc in a very bad fever
belt. It was ab this stoge that tic Jupunese refused to accept the nedical
clcssifications given by our own Jicdical Officers. Sickness had inereased
at an alariiug ratc and the nuiber of men aveilable for work was reduccd
Geily. Pressure wos applicd by the Jepanese but e refused to send ren to
work wiio were not considerca £it by our omvn Medicul officers. The Jopancse
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tlen took thc muttcr into their hends and when they considered insufficient
izen werc poraded for work they ordered o special puarade of all the sick in

CillDe

1)
(2)

(3)
(4)
(5)
(6
(73
(8)

Thesc 1en werc inspected by purties of yorean Guurds vwho by personal
obscrvation piclced out cdditional ixn to 50 to work on the line. This then
beeane tle duily proccdure ¢nd hundreds of 1en were selected duily and sent
to work who werc obviously unfit, The wount of work wus inereascd and uen
frequently sturted ot 8 otelock in the worning and worked through until 2
and 3 otclock on the following worning,, This continued to be the procedure
for tlie next ninc nonths, (i.e. until January 1944).

ZPOSUTE OF PWs TO DANGFR FROIM BOMBING ETC,

In Jenuery 1944 I was transferred to TAMARKAN Canp, Thailund,

with & force consisting of all the Australien prisoners of ur in Burii lesg
about 700 left at 105 rilo Cwup for mmintencnce work, Tie Tuxrken Culp

was situwted near ¢ lorge steel ruil bridse whiel hod been congbucted by
the Jupinese over the river for military reasons. The bridge was o rilitary
objective, Thc prisoncrs were forced to work on the anti-aireraft defences
for the bridgc. Thile I was at the Tumarken Cup there were about nine
allied bo:.bing raids dircected egeinst the bridge and sone prisoners in the
nearby prison caips were killcd by the boibardients I did not ever sece any
recognitior norks exhibited necar the PW Cuips to indiccte to boimbers that

Pt Cuips vwere in the loculity.

GENERAL,

wiile «t prisoncr of war establislients within the coriend of Lt.

col, NAGATOMO, I personally obscrved tlic following contraventions of
International Iaw:-

SMILRY OF COITRAVINTIONS OF INTIRNATIONAL LAY,

Foreins wwn to work who were physically unfit and who had been

classified ¢s sucl. by our own quelified M,0s.

Foeiling to supply adequate quarters and crowding ren in

insanitary caiips with natives,

Feiling to supply anytiinglike adeguate redical requireneuts.
Forcing prisoners to work in unhealtiy junglec caips,

Failing to supply rations up to thc scele laid dowm.
Lppropriating prisoners! rations for their own use.l

stealing Red Cross supplies for their own use,

poldin, prisoners! rail up for periods up to 6 ronths and sorc-

tines destroying it.
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(9) Rewoving all peper, pencils, etc., and prevention of facilities
for nental relaxation and study.

(10) Failing to supply anything like adequute elothing,

11 e afticking in canteen supplies and zeking exorbitant profits ab
€5 PP € i
pI‘iSOI‘LGI’S ! EXPECLEC,

(12) rlacing pPeW Caups in close proximity to military objeetives,
(13) Forcing prisorers to work on Japancse war works, .i/s posts, etc.

(14) 7Failing to repatriate prisoners viio at thic end of 12 months
wvere classcd perranently unfit and who required special medical treatment,

(15) Forcing officcrs to do runuel work under threat of armed force,

(16) Concucting Courts lMarticl on prisoners witliout allowing therx
any reproesentation whatever,

(17) swaarily executing prisoners who had attewpted to escape,
(18) eozanal punishment inflicted on whole carp.

(19) Infliction of severec corporcl punishient out of all proportion
to so-callcd coffunce.

(20) Foreing officers to sulute all Jupancse pcrsonnel irrespcetive of
ranlz,

(21) L4t various tiucs uaking the prisoncrs thenselves responsible for
heir omn custody under threat of severe comrunal punishmcht.

G I consicder that the parson who was priva feele responsible for the
abovc-nentioned war erimes was Licut.@olonel NAGATOID. I can speck of

this nam only in general terns; the offiecrs who would be able to give
detalled and first-hand informotion concerning Nagatorols administration
ere Lt.Col. C, LNDERSON VC Iy Lbte Cole T, HLIILTON Senior ledical Officer
and jmjor CLIPBEIL (who handled pay, cantecen affuirs ete). I consider that
the aforesaid war criiics were the responsibility of 1t. Col. Nogatomo

in that eitbier he directly authorized their or alternatively they were the
result of his failurc to supervise the cctions and policy of his subore.
dinutes. Personally I belicve thet Lis subordinctes acted generally in
accerdence with his orders. Nogetoro wus w ran of about 50 years of age;
he wis sone five feet four inclies in height; averige build; clcun shaven;
e purtieular nerks; he spole Freneh fluently, According to rumour he
left Theilend in cbout Junc 1944 beirng thern in disfevour with the Jupunese
cutiorities on account of Lis iiproper Gealing with funds, supplics,ctc.

He is suid to have died in Jupun of food poisoning.,
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Ce I refer to thc following subordinates of It. Col. Nagatoro;-

LIEUT, HOSHIT,

1

4 Gescription of tliis Jupanese officer and the uppointrents Le
hcld arc described in an affidavit sworn by e at perth, Western .ustralia,
on 7 Feb. 1946 before Wy37146 injor H.T. ST.LELES OF #4ilC Testern Corypand
LM, Hosli was not of a sadistical brutal nature personally, but failed
in kis duty in as ruch as he cxercised no coptrol over his subordinatcs and
perritted ticu to carry out brutuel treatient, He engoged in personally
purclasing cantcen regquireicnts and re-sclling thor to priscners at enornous
profits. Hc did not execreise sufficient control over rations. He was
respernsgible through his subordinates of scnding hundreds of 1en who were
considered redically unfit by our own medical officers, out to work daily.

4RLU (known as "he boy bustardn)

m:is pan wes a Foreun guurd about 25 years of age; about § feet
6 inclkes in height und fairly well built. To 1y knowledge tiis nan was
identified at o parude of suspected war crininals at Bongkok. This ian was
conspicuous anong the guards for consistently brutal and sadistic treatixnt
of prisoners including officers. His conduet wus morked by daily bashing
of prisoners end hwdliating treatient.

YiNI :ND K.TSUMI.

Tlicse I'Ch were Ferean Guards. Yonil was o can of about 38 ycars of
ages HE Wus @ big, ruw-boned type of ren with a large number of gold and
silver teeth, He was about 5 ft, 8 incles in height, Katsuni was about 26
years of age, of slizht build, with a pecﬁffihaped Lead, being large at the
top and narrowing down to the chin., Thesc two Toreans carried out the duties
of mordcrly scldierr within the carp, .5 such they were responsible for
procedure vitlhin the caiyp and were also responsible for the nw:bers of
prisoncrs sent out to work on the reilwuay line daily. Thcese were the iien
wi.c, wWhen the numbers of prisoncrs sclectcd for work werc low, personally
peraded the sick and sclected hundreds of sick nen to go to work,

10, I sweur to the truth of the contents of the following docurents;-

Ggeneral report of iy Coimand and Ad.inistration of No. 3 Battalion
n.» Force (subscquently known as Green Forcc) and all appendiccs
attached to the report submitted by rc to HQ Western Corwand AMF
in povenber 1945. .

gworn by the said chorles pdward )
GREEN &t perth in the gtatc of )
western justralia on this 5th ) (si¢ned) C,E, GRIEN, Major.
day of jgreh 1946, )

Beforc re;
(signed) 1,C.H, CANTOR,
i Coriissioner of the suprerc Court of Western justralia
for teking affidavits,.
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Exi:ibit ngw

miris is the docurent rnurked sxhibit vger referred to in the
affidavit of vx39006, Muj. J.JX, Lloyd sworn before me this twenty-
seventh day of My 1946 as being produced and shown to him at the
tine of lLis swearing Lis said affidavit,

(8igned) R.D. CR4AMPTON, Capt.
An officer of the
sustralian 1ilitary Forces,
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INTERNATIONAL MILIT-RY TRIBUNAL FOR TFIL FAR EAST

pridentiary pocuwment MNo. 52068

NO. 1

THE TNITED ST.TES OF AMERICA. and ors.

- against -
AH;AICI; SJJ:\J.‘L"_\; Lmd OTrSe

I’_ I, FREDERICK HUGE BASHFORD, iwnke oath and say as follows:
§

i My Arny number is NX 7068_5; rank, Chaplain/Captain; full
, naine, Frederick Hugh Bashford, 2/4 CCS. si.I.F.; home address, 3 Wyargine
! Flats, The Esplanade, palmoral, New South Tales,

; 2e on 2 Jurne 1942 the undermentioned men of the 2/,14 AT, Rects
! escaped from captivity at mavoy aerodrome coip, in which I was confined &
hat tiI.'lex-

vxb53hh v/0 1T Quitterton M,V VX84l 1/Pdr. Ermett L.
Vx31946 ggte Denerher C.T. VXA7903 Gnr. Wilson J,.i.T.
VX31670 Bdr. Cuming T,S. TX27292 Gur. Reeve ..
VX7043 Bdr. Glover .i,7. Vx46835 Gnr. Jones .i.H,

The men were recaptured., Brigadier Varley (now deceased) was notified
to be present at their execution at § p.m. on 6 June 1942,  Brigadier
vVarley drafted a letter of protest to the Japanese camp commendant at
Tavoy Aerodrorne cenp., This letter was delivered personally, Thais
letter of protest was of no avail, and Brigadier Varley then decided to
see the highest-ranking Japanese officer in the district to protest
against the execution, He was taken to Mujor Ttsui at Tevoy,.

{
13
|
:
i
{
¢
]
!
|

e

§
e Tf any trial of these men was held they certainly were not
represented by a mewmber of the LIF or PEF, T went to the place of
execution with Brijadier Varley and saw them cxecuted. }

!:‘

{

L
(signed) F.I, BASIFORD.

svorn before 136 at gyduey on the
Fourth day of gSepteiber 1946.

(signed) A.J. MANSFIELD.
Judge of gupreme Court of Queensland.
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INTEERATIONAL INILITARY TRIBUNAL
FORk THE FAR EAST.
NO, 1.,
THE UNITED STATES OF AL'ELICA AND ORS.
- AGAINST -
ARAKI, SADAO, AND OHS,

I, GEORGE EEKNEST HAIISAY of SYDNEY in the State of New South
Wales, make oath and say as follows:=

1 I was NX34999, Lt. Ccl. George Ernest Eamsay, 2/30 Australian
Infantry Battalion, when I became a F.0.,W. at Singapore in February
1942, In April, 1942, I was transferred to 2/18 Battalion,

e On reaching MERGUI on 24 liay, 1942, it was obvious that no
preparations had been made for our reception. The Jeps evidently
had been moving around looking for a camp site and finally had
decided on the liergui School,

3. The area was capable of holding about 600 to 800 with

| reasonable comfort but on arrival at 1ERGUI there were 500 United
 Kingdom troops from SUMATRA and I was told that I had to take

| command of the whole force - that was, there was to be a total of

! 1500 men in this school camp. A great number of the British troops
. had ‘dysentery. Conditions for the first 10 days or more were very
I overcrowded; there was no proper sanitary accommocdation; the
waterlogged ground prevented the digging of more latrines, T ere
were no hospital facilities, We had 17 deaths at lergui - 12
British and 5 Australians.

4, Three men were shot at liergui - Austrelians named Davies, Bell
and Schubert., They allegedly tried to escape. I am satisfied
that the first 2 did try; but the third man, Schubert, was only
out trying to get some food. I made representations in each case
to the Japanese commander, pointing out that it was contrary

to the Conventions; he pointed out in his turn thatle would place
my representations before liajor ITSUI, commander of the garrison
for the whole area. I was assured that my representations were
placed before the cormmander and I was informed that he (ITSUI) was
quite adamant, and thet the men were to be shot. They were shot.
We were not present. They were taken away cn a truck eariy one
morning and we did not actually see them at any time. We were
subsequently officially informed, verbally, that they had been
shot., In.the caese of Schubert, I was assured that nothing would
happen to him before I was seen agalin - that once more they were
forwarding my rerresentaticns to ITSUI, and then they told me that
Schubert would not be shot until I had been notified, In his case,
when he was first captured, he aggravated the offence by jumping

| out of the Jap guardroom window; had"he not done that I might have
‘been able to save him. In fact, the padre spoke tec me one morning

|
%
!
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| and said he had passed a truck and Schubert was in it with his hands
{ tied, and Schubert as the truck sped rast had called out "Does

{ the Colonel know they're going to shoct me?". I went up to the

| Jap commander's quarters and on the way there I heard a shot or
 shots., I reminded the ccmmander of his promise that the man would

. not be shot without first notifying wme, but he said that it could

- not have done any goocd, since ITSUI had ordered that Schubert had

' to be shot.

%5. We got to Tavoy in late August or Sertember, 1942, The camp
| consisted of mixed forces including 200 Dutch from the Netherlands

{ East Indies, I was in Tavoy for about 4 months. ©Some men were
lcaught whom the Japs alleged were stealing from the Jap stores,

]Two men were beaten - llinton and Gaut. Also Sgt. Goggin. They

| were taken away to Tavoy gaol, They reported to me on their return.
iThere was a Jap sergeant in c¢harge of the camp and he said he had

i no juriscdiction over the KEMPEI TAI. According to the story of the
| three men, they were tortured, and a Burmese assisted the Japs at

i the gaol, lNinton was made to kneel with a pole tight in behind

' his knees and he was forced backwards, while a KENPEI TAI Jzp stood
i at one end of the pole and the Eurmese on the other, They worked

. up and down at the ends of the pole, forcing it to move backwards,
and roll in between his knees. A Jap officer stood in front of

him and hit him back with a golf club each time he tried to lean
forward to ease the pain. Gaut was punished in similar style,

but in addition he had big weals across his back from a knotted
rope - his back was hurt and when I last saw him he was not fully
recovered from his back injury. I saw him about 2 years afterwards,
the lzst time I saw him, I saw him immediately after the tortuie.
liinton had red bruises behind his knees. Gaut's back was strained,

b Men at Tavoy did aerodrome work., They were enlarging the drome
It was a militery drome.’

P A S - St e i s SR

Swéfn before me at Sydney
on the tenth dey of September, 1946, /s/ G. E., Ramsay.
/s/ Re. L. Deasey J,FP.
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I, VX39006 }gpjor Jehn Kevin L10YD of Army Headquarters make
oath and say;
1. I am an officer of the sustralian Military Forces.
Z Annexed hereto and marked ®qr is & true copy of an
affidavit sworn by LIONEL VIVIAN HUDSON on 17 February
1946 which I have in my custody in the course of ry
duties.,
o The original affidavit cannot be made available imrmedisately
as it is required for trials of minor war criminals.
(sigred) J, LLOYD, lRJjor.
SVORN before me at Melbourne this 27th day of lmy 1946
(signed) R.D. CRAPTCN, Capte

An officer of the Australian
Military Forces.
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on this seventh day of February, eéne thcocusand nine hundred and forty-six,
lLicnel vivian HUDSCN, of 229 YMew South Tead Road, Tdgecliff in the state
of New zcuth *ales. Journalish, mekes oath and says s followss-

r[l. - I was foruerly No. LOO44S 7ing-Commander L,V. HUDSON, R.iachdFes
and wes Senior (fficer of the air Force Corpound in Rangoon Prison under
the Japanese from January 1945 to My 19.45.

S puring lmrch 194%, pieut. P,F, Alumond, U,S.s.a.F. and sgte Jaeck
KXING, R.AJF., developed acute beri-beri, dysentery, and becaue very weak.
It was obvicuq that they needed uedical atte;tion. but when the Jupanese

(as he was Lﬂ(Wn tu us) Vvere apyrc«cuea by me for v1tau1n "y 1nJLCt1LnS
and stren_theuin; food for thewm they (the said officer and pte) refused
tiids aid with the explanation that the two airicen were dying anyhow,
puring a period of about 35 weeks I nwde representations of this sort to
the said Orderly on dozens of occasions as did the patients theuselves
and nuierous cthers of our compunions. There is no doubt that he knew
what we were asking for but Lis attitude in reply never changed. He said
in effect thut as the ien werc dying tlere was no point in wasting modical
supplies on thewm., DpDurin t!is period the said medical officer rarely came
near us but on the several occasicns on wiiici: he Gid I made the same
requests of nim but his replies were always to the saue cffect as those
of the said Orderly.

3 Beccoming satisfied that the above representations would be of no
-avail T wrote a letter to the Cormmundant of the Prison whose name I do
not kncw but who was kncwn to as nThe big Tair, I have nct a copy of
this letter but from notes made of it at the time can say thoet it was to
the following effect;

"’ have a number of officers and men here in a critical
conaition and request that at lecast two of them, Ting and gliond,
be transferrcd to the Rritish Arny Coupcund vhere proper nedical
treatizent is constantly avuilablc. we heve neither knowledye nor
facilities to care for the men,®

Thie lctter was written in Fnelish ws I knew Interpreters were available.
I save it to the gerpeant of the Guard &t Inspection Tine who undertock
to deliver it for ne.

L on 23 Merel 1945, the Comiandant made one of his few visits to
cur conpound and sasked to see our hespital and the men who T had told

pin were seriously ill., T toolk him und showed hiw the ecell whici we had
been using, as a hogpital; it was - barc conerete cell and contained no
bedcing or other furniture except o fuw bags we had stolen. He tock a
quick locl at the cell includin, the two seriously ill patients. vhen

he lookcd at thic patients (whe were truly in an awfyl condition) he turned
away and wallicd out without meking eny cemaent. us the Cormendant walked
out of the Compound I repcated to hiw my previous request that the two
Alrmen be aduitted to the pritish irny Hospitul but he did not reply.

5. on 26 March 1945, the rcdical Pte above referrcd to, handed me
a note in pn.lish from the riedical officer also ubove referred to,
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which said in effect that I (this deponent) was not in a position to say
whether or not the men were seriously ill, and also it was not proper for
me to write to the Commandant direet, mhis letter wes Gestroyed soon
aftervierds, .s I was reading tlhe note the Jupunese medical orderly hit
me a number cf tiuwes cn tie face and heud vith his open hund. .. few
mirutes later the said nedical officer uppcervd ond punched ine about half
a dozen tines in the face with his fist, ¢ aid not say anytiing

6. Ve received no further assistance for the dying men and both
Licut. A{170MD and ggt. IING were deud within a weck from the 26 Jjgrch 1S45.

Te In adcdition to the medicalofficer and. orderly ebove reierred to

there was a Jupcncse Mediell Serpcant vheon we rarcly suw ot whor: I éid on
several occusions ask for nmedicul ussistance for the dying men, however,
nis avtitude w.s the scize ¢s that of thce others. )

-

SO0 by the above-naued, Iionel Vivien HUDCON, at sydney
on the Seveintlh duy of Februcry, One thouscend ninc hundred und forty-six.

(Signed) LIONEL HUDSON.
Before ne,

(sizned L, SESFFIZID (%)
A Justice of the Puuce,

EXTIDTT. spw,

This is the document marked pxlibit wnr rcferred to in the
affidevit of vx39006 Maj. J.¥. Lloyd swern before wme this 27th day of
My 1Sh6 as being produced and shown to hiiz at the time of his sweuring
his suid affidevit,

(siged) R.D. CR.ITTON, Cupto
an officer of the
Australien pHilitary Forces.
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oath and
Lo

2.

I, VX39006 pejor John Kevin I10YD of Army Headquarters meke
say:

I am an officer of the australian Military Forces.

Annexed hereto and marked "qQr is a true copy of an
affidavit sworn by LIONEL VIVIAN HUDSON on 17 February

1946 which I have in my custody in the course of ry

duties,

The original affidavit cannot be made available irmediately
as it is required for trials of minor war criminals.

(signed) J, 1LOYD, lRjor.

SWORN before me at Melbourne this 27th day of ey 1946

(signed) R.D. CRA'PTON, Capte
An officer of the Australian
Military Forces,
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on this seventh day of pebruary, One thousend nine hundred and forty-six,
Iicnel vivian HUDSCN, of 229 Mew South Mead Road, Zdiecliff in the gtate
of New soutl: ™ales, Journalish, meses oath and says as follows:-

'[i. I was formerly No. LOOLLO 'Ming-Commander 1,V, HUDSON, R.fieheFay
and wes gSenior (fficer of the air Force Compcound in Rangoon Prison under
the Japanese from January 1945 to May 1945,

? puring imreh 1945, lieut. P,F, Aluond, U.S.h.s.F. and sgt. Jaek
¥ING, R.AJF., developed acute beri-beri, dysentery, and becuume very weak.
It was obvicus that they needed redical atteition, but when the Japanese
medical officer (Bullneck) and Japonese nmeGicel orderly, Dte YAI'ANOTA
(as he was kncwn to us) were approaciied by me for vitanin »pn injecticns
and stren_theuin; food for them they (the said officer and pte) refused
tiis aid with the explanation that the two airmen were dying anyhow.
puring a period of abcut 5 weeks I nade representations of this sort to
the said Orderly on dozens of occasions as did the patients themselves
and muierous otiers of our comp.nions. There is no doubt that he knew
what we were asking for but Lis attitude in reply never changed. He said
in effect thet as the nen were dying tihere was no point in wasting medical
supplies on thew, purin_t!is period the suid medical officer rarely came
near us but on the several occasions cu whieci: he did I made the same
requests of ain but his replies were always to the suauwe cffect as those
of the said Qrderly.

3. Beccming sutisfied that the above representations would be of a0
~avall I wrote a letter to the Cormandant of the Prison whose name I do
not know but who was known to as "The big Tair. I have not a copy of
this letter but from notes made of it at the time can say thet it was to
the following effect;

w'e have a number of officers and men here in a ceritical
concition und recquest that et lecast two of ther, ¥ing and gliond,
be transferred to the Rritish Aruy Coupound where proper iedical
trcatient is constantly aveilable, ‘e heve neither knowledu€ nor
faeilities to carc for the nmeun,®

This lctter was written in ®nglish «s I knew Interpreters were avuilable.
I save it to tho gergeant of the CQuard at Inspecticn Time who undertock
to deliver it for ne.

L Qn 25 Marel 1345, the Comaendant made one of his few visits to
cur conpound and asked to sce our hospital and the men who I had told

nim were seriously ill. I tooit him ond showed hin the cell whicli we had
been using as a hospitely it was < barc conerete ccll and contained no
bedcing or othier furniture except « fuw bags we had stolen., He tock a
quick lock at the eell including the two seriously ill patients, vhen

he locked at the patients (whe weru truly in an awfyl condition) he turned
away and wallica out without meking eny comaent, s the Cormandant walked
cut of the Coupound I repcated to hiw my previous request that the two
Alrmen be adiritted to the pritish Arry Hospital but he did not reply.

B on 26 March 1945, the ncdical Pte sbove referrcd to, handed me

a note in Fn.lish fron the uedical officer also ubove referred to,
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waich said in effect that I (this deponent) was not in a position to say
whether or not the men were seriously ill, and also it was not proper for
me to write to the Cormandant direcet, This letter was destroyed soon
aftcruerds. .48 I was resding the ncte the Japonese wedical orderly hit
me a number cf tines cn tiie face «nd hewd vwith his open hund. ., few
pinutes later the said nedical officer uppcercd «nd punched me about half
a dozen tines in the face with his fist., e @id not say anytiing

b We received no further assistance for the dying men and both
Licut, A1170MD and St TING were desad within a weck from the 26 jmreh 1945.

Za In addition to the medicalcfficer and orderly above referred to

there was a Jupcenese Medicul Sergcant whei we rarcly suw bt whor: T ¢id on
several occusions ask for nedical ussistance for the aying men, however,
his attitude w.s the scie ¢s that of the others. |

SHO™ by the above-paued, Lionel Vivian HUDCON, at sydney
on the goventh day of Februcry, One thouscnd ninc hundred and forty-six.

(signed) LIONEL HUDSON.
pefore ne,

(signed L., SEEFFIEID (2)
A Justice of the Peute,

RN sow

This is the document marked pxLibit enr rcferred to in the
affiduvit of vx39u06 Maj. J.¥. Lloyd svern before me this 27th day of
May 1Sh6 as being produced and shown to hiiz at the tine of his swearing
his s«id affidavit, :

(siged} R.D. CR.MITON, Cupte
An officer of the
Austrolien pMilitary Forces.
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SHPSIS
F. MSRGUI - KIRIEKAN ROAD.

Prosecution Document numbered 5125, the Afficevit of Mejor V.
BLF.EIT, is now introduced for identification, the excerpts merked
wherein are now offered in evidence. This document states that in
Aoril, 1945, the witness arrived at the Top Camp, vhich wes to be used
to acconmocate orisoners building the road from Mergui to Kirikhan.

"...The Top Camp hed been used for the accommodation of
coolies who ha¢ left before we arrived. There were three very
broken down huts, one without a roof. This was the season when
it rained alzost continuously and in view of the fact that the
huts were situated in & ravine surrounded by high trees, we
never had the chance to dry our kit and clothing.

The food consisted of rice and dry vegetables and was so
short in quantity that after about 3 weeks most of the prisoners
wvere suffering from beri-beri and other deficiency ciseases.

Added to the shortage of food, vrisoners were subjected to excessive

work, and I remeiber a period vhen work went on from about 0830

in the morning until 2 or 3 o'clock the following morning., When

this was the case there was no opportunity for prisoners to have

meals in camp, snd buckets of rice and vegetable stew had to ve

sent out to the working site.

The sick-rate which had been about 30 to 4@ men per day rose
after about 3 weeks to 66 to 70 men ver day, the most usual
cozwlaints being deficiency diseases and meleria. In view of
the high sick-rste as aforesaid, I hed to ask for some of the
worst ceses to be evacuated. This was alweys refused....”

ledical suoolies were meagre. Although no deaths occurred

arioLE P/w at this camp, of the tetal of ebout 1,000 men vho set out frém
Nekonpatox to build the road, about 230 died in fouf mohths owing to the
lack of medicel supvlies, overwork, inecequate food esnd the iiégr?éeful

living conditions.
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IN THE MATTER OF JAPAVESE 7AR CRIITS AND:IN THE MATTER OF
THE ILL-TREATMENT OF sRISONSRS OF AR DURING THE BUILDING
OF THT MERGUI-KIRIKHAN ROAD BETVEELN APRIL AND AUGUST 1945.

AFEITD LT I X

I, VINCTNT EENMNETT, Mjor, Royal Army liedical Corps, with permanent
address at R,A.M,C., Officers! lless, Millbank, London. SeW.lsy make
oath and say as follows;:-

1iee I was taken prisoner. by the Japanese at SINGAPORE -on the 15th Feb
ruary 1942 and after passing through various priscner of war camps ] commenced
the journey from NARON PATON on the llth aApril 1945 for the purpose of proceed
to a junzle camp which was being used for the accommodation of prisoners of wa
engaged on the building of the VERGUI-KIRIKHAN Road. The party of prisoners

which left NAKON PATON as aforesaid consisted of about six to seven hundred me:
and two officers, one of whom was Captain CAYLEY, R.A.M.C.» @nd the other myse.

2, On the 13th April 1945 we arrived at the so-called Rase Camp, als«
referred to as KIRIKHAN Camp, and from there set out on a march towards the
jungle, This march tock four days and on the 17th ipril I errived at the so- -
called TOP Camp with about half the complement of prisoners who had originally
i set out from NAFON FATON, The other half stayed at a camp about L kilometres
shert of the TOp Camp under the command of the said Captain CAYLEY.

S The TOP Camp had been used for the accommodation of coolies who ke
left before we arrived., There were three very broken down huts, one without &
roof. This was the season when it rained almost continuousgly and in view of tl
fact that: the huts were situated ip a ravine surrounded by high trees, we never
had the chance to dry our kit and e¢lothing,

L. : Tbc food consisted of rice and dry vegetables and w&s so shori in
gquantity that after about 3 weeks most of the prisoners were suffering from be:
§ beri and other deficiency diseases. Aidded to the shortage of food, prisoners

| were subjected to excessive work, and I romember a period when work went on fr
i about 0830 in the morning until 2-or'3 efelock the following morning. %hen th
;was the case there was no opportunity for prisoners to have meals in camp, and
: buckets of rice and vc”etuble stér had to be. sent out to thc working site.

!5. ? “The sack-rute whieh had been about 30 or 0 men per day rose afte:
i about 3 wecks. to 60.to 70 men per duj, the most usual complalnts being-defic-
j iency dlseases and malaria. In-v1cf of. the high 31ck-rate. as aforesald. I

i had to ask for some of the worst ceses to be: evacuated. Thls was alwafs refusc
AL that time the Jepanese officers in commgnd were It. KONDA, Lt.: SAITO and
{ another Lieutenant whose name I do not know. These three offlcers 1nspected ti
sick parade--every morning and.usually agreed with mJ dssessmﬁnt of their abilif
‘to work or to be excused from work as. the case may- be. Agart from their, reiusg
| to permlt the evacuation of the worst cases I have no purtlcular conmlulnt
| agoinst these. Japanese' officers, except that the'officer-Whose 'name I do mob-:
knowy: and who spéke quite goed Englisl, insisted on' sick pisorers (perudéSion
for whese evacuation I had &t last obtained after unsuceessful-attempts lastin
about 3 to 4 weeks) carrying, apart from'their own kit, two picks each- when-
they vere finally evaecuated. “This évacuation had to take pluce on foot over a
distance of about 17 kilometres. Those prlsoners vhe wére! unable. to walk had
to be carried by their comrades on improvised stretchers. -

ST I&dlcal supplies were-practically non-existent. ' This was due to the
faet.thatithe Japanese medical officer in charge of NAKON: PATQN—HoSpltal had re
qued to provide me Wlth any medical supplles when ‘the party’ left NAKON pATQN‘

Al
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as set out in paragraph 1 above. Serjeant-Mrjor HIRUTA whom I now
recognise as No. 281 on Plate 23 acted as go-between and messenger
between the TOp Camp and NAKON PATON., In spite of the fact that he

was frequently told to bring mediecal supplies with him when he returned
from NAKCN PATON he never brought such supplies and I suspected that he
sold them on the way to coolies in order to obtain money for his owm
benefit.

To { In spite of the conditions described abcve, no deaths occurred
among prisoners of war at this camp, Of a total of about 1,000 prisoners
of war, however, who had set out from NAKOM PATON for the purpose of
building the MIRGUI-KIRIKHAN Road, about 250 to the best of my knowledge
died in the space of about 4 months owing %o lack of medical supplies, :
overwork, inadequate food supplies and the deplcrable living conditions. /

STORN by the said VINCIIWNT RCNNIT
at 6 Spring Gardens in the City
of estminster this lst day of
Marech 1946,

(signed) V, BENNETT.

N . A

Before me,
(signed) F., HONIG.

Captain 1egal staff.
Military pepartment,
Judge Advocate Generalts (Office, Iondon,.

Exemined with original affidavit at H,G, ALFSEA this
sixteenth day of april 1946 and certified a true copy.

(Signed) ZI.L. CRGLALCH.
Lt.Cole, Legal staff,
"lar Crimes Iegal Seetion,
ALFSCEA, Singapore.
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Ber. No. 5455 Prge 1
SYNOPSIS
G. Civilizns in Sicn.

) Prosccution document nurbercd 5156, tve Lffidevit of
Miss MeJ.M. LLGRISS, is offered for idcntificetion, =né thre
merked excecrpts trerein now produced in evidencc, Tris doecu-

ment stetes that thc witness wes with twenty-onc otrer Europezns

internced ¢t K-rpong Tor. On 13 Decerber, 1941, cight Indisn
soldiers werc pushed into tr¢ room where t e internees were
living. 8§ ortly =fter 2 Joprnesc soldier tvrew o Yand grenede
into tre roon, Tre witness wes uncble to move 2s Yer Yip wes
Injurec. Two J7prnesc soldliers entercd tre room, onc firing
en eutometic gun, trc atrer bryonctting pcoplc lying on ttre
floor. Tre witniss wes lying undernecaty some pcople 2nd wes
thus seved fron furtrer injury.

« number of pcople were killed snd reony others
injured. Tre Jepenese tren made off in s lorry.

b) Prosccution Docuncnt nurbercd 5394, trc Lffirretion
of KALU Rl is now introduced for idcntiflicetion snd_t'e excerpts
nerked trcrein produceé in evidence. Tris, document stetlcs
thet tve witness was errested by the Kempeitei 2t Rencung.
Wren Sismesc policemen tried to procure tre witness's releese,
they too werc arrestede.

hkem was token to Crunporm:-

"..For tre next ten drys I wes beaten with e
bigz stick, wrilc ry hends =nd fect were ticd, £nd
told to speek tve truths I do not know whrat trey
wented me to spesk the trutr sbembt, os trey esked
ne no questionse During this tine I wes given 2
sriell bell of rice #ndé ¢ stick of rew cucumber drily
for food.

On thc eleventr dey, weter wes forecd into my

stoneetr, =2nd when my stomeer wes full, trc Jeps Jumped
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on it snd I beccrrme unconsciouse 1 wes broughtt
round by two Jop soldlers wro trhrcu cold weter
y* OVET LICe

For t*¢ next two deys I wes suspcnded from a
beem by tre wrists, witr ny toes barely touching the
ground. Trerc wes 2 wire ticd to my wrists ond 2
clerp frestened to my weist. Electricity wes pessed
trroug™ tresc vires znd ny arns #nd body were burned.
Tr¢ pein mode me ery oubt contimueily, end trere

scened to be rooks plucking =t my wrole bodye.

..,__.ﬂ..
N
v
Hy
ct
m
H
T

two deys of elmost continusl current being
peessed trrougr me, during wrick time I wes only
given smell quentities of wmatcr to drink, I became

unconscious.

S s

"

Before thig, the Jeps secused e of being
Britis*r Spyy #nd of protogreptring ceroplenes, cnd
sanding rncssages to London.

£s I cennet even write ny nene, I tried to
point out tret tris charge wes ridiculous. Trey
dld not stop e eurrent,c.ces

Dyring t™ds $ime I sow lluse Mepen, whHo wWes
arrested the dey before ne, being given the welexr
torturc by the semc E.P's vho torturcd be,

Trec I JP's mere still trying to mecke nc confess
t*t I was & British spy.

Lfter I srrived =t Keweehl from Clunporn, ny
wrists rnd lcgs were cororred to thc bone from tre
results of the cleectric tertures end just #s threy
were Yerling, the L.P's used to stick burning
cigrrettes into tre sores,

" o In tv ¢ cné trey tiled =pne trin fisbing line
on to ny testicles, with smebh = knot that tre

blood wes cut off from trose orgense Tre otrer
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end of the fis?ing 1inc ies tied o tre well, ' 1

wes nede to 1ic dowm, end tre linc was tightened,
Trcn © rope vrs put 2round ny neck ond it wes puliled
tigkt to tYc oppesitc well, 1 ¥rs in considercbike
pein, ‘Tron the BoPe docddd oo riflic »nd throetcned

to sroot pe if T did not tcll then where the wWircicss
sct wss bidden. I inplored thcn to kill me, es

I kncw notring ond would only »avc to bc subjected

to norce Tortoré 48 1 Tived.s I wes then rclcrged

and broughrt towards the grol. I fsked to be allowed

to go to tre L. 2zmd wes led towrrds theti plece,

t+rougt tr. betrroon. On tre floor of the betk-

roor: I sew tre body of Muse., Fe¢ wes definitely

dezd, oné Yis body wrs nrked and covercd witl lin€.e..
ve s t¥c Jopencse contlinued to beat me, 1 WS

t-crc for sbout scven months. Onecc, & trll

red-rot wire

&
ct
L)

: D
cold teed!

VsP. with o lgh af
up t*c centrc of By pcnis. I wes beeten 2lmost

nolh cyen welka

D_.l
3

delly, &hd im she <hd coul
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SUITARY OF EXALTIWATION
of
ITAUREEN JOY IIARGARET MAGNESS

Formerly a stenographer cof PINYOL LINE, Yala, South Siam
now at
Vajiravudh College, BANGLKOK, BIAIl.

et

M.J .M, MaGNESS havine been duly sworn, states:-

I, laureen Joynlargaret LIAGHESS, am 23 years of age, by cccupation
a stenographer formerly empioyed by the Thailand Tin lMines Ltd.,
and living at the PINYOK MINE, Yala, SOUTH SIAK with my mother
ani}father, and at present living at Vajiravudh College, BANGKOK,
SI .’Io

I present on cath the statement which I made on arrival at BANGKOK
L.on 23 July, 1942, A copy of this report was sent to the head
office of my fifm in LOi.DON, I was an internee at the time, and
as my parents were to my certain knowledge murdered by SIAMﬁSE
Police I had to gloss over this part of the incident, Apart from
this I certify on oata that my report is correct and true in every
| detail. |I see it marked Exhibit A" and attached to this surmarye)
. I wish, however, now slightly to amplify varicus details. I g
have NO charge to meke against either llai PLING or Nai Pravine
NANDIWONGSE. I am unable to describe the first four Japenese
soldiers I saw on 10 Dec, 41, Nai ANA is now working in the Thai
State Raillway department in BANGKOK, He was very gcod tc mc and
I have NO charge tc make against him, The two Japanese officers
that he accompanied against his wish I can describe, I think that
one of them was a Captain, about 7 ft. tall, well made, wore
glasses, slightly scholarly stoop. He had long stradipht black
hair., He was good~looking. He spoke perfect Malay in which he
conversed with my mother. His eyes were NCT pronouvncedly slit, but
were round. I think his name was something like ANDO, The
second officer was about 5ft 10 ins, tall, more broadly built than
the other but a fine physical specimen. He wcre NO glasses, NO
moustache and short black hair, a round healthy face, small eyes
but NOT particularly slanting. He was a lMajor and seemed to be
in charge, I did hear his name but I can IIOT remember it, After
we had been shut in Mr., Van der STRAATEN's house the cars which
had brought them drove on Southward towards BETONIG, and we never
saw these two again., I am almost certain they left with the cars 2
and had NO confern in what followed. It was onc c¢f these two who
tock my passport. Of the Japanese soldiers who guerded us in lir,
Van der STRAATEN'S bungalow there were so many who were changed so
frequently that I can NCT describe any of them now, The Scnior
Japanese officer who visited us on 11 Dec, 41 was ugly, short and
fac, avout 5 fc 4 ins tall, cleanshaven, without glasses, natural
teeth, fat round face, I do NOT know his name, The interpreter
was just an Yordinary Jap™ to look at and spcke very poor Erglish
but in an Engiish accent. The grenade was thrown into the room by
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Japanese who came in the truck that brought the Indian PW, NOT

the normal guards. The truck came from the direction of YALA, I
do NOT know which Japanese did the shooting and bayonetting.

Among the Siamese who came into the bungalow to
look after the bomb was thrown was "Dr'" SANNAT, He was the one
who took my watch. I did NOT recognise the cthers. After SANNAT
had looted me he was the one who carried me away to the other
bungalow and finally to the hut, I now wish to make quite clear
how my mother and father and lMr, THOMAS were killied as far as I
was able to observe, Atout eight Siamese Police whom I mention
as finally coming into my hut were responsible., There can be NO
doubt about this. There was NO one else about at the time. 1
heard them pass my hut in the direction of the bungalow where
the incident took place. After exactly the time it would take
to get from my hut to the bungalow I heard the first shot and the
cry of pain., After the time it would take to cross the road from
this bungalow to the other where my parents were I heard the
second and third shots., It was immediately after that that I
heard the same Siamese voices coming back. The marty then came
into my room, all carrying riflese. There can be NO doubt that
one or more of them had committed the three murders and that the
remainder were accessories., Even if there could be any doubt at
that deserted time and place “IR" SANNAT was an eye-witness of
the shooting at least of my parents, and described to me later
exactly how my mother died, i.e, lying on the ground with her
hands clasped as in prayer and pleading for her life and entreat-
ing them to look for and succour me, Also he told me that she
was shot clean through the head., £he, he said, was shot first,
and afterwards my father. I do NOT consider such meticuious
circumstantial detail could be a mere invention, and further the
men, who had already passed my hut would NOT have come in
unless they had been told by someone that I was there, and it
could only have been hers I do NCT know where "DR" SANNAT is to
be found now but I can describe him and recognise him easily.

He was about 5 ft 5 ins. tall, slim, fairly well~-developed,
long black hair but a skin light for a Siamese, cleanshaven, no
glasses, natural teeth. Speaks a little English, was a Convict
in the penal settlement at the time, They should know where to
find him now, Nai CHUN I can describe a little, He was very
small, thin, neat, very dark hair, cleanshaven, no glasses, na-
tural teeth, wearing a Police Uniform, speaks Malay well. I do
NOT know where he is now. I have seen a sketch-plan marked
Exhibit "B" and attached to this summary. I certify it to be a
good approximation of the layout except thet the bungalow marked
(1) in the plan is where the incident took place, Nai Pasede
PIEW whom I mention in 16 Dec. 41 admitted to me later that he
was in the truck that brought the Japanese at the time of the
explosion, He is tall (about 5ft 10 ins) thin, cleanshaven, no
glasses, very big teeth in a very protruding mouth, He was
senior warder of the penal settlement at TANICOM, I do NOT know
where he is now,

(signed) M. J, Magness

(M. J. MAGNESS)
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SWORN before me (sizned) Lt, Col., an officer of the R
(C.h, de MR, PTW“”T) QNVUW Trish Fusiliers this

eighth day of Januzry, 19 : exemine the above

by the Commander-in-Chiict, Allied Lan ﬂ For cesy South-Zast=-Asiae

_‘
v
N

~

(Authority:- ALF3EA War Crimes Instruction No, 1 Para. 7)

]_I;‘({*B I tn 7

e

!
| 8th Decembe“¢_124u:§ We heard a brcedcast from Singapore about

730 am of the sudfen Japanese actack on XKota Baru, north-east of
the Malay Penins'ila ané of The invasion of Thailand at Singora
and Pattani; { We, the emnloyees oi TL?.Jao. Tin Mines were advised
to get ready to leave. 4% approxirately 2 p.m. we were told to
leave, 1In one or the Comraﬁy's lovries a tarty of 3 women and 4
men left for the Bziong border while tt ' u.vaﬂnwd.benind to
look after the p|c,v,; Ct C fT W
lessrsy Frances, Roschnke and Largen. Mr. and I
As we passed by Kempong "on vwe pickad 1
Straaten and Mr, Kitts who wers residanyg
Gy

@ k38
cr
(O]
t ,1'
(D
45}
~t
-3
\L

e Mrs, Jeavone,
3 la*ﬁu's and self,
nd Mrz, Van der
=
e

plaze and who

wanted to get away oo, csnuiveed s and atout half
way through we were dc TWS o Naj Pring and
Nai Pravine Nandwongsc 18y Strongi sed to return as

there was fighting at the Belen-borderjand were also on the point

- &
of commandeering cur Jorry. We 5pent'cmme mirutes hssileting as
we did not know whetner to believe them or Lot however r e

returned to Kampong ioh aﬂﬂ stayed witn My, *“.zfc;u, WO Was

|__panager there,} Very late in the evening v, Putler-Jones and Dr, .

Rozenberg turred up to .get what in[::nar;“h they cowld with the
intention of refurning immedistely they had any ﬂew 5. They had
brought with them ail “the private bocks and files of the Companye.
As they received no news they irenained with us and that made 12
altogethery, namclys-

T}

Mr . Butler-Jones Mr. Van der Straaten
Mr, Francis Mrs an cer Straaten
Mr ., Roschke Ifrs, Jeavaons

My, Spatford Hre Masmess

Dr. Rozenberg hﬁa lagress

Mr. Kitts Miss Magress

Mr, Stratfcrd!s cock who wees still with him
prepared a very good d¢u?0“ for vs vhatnight whickh we had with the
help of a candle 1ight, Shat same nigrt we were put under Thai

guard. They were just eivilians armed with loag swords or long

knives, Our movemenig were rectricted and all eleccrical arnd water

and atl right loag lovriss continuslls

J

en
shpplies were cut off,

e ) ' - L

1 evacuces [rom the Betorg border., We spent a



i
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night and a day here.
Qth December, 1941: About 9,30 p.m. a batch of Thai police

came along and took us back to PinycK,4 We were put into a bus
which had side-screcns in order to prevent us from being seen. We
arrived at Pinyok at about 1,30 a,m., and found that several people
from surrounding mines had voluntarily come to live with the membez
of our Company who ned stayed behind. iin all we were 27 people

apnd we were forced to live in two bungaiows, 9 in one and 18 in

|_the other,|

[lQLh_December. 19&;5} Several Jzpanese military buses passed
along the roac beru¥ cur bungaicws and we were made to understand
by a Thai Police o ficer the* we were uader Thai custody so we
_were advised to remein in doors and fasten all doors and windows.
We were all taken Lo the Assistant larnager's bungalow early in

the morniné;} As soon as we were indocrs a Japanes plane came
“Scouting over the piace and at aboit Q.2.m, we were divided into
two groups, some wers in the kiftcher, bepind the house, preparing
breakfast and the others were in %the %iving room. All electricity
| and water supply were cut offi, Tacaliaddenly there was a knock
on the door and a voicz sald "Fullo, Huliol® LIir, Peters one of
our party opened the door and we were immeciately conironted
_by 4 Japanese soldiersy} Thrse cof them rnac fixed bayorets and

he other held 2 pistdls. With cur hands Leld up we were ordered
outside the bungalow an? oncs outside we were searched, After the
search a pistol sho. was fired irto the air andjwe were afierwards
marched down to Tengading viliage still with hands raised.] All
along the way they <threacened to shoct us. However, whea we
arrived st the village we were toid %o sit in =he midéle of the
road with the village mob gazing at us. ©One of the Jepanese
soldiers was about to fazten cuy handés together with rope when
one of his officers told him it was unnecessarye.

About half an hour afterwards the rest of our
party who werc in the kiftchen prepuring breakfast and whom we
thought had becen overlooked arrived at the vililage in a bus,
Among them were my parents. They had becen arrested by two
Japanese ofrircers accompanied by Nai Ana a Thai Cfficial of the
Thai State Ra’lways. They had been gllowed to coliect their
belongings befcre leaving, but had found that their sult-cases
had been bursi open and looted and evervihing in confusion. After

_our passports bad beer taken awey from us by a Japanese officer
we were put into a buzjisimilar to the other one!a2nd we set off
nder armed Japanesé guaard and a few tuses with'Uapanese troops.
We stopped for a while a3t Tanicom, the Convict Setilement when a

few Thai officials ceme up wi" glasses of water. We then
continued our journoy[zgtil we zrrived at Kempong Toh waere we

-

were told to get oif and were put intc the house of Mr, Van der

i Straateng] We were then ©0ld by on: of the Japarese cfiicers that

we were %o remain here for the curation of tne war and if any of
us attempted an escape the whole lot of us would be disposed of.
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We were allowed to remain only in the sitting-room and for sleepin
had mattresses laid on the floor. An oil lamp was all we had for
the night, while 2 Japanese guards with fixed bayonets were
stationed in the rocm., The Japanese soldiers were unable te
supply us with any food and we also had no water. Fortunately

for us Mr. Van der Straaten‘s cock and boy who were still living
at the bungalow, cooked for us whatever they could get and lir,
Peters was allowed on two cccasions to go to the nearest village
under Japanese guard to buy us fond, But every time he returned
with hardly anything at all the shcps had been looted or shut

and when he tried to get some from the cother Pinyok line

bungalows he saw the Thai Police helping themselves to drinks

and they refused to let him take away anything. The Japanese alse
made an appeal to the Penal Coleny to supply us with rice, but :
they replied that they had only sufficient for their own needs.

There were 27 of us altcgether, Those from
Pinyok lMine were:-

Mr, Eutler-Jdones ir « De Boer
Mr ., Donnelly Mr. Peters
lr, Francis Mr . Chambers
IMr 4 Beiley lr, Olsscn
lir ¢ Macfarlane Mr. Larsen
Mr { Thomas Mr . lLiagness
Mr . Loschke Mrs., Magness
Mr, Lamb Miss llagness
Dr. kozenberg Mrsi Jeavons

From the surrounding mines were:~

ir, Stratford Mr. Cragie
Mr, Kitts Mr, Edmonds
Mr, Van der Straaten Mr. Holt
Mrs., Van der Straaten Mr . lMoore

Mr, Cummins
1lth December, 1941: A senior Jspanese officer accompanied by
his staff and an interpreter visited us. He made a lung speech in
Japanese which was interpreted to us and concludad it by saying
that all Britishers would be executed, ) One of our party, Mr.
Holt, took fright and fzinted. The Japanese officer tuen ordered
the 5 neutrals who were with us to move into the annex and were
not allowed to converse with the rest., They were namely:-

Dr. hozenberg (Polish)
ir. Qlsson (Swedish)
lir, Larsen (Norwegian)
Mr, Lamb (Danish)
Mr. Koschke (Danish)

When they left we walted anxiously, for what seemed to be hours,
expecting that we should be killed. But as nothing happened we
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decided that the interpreter had mede a mistake in his interpreta-
tion.

l2th December, 1941: We had only one Japanese soldier on
guard duty in the room. By this time they showed more considera-
tion towards us as they realised that we had no intention of
attempting an escape, One of the Jananese soldiers trought us
some cigarettes and another played ping-pong with one of our men,
lMr ., Chambers.

‘ 13th_December, 1941: Somewhere about noon the 5 neutrals were
taken away and put In a similar bungailow alinost opposite the
one we were in. We did not see themn agzin and according to
information received they wers last seen on the Betong road
pushing a Japanese lorry. At about 6 p.m. we had our last
ration of soup made from the bones of a goose we had had the day
| before and {Zt about 7 o'clock we settled down for the night.
Suddenly, about one hour later while we were talking our attention
was arrested by quick heavy footsleps up the back stairs, and
eight Indian soldiers who were captured by the Japanese were
pushed into the vosm.| We were unable tc converse with them as
none of them could "speak English, Mr, CHAMBEES, who understood
a 1ittle Hindustani tried to get sckz infcrmaticn from them, but
all they said was "We Britishi". We then passed a few very
uncomfortzble minutes. DNone of us c¢gred move but we waiiled and
watched for what was to come next, [Suddenly one of the Japanese
Soldiers threw a hand-grernade which expioded somewhere in the
middle of the room where the eight Indian soldiers were huddled
together, As a result of the explosion the lamp went out, and
some of the Indian soldiers were instantaneously killed or
wounded, In the darkness it was difficulit to distinguish who
had been killed and who injured. Sfeveral ¢f the intern=es then
hastened towards more protected positions while some made for the
windows and jumped from a hd#ight of 15-18 feet. I was about to
do the same but I felt I ccu.d NOT move my left leg which gradually
began to get numb, and with fright I cried "Oh my leg, my legil"
With great difficuily, however, I nenaged to dreg myself to a
more protected corner of the room and remained huddled among some
of my fellow internezs. A Tew minutes later two Japznese soldiers
came up again., While one fiushed a torch at us the other fired
what seemed to be a light automatic gun at us. Alnostirmediately
after this another Japanese soldier came up and stabbded the people
lying on the floor with his bayonet., Fortunately for me I had
one or two people on top of me, and that saved me from the bayonet.
They then took flight in a lorry weiting for them outside, After
they had gone I called out to my perents. Ly mother was severely
wounded and was unable to move, while my father crawled to _my
aid, Those who were unhurt sald they would go and get helpjas
they felt that the Japanese soldiers did this because of the
British advance. Two of them remained behind to help those that
were wounded but found it very difficult as there was NO light,
One of them I recognised to be Mk. CHALBERS, Then both of them
left and I did not see them again, {I found that I had become very
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weak from haemorrhage from a bad wound in my left hip which left
me unable to walk, MIir. BUTLER~JONES, who was beside me, had a
bullet in his belly and was making the most dreadful noises, He
passed away after & few minutes. lirs, JEAVONS who was on the
other side of me had been killed by the hand-grenade. Mr, THOMAS

!
l was also badly wounded and unable to move at all, 3

e e st

By this time I had become exhausted from loss of
blood and the pain in my leg was very severe so I was about to
dose off when foolsteps arrested my atte niion, A bateh of
Thais cerrying lanterns and torches came up, some were dressed
in the Thai Police uniform while ochers were in ordinary
civilian ciothes but every ocne of them seemed to be well-armed
with either a gun a sword or a knife. As soon as they came into
the bungalow they kicked acgide *he corpses and commenced looting.
One of them pulled my watch off my wrist. They left when they
had completed their looting but one of them st tayed oehind, He
came up to me and felt my pulse and when he found that I was still
2live he tried to look for my wounds with the help of a torch. :
He finelly decided it wasn't safe for me to remain in the bungalow
for fear the Japanese soldiers might return, so he offered to help
me out., Fortunately encugh M-. CLAIGE, who had esc ped unhurt
eand had gone to get help returned at that momento{ S0 with the
help of the Thal I was carried out of the bungzlow while my
mother was carried by lMr. CRAIGE, Mr. EAILEY and my father
followed slowly behind., As far as I know the only living person
left behind in the bungzlow was Mh. THCLAS who was too badliy
wounded to be moved., We proceeded to the bungalow on the other
side of the roadjalmost opposite the bungalow where the incident
occurred, and remained under the house while deciding ocur next
move . Mr, BAILEY who wore a white shirt took it off in case he
might bte seen., llr. CRAIGE left us for what reason I don't know
and we did NOT see him again. After some time the Thai decided
to remove us %to his house, But as both my father and Mr, BAILEY
were unable ©o help my mother along as they were both by this time
very weak, the Thai decided to take me alwng first and then come
back for the others. So after a very fvyLng effort I got on his
back and we had scarcely gone a few ya;ds when we saw a group of
men approaching us. He helped me down into a diteh V the rcad-
side while he stood to wait till {they passed. Fortunately they
were Thel civilians. They were very sympathetic waen they heard
that I was badly wounded and offered to heip protect me. { AS
daylight was approaching and my rescuer could go no further we got
into the first hut we came by which wasnft far from o ie bungalow
where I left my father and mother, I begged him to fetch my
parents, but he said it was too late as he had %0 go and get
rid of his clothes as they were all covered with blood “pom my
wounds, So 2ll1 went except one who appeared to be very dangerous.
Shortly after dawn I heard some men talking Thal pass my hat
and going in the direction of the bungalows. I did NOT see
them but a few minutes afterwards I heard a shot fired and also
a loud cry of a man in pain., I remembered ¥%hen that lir, THOMAS
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g was still alive when we left him and recognised the cry as being

: his and NO doubt caused by the bullet that was fired at him,

i After an interval of about seven minutes I heard another two
shots fired, and Juiging from the direcvicn of the sound I knew

to be at my parents,! Nevertheiess there was nothing I could

do so I just waited with fear. The Thai who was with me van away
with fright., I could NOT conceal myseif as I couldn't move,
end felt that my end was soocn to come, Then I heard those Thai
yoices once again, coming from the direction of the bungalows,
and becoming irouder and lcuder untili eventually they came into
my hut. I was shocked to see that they were Thai Policemen.
They questioned me in Thai, but I did NOT understand them. I
Just wept and pleaded for heip. The one of them, who wgs rather
small in stature and who was calied Nai CHUN, came up and spoke te¢
me in MALAY which languzge I knew fairiy well and I lied to him
that I was a Thai. He then said that he had formerly been a
clerk in the Amphur's office at BETUNG, and would d» all he could
to help me, MNMeanwhile one of them btrought a stretcher and very
carefully carried me and laid me cn it. Pert of the hut was
pulled down to get my strcucher out. A partyof six Thei
civiliens carried my stretcher while the Tnzai Policemen guarded
2ll round and whielded me froh the sun. They walked about hzlf
a mile before they reached their quarters. As soon as we
arrived they took me into their hut, piaced me on a bed which had
two mattresses and immediately commenced atliznding to my wounds.
Two policemen held mc down and another washed my wouads with
warm water and cotton swabs. I had four wounds all on the left
leg., Soon after the dressing weas finished I saw lMr. llacfarlane
in the custody of a2 Thai Policeman pass the door of the hut where
I was lying., A few minutes afterwards a Police Ceptain named
Khun Somntc arrived with a Thel dresser who went tnder the name
of "Dr" SANNAT, He (the dresser) rewashed my wounds and drew
out two pieces of shrapnel from the wound below the left hip.
Whilst attending to my wounds he told me that it was he who had
rescued me from the bungalow, Khun SOMNUK then arranged to have
me removed to TANICCHK, the penal colony. He spoke excellent
English and assured me that every precaution would be taken for
my safety.

I spent two days with the Police, during which
time I was very carefully looked after., I had my meals wwice a
day which consisted of fried chicken end rice, ard my driaking
water was always boiled first. I had NO clothes except what I
had on. The lower part of my frock was torn off as it was all
smeared with blood and I was given an old blanket to cover myself
with. During these two days I did NOT slcep a wink as the pain
in my leg was too severe.

16th December, 194b: Somewhere about 3 p.m., I was removed
from the Police hut, I was carried on a strefcher and covered
with blankets from head to toe as there were many Japanese soldier
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near by and they were afraid of my being seen, My stretcher was
then put on & lorry and surrounded by several Thai civilians and
about half a dozen Police. At about 5 p.m., we arrived at TaNICOM
and I was taken to the house of Nai Pasede PIEW., A woman who
lived with him and whom I understood as his servent nursed me and
was very kind to me. I also had regular visits from "DE" SANNAT
who dressed my wcunds_twice a2 day, and also gave me two anti-
tetanus injections. | For 25 months I was unable to walk and for
one month I had to lie in the same position (on my right side).
After 2% montns I was able to waik with the help of a2 walking-
sticks. My left hip Waa_$ilted very badly and I could NOT put my
left heel on the ground.j Curing my stay here, which was three
months, I was frequently visited by the Amphur of the district
and several Thail Poiice ofiicials, two of whom took a report of
my experiences. DMajor KEED, head of the Bolice at SETANG, YALA,
visited me once,

18th March, 1942, Under Police guerd I was teken down to SETANG,
YALA, in 2 bus and was put in the care of a Police Captain., Both
the Captain and his wife were very kind to me and gave me the very
best attention, When I arrived here I was pleased to see Messrs.
BAILEY, MACFARLANE, JU=E, EDMONDS and DAWSON, four of whom I knew,

30th March, 1942: The seven of us left SETANG for BANEKOK
under Thai Police guard with Major KEED and his wife, the Governor
of YALA and his wife, the Governor of PATTANI, a dresser to attend
to the wounds of the wounded men, We had one of the 3rd. class
carriages to ourselves with Police on guard at either end., We
travelled by day and put up at rest houses during the night., On
three occasions, however, Japanese soldiers tried to take us away,
but lMajor KEED was very firm and produced a special Japaneése
passport and they left us alone. The journey was very tedious and
took five days. AT about 10.30 p.m. on April 3xrd we arrived in
BANBKOK. On arriving the Governor of YALA very kindly donated
Ticels 30/- to be divided among the six men, while his wife made
me a present of Ticals 10/-.

We were put into a military bus and brought to
the internment cemp. I had with me a2 small suitcase of clothes
given me by two Thai officials., I was only able to walk with the
help of a2 walking-stick.

4th April, 1942: I was taken to the CHULALONGKOLN Memorial Hosp-

itel and was examined by Dr. SAMAK and had an X-Ray photo taken.
I then returned to camp to await results. It happened to be an
impacted fracture, and I was told to go to Hospitel for further
treatment.
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I stayed in Hospitel for seven weeks and had
very good attention from the Doctor, Matron and Nurses. I was
able to rid myself of the walking stick, though I still have a
very pronounced limp, and have to go to hospital now and again
for further treatment.

(Signed) Maureen J. MAGNESS
23rd. July, 1942,
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SULTLEY OF EXAMINATTIOLN

oF

KALU Ral% a milk merchant of RANAUNG, SILN,
on !mrch, 1946,

o e ———
m——— ——

' KALU RAII, having been duly affirmed, states;-

I, K\LU RilL, an 56 years of age and a Pritish subject; I
keep cows in RANATIVGy and sell the mlk,

on 3lst July I was selling milk in the bazaar in RANLUNG.
The previous day I had seen an M,D, and a Jap soldier arrest NMUSL OSMAN,
! an Indian of R.N.UNG, The sawe two arrested me at 0700 hours on that
f morning. 1 was taken to 1D, Headquarters and ry hands were tied beh:Lnd
1y back, T saw !TUSA there in the sane °tate.

| I was there for about one hour, during which the Siamese police
. ! tried to have e releasecd. They were also lockgg_pp.] The previous day
—"fhere had been a riot in R.NAUNG, and three Japs had been killed. I
think that was why the gSiocnese were imprisoned. They were there when
T defie

e e ————
e
spp———————"

i From there we were taken to PANRAIT to wait for a boat, and
after one hour, one care and took us to KAWATI,where we remained for two
days, after which we were teken to CIUM ORN by lerrye. There, we got

our first food since ny capture.

For tke next ten days I was beaten with a big stick, while
y hands and feet were tied, und told tc speak the truth.e I do not
know what they waunted ne to speak the trutk about, as they asked me no
questionse During this time I was given a srall ball of rice and a
stick of raw cucumber daily for food.

| on the eleventh day, water was forced into ry stomach, and
when ry stomach was full, the Japs jurpped on it and I beccme uncone-
sciocuse I was brou ht round by two Jap soldiers who threw cold water
ovVer ne,

For the next two days I was suspended from a bean by the vrista,
with ry toes barely touching the ground, There was a wire tied to ry
wrists and a clarp fastened to ry waist, Electricity was passed through
these wires and ry arms and body were burned, The pain rnade me cry out
ccntinually, and there seemed to be hooks plucking at ry whole body,
AMter two doys of almost continual current being passed through LS
during which tine I was only given small quantities of hot water to
drink, I became unconscious,
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pefore this, the Japs accused me of being a pritish spy, and of
photographing aeroplanes, and sending ressages 1o LONDON,

As I cannot even write my name, I tried to point out that this
charge was ridiculous, They did not stop the current.

I became ccuscious in the cell in the Kempei parracks, and
o) not eat for ei;ht dayg;,lnuring this tine, the Japanese told me

that PRITIT CILAND, /BDUL DAKLR IAK., cnd DHN ROY had told them that I
was a pritish spys I realised then that they had done so, as they had
recently taken 76lL.- ticals frow ne for the I.I.L.» and when I corpleihed
to the gianese Dolice, they were arrested for extorticn, They were bailec
out by PAIISHER SINGH, the loecal I1,I.L. leader, and then they took their
revenge on me by informing the Japs that I was a spy.

I later saw these threec men in the custody of the Japanese at
RAWATI, whence I was taken from CHUIPORNe I was in RAWAJTI for three
ronthse.
e e e A i
During this time, I sav MJSA 1TWION, who was arrested the day
before e, being given the water torture by the same 1,P.'s who
tortured e,
e e .
The I, 's were still trying to rnke me confess that I was a
British spy.
B e e
Mter I arrived at K.7.CII fron CHUITORN, v wrists and legs
were charred to the bcne from the resulhs of the electric tortures,
and just as they were healing, the II''s used to stick burning cigarettes
into the sores,

In the end they tied scme thin fishig line on to ny testicles,
with:.sueh a knot that the blowd was cub off firom those orgens. The
other end of the fishing line was ticd to the wall., I was made to lie
down, and the line was tighiened, Then a rope was put around my neck
and it was pulled t:_ht to the opposite wall, I was in cousilerable
paine Then the 15D, loaded a rifle and threatcned to shoot me if T
did not tell them vhere the wireless set was hidden, I implored them
to kill me, as T krew nothing and would only be subjected to rmore
torture if 7 lived, I was then released and brought towards the gaol,
I asked to be nllowed to go to the 7.C. and was led towards the place,
through the bathroom. On the floor of the bathroom 1 saw the body of
MISA, He was definitely dead, cnchis body was naked and covered with
line, jfter I was released, thc Chinesc cook for the ILP, told me
that he had burned the body witi cil, the same nig&ij then I came back,
the M.T', struck both ryself and the escori, He %to.d me I should not
have seen ITSA's body, and that if g ever spoke about it, he would cut
e in snall pieces,
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LTter three ronthe, I was sent along wth DIAN RCOY, PPTIIMI

CHAND, DEVI DAS, SOHAL DiAS, TARA SINGH & PiNTAN to CIUIIORN. There I
net RAIT NARAIN who was in gaol for stealim Japanese storese

while T was thcregffﬂe Japanese continued to beat me. I was
there for about seven morths, gnee, a tall i, p, with a lot of gold teeth
put a red-hot wire up the centre of 1y penise, I was beaten almost daily,
and in the end could rnot even walk,l CEVI DAS and SOHAL DAS were released
after sore time, and a month afté?”%hemq I was released,

The two [1.P's who gave the orders to torture me, and who ocane
from time to time to question me, but did nob actually torture ne were:
capte MORIs Who was 0/C Kempei; 2/Lte NAKAGAWA T.DASHI.

The Jop who tied ny testicles with fishing line and who beat
ne was; Se MNAKANO YATSUKA.

The Jop who applied the eletricity in. CHUMPOR was;
Selly IVASA YOSHIMICHI,

411 the above I recognise from photographs attached.
(Thumbprints)

certified that the above are the right and left thumbprints
of the witness,

Intergreter;

I certify that I duly translated the above swmary to the
witness in his own languege, prior to his sigrature which appears above.

(signed)
gworn before me
this 29tk day of 1prch 1946,
Detailed to exuine ihe above by the Commander-in-Chief,Allied 1and
Forces, South Fast ..sia,
(suthority; AIFSCA Var Crimes Iustruction No. 1, para. 7)

Checked with original and certified to te a true copy thereof.

(Sig_;f’.ed) ? ’ Lto col,



